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CORPORATE PROFILE
DA BT

Solomon Systech (International) Limited and its subsidiaries as
a Group is a leading semiconductor group specializing in the
design, development and sales of integrated circuits products
and system solutions that enable a wide range of display and
touch applications for smartphones, tablets, TVs/monitors,
notebooks and other smart devices, including wearables,
electronic shelf labels, healthcare devices, smart home devices,
as well as industrial appliances, etc.
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Provide the ultimate silicon solution for every display system
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RODUCTS OVERVIEW
EmEN

BISTABLE DISPLAY

Bistable display is a non-traditional display technology. It is a
display device illuminated by reflecting ambient light. Bistable
display offers paper-like readability, with features such as high
contrast, a wide viewing angle, reflectiveness, and readability under
sunlight. It is ultra thin and lightweight. Some bistable displays
can even be twisted out of shape. Moreover, system power can be
saved by the bistability characteristics, since the image remains on
display even after the panel power supply has been removed.

Solomon Systech develops the specialized Bistable Display Driver
Controllers to make this novel display technology a standard in low-
power-consuming monitors. These highly integrated drivers consist
of MCU interface for command and image data input, display RAM
to buffer image data and high voltage driving outputs. To minimize
system cost and space, the drivers have built-in DC/DC converter
to supply high voltage to drive bistable display. These drivers
can be applied to different bistable display technologies, such as
Electrophoretic displays (EPD) and more.

In order to allow customers to verify the functions and customize
for his own interest, we can support various development platforms
for easy testing and development, and the display driver with MCU
board and USB interface can drive and simulate customers’ own
design by PC programming.

Applications

loT Devices, Electronic Shelf Labels (ESL), Electronic Signages for
POP/POS, Smart Watches/Meters, Health Care Devices, Mobile
Displays, Indicators, Smart Cards, etc.
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MOBILE DISPLAY

Solomon Systech provides a wide range of Mobile display IC
solutions, including In-Cell Touch Display Driver IC (TDDI), TFT
Display Driver IC, STN Display Driver IC, MIPI Bridge IC and Display
Controller IC. They support applications including Smartphones,
tablets, wearable, gaming and loT devices etc.
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“PRODUCTS OVERVIEW
= RN

OLED DISPLAY

As OLED display technology and its manufacturing process become
mature, more and more applications have adopted OLED as a smart
display. In addition, as the self-emissive OLED display is readable
under any light condition and inherent a wide operating temperature
range, it is suitable for outdoor applications even under severe
weather condition. Solomon Systech offers wide range of OLED
driver ICs to match with various kinds of applications.

Passive Matrix OLED Driver Controller

Solomon Systech continues to be the market leader in the Passive
Matrix OLED (“PMOLED?”) display IC, which has competitive edge in
small size mobile display applications. In addition to providing a full
range of PMOLED driver ICs from icon, mono and gray scale to full
color with highly integrated features, Solomon Systech continues to
expand its product portfolio by launching new PMOLED display ICs
with built-in Character ROMs.

With the success of Solomon Systech’s OLED driver technology,
the PMOLED drivers employ a proprietary driving scheme to reduce
system power consumption and enhance display performance. They
are ideal display solutions for portable devices.

Applications

Mobile phone, portable gadget, health care product, smart power
meter, industrial instrument, consumer appliance, remote control,
keypad, switch, etc.
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LARGE DISPLAY

Solomon Systech provides a wide range of large display driver IC
solutions, including source drivers, gate drivers and a GIP controller.
They support applications including monitors, notebooks, large-size
TVs, etc. in different resolutions of HD, FHD, QHD and UHD 4K/8K.

Applications
Monitors, TV, Notebooks, etc.
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PRODUCTS OVERVIEW
EmEN

CUSTOM ICS

We have specialized in designing, testing and delivering custom IC
for digital, analog and mixed-signal applications. With more than 20
years of display IC experience, our turnkey services have provided
one of the most convenient and easiest ways from ASIC to SoC
production. Our in-house experts and manufacturing partners have
strived to ensure the production quality of the IC tailored for our
customers with the provision of state-of-the-art test facilities.

MiniLED/ULED Custom Driver Controller

Nowadays, the fast-response and vivid color MiniLED/pLED display
is very popular for high resolution devices. In response to the
demand for MiniLED/ULED displays, Solomon Systech provides
custom display ICs design solution. Solomon Systech has rich
experience in both passive matrix, amorphous/LTPS/Oxide-TFT
driver design and owns a library featuring state-of-the-art IPs that
are tailor-made for MiniLED/ULED display. Combined with compact
design Solomon Systech drivers are the ultimate MiniLED/uLED
display driver solutions for the applications.

Applications
Mobile phone, tablet PC, TV, VR/AR glasses, consumer appliance,
portable game console etc.
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(A) Results ¥4&

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT: ‘
MBERE

2022 2021
US$ million ~ US$ million ~ Change %
BEERT BEEXET #2BESH
Revenue HER 190.8 168.1 13.5%
Gross profit EF 65.5 67.3 2.7%
Gross margin (%) EFE%) 34.3 40.0  -5.7% point
BOE
Profit attributable to owners of the parent AABER ARERR 27.8 23.8 16.8%
Earnings per share (US cent) SREF (Z4L) 1.1 1.0
Dividend per share (US cent) BRRE () - 0.1
(B) Financial Position B %A%
As at 31 December
W12831H
2022 2021
US$ million  US$ million ~ Change %
ELEI BEET #2BESH
Total assets BEE 158.3 139.9 13.2%
Shareholders’ funds PR 109.2 86.7 26.0%
(C) Financial Ratios Bf ¥t &
As at 31 December
W12831H
2022 2021
Current ratio RELLZE 3.02 2.35
Debt to equity ratio B E 0.013 0.002




= CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

| have great pleasure to present the Group’s annual report for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

2022 was a year of changes. In the post-pandemic era, the
global economy regained momentum, and the global supply
chain was gradually returning to normal. The chip shortage crisis
was temporarily relieved as the supply of raw materials began to
stabilize. However, a new kind of challenge has emerged — the
market demand for chips fell sharply in the second half of the year.
By continuing to innovate integrated circuits (ICs) for new types
of displays and mobile displays/mobile touch displays, the Group
succeeded in consolidating its position in the market for such
products and in sustaining the growth momentum of its business
despite the headwind.

Technology race is taken to a new
level amid a more challenging business
environment

The semiconductor industry entered a phase of destocking in
its cycle in the second half of 2022, and it is expected to take
some time for supply and demand to return to normal. The World
Semiconductor Trade Statistics (WSTS) estimated that the global
chip market will shrink further in 2023 due to the decline in demand
for semiconductors used in products such as smartphones and
personal computers as well as the significant contraction of the
market for semiconductor memory. Meanwhile, the technology race
and geopolitical rivalry among countries spilled over to the chip
industry. Some countries even adopted administrative measures
to restrict the export of advanced chips and related manufacturing
equipment. This can affect the health and development of the
ecosystem of the global semiconductor industry.

The arrival of the era of new technologies
presents both opportunities and challenges

Although the semiconductor industry’s outlook is clouded by
complexity and volatility, the Group understands that opportunities
arise amid challenges since it has been operating in the industry for
years. As the world’s first-rate supplier of e-paper display driver ICs
that gives its cutting-edge technology full play, the Group provides
high-quality and reliable products that meet customers’ stringent
requirements, including IC solutions for seven-colour electronic
paper and full-colour electronic paper based on the technology
of Advanced Color ePaper (AceP). In 2022, the Group started the
mass production of active matrix electrophoretic display (AMEPD)
driver ICs which are used in ACeP products, thus putting itself in a
good position to develop further the huge markets for the driver ICs
applied in e-signage and e-readers.
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Meanwhile, industries spawned by metaverse have triggered
another technological revolution. Ultra-high-tech displays and
devices are essential to the development of products such as those
of virtual reality (VR) and augmented reality (AR) and smart watches.
The Group’s strength in the research and development of high-
speed and high-resolution display IC technology will pave the way
for the launch of its next-generation solutions and products which
will enable unprecedented experience for consumers through smart
products and devices. Moreover, there is a huge demand for game
controller ICs that enable more accurate controls, faster response
and longer battery runtime. Having anticipated this trend many
years ago, the Group has been preparing to grasp the opportunities
by giving full play to its strong capability for developing products
based on the touch and display driver integration (TDDI) technology.
On the back of a growing demand for its game controller ICs and
MIPI (mobile industry processor interface) Bridge ICs, the Group
has succeeded in obtaining orders to be delivered in 2024, thus
ensuring stable income and cash flow.

In the future, the Group will continue to leverage its strong research
and development team, comprehensive range of products, portfolio
of numerous and diverse patents, worldwide network of channels
for sales and distribution and seasoned management team with a
global perspective as it strives for progress. It will also formulate
sustainable development strategies, enhance the team’s research
and development capabilities, and make appropriate deployment
of resources in response to the rapidly changing market. A well
developed and diversified business mix and product portfolio will
help the Group capture various opportunities arising from the
transformation of consumption patterns and the expansion of digital
economy, maintain excellent business performance and generate
good returns to shareholders.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | wish to express my sincere
gratitude to shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers, bankers
and business partners for their continuing support. In the new
era of the digital economy, the further expansion of the consumer
market for semiconductors is inevitable, and the industry will start
another round of competition and cooperation. As long as we have
the courage to tackle challenges and actively leverage our leading
technological advantages, the Group will have the confidence to
build on its past achievements and blaze a trail.

Ma Yuchuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2023
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" CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S MESSAGE
TR AT

Dear Shareholders,

In 2022, global economic recovery was buffeted by severe
challenges. The semiconductor industry was faced with the
headwind of slowing demand for consumer electronics in the
second half of the year, and was thus compelled to destock. In
the post-pandemic era, technology has made its presence felt
even more profoundly in our daily life and work patterns, and the
importance of products made with semiconductors is growing
in tandem. As a pioneer in the industry, the Group not only has
consolidated its leading position in semiconductor technology but
also made timely adjustment to its operations strategy in response
to market changes so that its business remains vibrant for growth
and resilient.

Business kept growing steadily

The momentum for steady growth in the Group’s business
continued during the year under review. In 2022, sales revenue
grew by 13.5% to US$190.8 million and profit attributable to owners
of the parent grew by 16.8% to US$27.8 million. The demand for
the Group’s products remained stable — 312.9 million units of
its products were shipped. During the year, the Group made a
provision of approximately US$12 million for some old inventory,
resulting in a decrease in gross profit margin of 5.7 percentage
points to 34.3%. In response to changes in market conditions,
the Group has adjusted the average unit price of some products
in 2022 to maintain its competitiveness. It will continue to ensure
the stability of the supply chain, control the inventory level and
push forward with product innovation, thereby strengthening its
competitive advantages and ensuring reasonable profit. Earnings
per share for the year increased by 10% to 1.1 US cents.

Leveraging our technological strengths to
meet the market demand

In the light of the depressed demand for semiconductors in the
second half of 2022, the Group flexibly adjusted its product mix
in line with market conditions, and strategically reallocated the
resources previously earmarked for investment in products for
coping with the pandemic to other product categories for which
there was strong demand, such as those used in electronic shelf
labels (ESLs), smart home devices and industrial applications.

During the year under review, both the business of the New Display
integrated circuits (ICs) and that of the Mobile Display and Mobile
Touch ICs recorded satisfactory growth. In the OLED Display IC
business, the Group, as the world’s largest manufacturer of display
driver ICs for PMOLED display products, still has a dominant
market share in terms of the units of products shipped in 2022. In
addition, our Large Display IC business supports applications such
as high-end gaming monitors, notebooks, and large-sized smart
TVs, catering to the needs of the market for high-end entertainment
devices.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S MESSAGE:%

Consolidating the leading position with
fruitful research results

Benefiting from the stable sales of ESLs in the European and North
American markets, the Group recorded an increase in the shipments
of New Display IC products in 2022. In recent years, ESLs have not
only become popular in Europe and North America, but also are
gaining traction in other emerging markets in Asia. Since the Group
has already established its presence in the ESL market early on, it
has significant advantages in this field, which is conducive to R&D
and product invention. In 2022, the Group commenced the mass
production of Active Matrix Electrophoretic Display (AMEPD) driver
ICs for Advanced Color e-Paper (ACeP) products. Furthermore,
back in 2021, the Group supported E Ink Corporation in the
production of Spectra™ 3100, the next-generation ink platform
specially designed for ESLs and retail signage, by developing a new
display IC solution with a technological breakthrough in four-color
display. Spectra™ 3100, which is scheduled to be launched in 2023,
represents great potential for growth in the Group’s New Display IC
business in the future.

To capitalize on high-end game controllers’ growing popularity with
consumers, the Group is committed to enabling players’ smooth
gaming experience with the ICs inside the devices. In addition, the
Group will, with prescience, conduct business planning and build
up its presence in the two major fields, namely augmented reality
(AR) and virtual reality (VR), by leveraging the capabilities of its high-
speed and high-resolution display IC technology, with a view to
seizing the opportunities brought by the metaverse. Meanwhile, the
Group has launched new products of OLED Display ICs to maintain
its competitiveness. IC-SSD2363, the world’s first small-sized
passive matrix micro-LED display driver, has been launched in the
first quarter of 2023. This product can be used for a new generation
of high brightness displays of three inches or less, and therefore has
a wide range of applications, including those in wearable devices,
home appliances and industrial applications.

Expanding the scope of R&D to speed up
our entry into target markets

In a rapidly changing market where technology race is intensifying,
the Group is endeavouring to enhance its innovation and R&D
capabilities by committing resources to R&D of technology under
the principle of putting talents first. The effort has paid off as the
Group has more than 660 IC design patents worldwide, laying the
foundation for continuous innovation and enabling it to maintain
its market leadership. Meanwhile, the Group used its technological
advantages and extensive intellectual property rights to expand the
field of cooperation in R&D, thereby accelerating its entry into target
markets. We expect to generate satisfactory returns in less explored
fields and increase potential for business growth.
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" CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S MESSAGE
TR AT

Prospect and Strategies

At present, the semiconductor industry is experiencing the
repercussion of the overheating in the electronics industry that had
happened in the past two years. In a business environment which
is plagued by the problem of high inventory, the industry may need
to grapple with slowing growth in the short term. In the light of
the persistent downward pressure on profit and a market where
the demand has not yet recovered, the Group will strive to control
costs, continue to focus on technology development, improve
product mix and make greater efforts to develop high value-added
products with the aim of enhancing operational efficiency.

Looking ahead, the Group will further develop its IC business,
continue to cooperate with customers who are leaders in their
respective industries in new projects, and drive the improvement of
product quality. Meanwhile, the Group is committed to unlocking
business growth potential through a multi-pronged approach
by continuously exploring the huge business opportunities in
the market for new types of displays, expanding the scope of
cooperation with customers in R&D and manufacturing, attracting
new customers, and expanding product categories. The Group will
take initiative in capitalizing on the anticipated gradual recovery
in the global economy and various opportunities brought by the
new world of technology so as to achieve good and sustainable
business growth and maximize value and returns for customers and
shareholders.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to extend my
sincere gratitude to all members of senior management and staff
for their hard work and foresight in the past year which enabled the
Group to deliver outstanding performance in 2022. Also, | would
like to express my heartfelt thanks to all shareholders, investors and
other business partners for their consistent support to and trust in
the Group. Let us work together to scale new heights in 2023.

Wang Wah Chi, Raymond
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS%

EEENWmE D

BUSINESS REVIEW & OUTLOOK

Business Review

In 2022, wafer shortages began to ease in the second half of the
year as the global supply chain gradually normalised following
the receding of the COVID-19 pandemic and the semiconductor
industry entered a de-stocking phase. However, while the supply
of raw materials began to normalise, demand fell in the second half
of the year after experiencing a strong growth in the first half of the
year. The demand for home electronics and portable healthcare
products such as personal computers and oximeters, which had
grown suddenly due to the pandemic and home isolation needs,
began to decline as the pandemic subsided.

In the post-pandemic era, the Group has been proactively adjusting
its product portfolio in response to market changes, shifting
resources from the development of pandemic-related products to
other product categories such as smart home devices as well as
industrial appliances, where demand is still favourable.

In response to the increase in raw material prices and production
costs, the Group has adjusted the average selling price of its
products accordingly. During the year under review, the Group’s
sales revenue reached US$190.8 million, representing an increase of
13.5% over 2021 (US$168.1 million). Shipment volume for the year
was approximately 312.9 million units (2021: 395.7 million units).

New Display ICs

New Display IC products mainly refer to bistable display products of
the Group. Bistable display is a non-traditional display technology
where the display device is illuminated by reflecting ambient light.

During the year under review, New Display IC products showed a
slight growth in shipment quantity of 4.7%, mainly brought about
by our stable sales arising from ESL in the European and the North
American markets. ESL is gaining popularity for its flexibility in
price update and easy stock management. For retailers, ESL not
only reduces the carbon footprint of merchants, but also increases
efficiency and reduces long-term costs, meeting the global trend of
paperless for sustainable development.

ESL is not only prevailing in Europe and North America, but it is also
becoming an emerging trend in other Asian countries. The Group
has been a pioneer in developing ESL ICs for many years, and our
customers include many of the world’s top-ranked supermarkets. To
further tap into the markets of e-Signage and e-Reader applications,
we commenced mass production of the AMEPD driver IC for
Advanced Colour e-Paper (ACeP) products in 2022. The Group
supported E Ink in developing the Display IC Solutions for Spectra™
3100, a next-generation specialised platform for ESL and retail
signage application in 2021. This significant technological break-
through that enables a four colour spectrum display has placed
us in a leading position in this huge market. Spectra™ 3100 is
expected to be launched in 2023. In addition to ESL, the Group is
also committed to expanding the application of IC products to other
areas, such as translators and large retail signage applications.
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OLED Display ICs

The Group offers a wide range of OLED display driver ICs to match
with various applications, including PMOLED display products,
mini/micro-LED products and OLED lighting products. The Group
is the world’s number one PMOLED display driver IC player with a
dominant market share in terms of unit of shipment in 2022.

The Group provides a full range of PMOLED driver ICs from icon,
mono and grey scale to full colour with highly integrated features
and are ideal display solutions for portable devices. In the first
half of the year under review, the demand for healthcare products
related to the COVID-19 pandemic, such as oximeters, was strong
as the pandemic was still severe, and gradually slowed down in the
second half as the pandemic subsided. With the prevailing trend of
smart home appliances, it is expected that demand for PMOLED
smart home solutions and the Internet of Things (loT) will continue
to grow in the future.

The Group is a forerunner in the application of mini/micro-LED. Our
mini-LED DDI solutions for 50” to 100” indoor signage display have
been in mass production since 2018 and are used in the curved
signage display in the underground and subways in the UK and the
US. As the global high-end consumer electronics market continues
to expand, the orders for the Group’s mini/micro-LED IC products
increased during the year compared to last year. The Group expects
to launch the world’s first small-sized passive matrix micro-LED
display driver IC - SSD2363 in 2023, which can be applied to next-
generation high brightness displays of 3 inches or less for wearable
devices, home appliances and industrial appliances.

Mobile Display and Mobile Touch ICs

Solomon Systech provides a wide range of Mobile Display and
Mobile Touch IC solutions that is ever-expanding, including In-
Cell Touch Display Driver IC, TFT Display Driver IC, STN Display
Driver IC, MIPI Bridge IC and Display Controller IC, which support
industrial and consumer applications spanning smartphones,
tablets, wearables, gaming devices and loT devices.

During the year under review, benefiting from the strong demand for
game console controller ICs, the Mobile Display and Mobile Touch
ICs products reported a 55.4% increase in sales revenue.

The Group pioneers the MIPI solutions for display with a series of
proprietary features that support high-resolution, high-speed and
low-power display of smart devices, which includes AR and VR
products that have been favored by the market in recent years.
In addition, the Group is co-developing a human interface display
platform with a leading small-to-medium-sized TFT-LCD panel
maker to leverage the Group’s pioneering technologies in TDDI,
targeting to enter mass production in the second half of 2023.
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The demand for game console controller ICs requiring more
accurate controls, faster response and longer battery runtime is
growing fast. In view of the emerging market trend, the Group
leverages its profound expertise in TDDI and has exerted a visionary
deployment in the sector. The demand for the Group’s game
console controller and MIPI Bridge ICs continues to grow, and we
have successfully secured manufacturing orders into 2024, making
a notable contribution to the Group’s sustainable revenue base.

Large Display ICs

The Group provides a wide range of large display driver IC solutions
that support various applications, including high-end gaming
monitors, notebooks and large-size smart TVs.

During the year under review, the market of large screens was
affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, which led to sluggish demand.
Panel manufacturers suffered losses against the backdrop of high
inventory. However, the Group successfully carried out the mass
production of driver ICs for the 165Hz high-refresh-rate gaming
monitor of 27/23.8 inches and 43-inch smart HDTV in conjunction
with the panel makers and the international terminal brands. In the
post-epidemic era, the high-end entertainment market is gradually
recovering. In the future, the Group will leverage its R&D capabilities
to enhance the value of products and its visibility in the market, and
continue to promote its cooperation with domestic display screen
factories, while dedicating to the R&D of new generation display
technology.

Product Development

The Group stresses the importance of novel product development to
keep abreast of the rapid technology advancement and fast-moving
trends. By leveraging our technological edge and pool of intellectual
properties, we continue to expand our scope of collaboration. This
strategy will enable our accelerated presence in the targeted fronts,
leading us to the less explored space with promising rewards.

During the year under review, the Group developed the world’s
first small-sized passive matrix micro-LED display driver IC -
SSD2363. The product features high brightness and can be applied
to three-inch or less 16.7M colour display according to customers’
personalized needs. Moreover, the Group supported E Ink in
developing the Display IC Solutions that enables a four colour
spectrum display for Spectra™ 3100, a next-generation specialised
platform for ESL and retail signage application. These two products
are expected to be launched in 2023.

Awards and Recognitions

In 2022, as a recognition of its technological advancement in the
industry, the Group was honoured with the “Most Topical Product
and Technology” award at EE Awards Asia 2022 for its active-matrix
electrophoretic display driver with controller for colour displays,
SSD1680.
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With outstanding performance in innovation and technology, the
Group was selected as the “2022 Benchmark IC Enterprise” by
the Nanjing Jiangbei New Area Industrial Technology Research
and Innovation Park, and it garnered the “HKSAR 25th Anniversary
Enterprise Outstanding Contribution Awards - Innovation and
Technology Category” held by Metro Radio. Mr. Raymond Wang,
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of the Group, was
honoured as “Outstanding Semiconductor Entrepreneurs 2022” by
Huada Semiconductor.

Outlook

Against the backdrop of global economic austerity and high interest
rate, consumer demand has weakened, coupled with the rebound
effect caused by the overheating of the electronics industry in the
past two years, the consumer electronics market may face the
challenge of slowing growth in the short term. It is expected that
the semiconductor industry will still be de-stocked in the first half
of 2023, and there will be more opportunities for cooperation with
downstream to develop products in the second half of the year as
the epidemic winds down in the mainland China.

While supply chain problems have been eased with the removal
of epidemic travel restrictions, chips are no longer scarce, raw
material costs remain under pressure. In the face of gross profit
pressure, the Group will strive to control costs, continue to focus on
developing technology, improve its product portfolio and endeavor
to develop high value-added products.

With the launch of the Group’s passive matrix micro-LED display
driver IC-SSD2363 this year, we will strengthen the promotion to
first-tier customers to increase applications.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to capitalise on the growing
game console controller market, one of our main applications,
endeavouring to provide players with a smooth gaming experience
through IC. With our capabilities in high-speed and high-resolution
display IC technology, we will focus on developing AR and VR
products to capture the opportunities of the Metaverse.

Although the market still faces various challenges, the Group will
respond swiftly and flexibly as it actively looks for opportunities. We
await to ride on the boom as the global economy gradually recovers
with our thorough preparation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSI

EEENWmE D

OUR PEOPLE AND

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Employees

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had a total workforce of 294
employees' (2021: 326 employees). Of the total workforce, around
36% were based in Hong Kong head office with the rest located in
Mainland China and Taiwan.
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About 88% of the Group’s employees hold a bachelor’'s degree or
above, and around 29% have earned a master’s degree or higher
academic qualifications. The Group’s emphasis on R&D is also
reflected in the composition of our workforce, as 64% are engineers
who specialize in product design and development. The entire team
has, on average, around 12 years of working experience.

The Group also had a testing center located in Mainland China, with
a total workforce of 64 employees.

Note': Data excludes testing center in Mainland China
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OUR PEOPLE AND
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

[\ = Y ==
EPMEIRGEHESER
Training & Development
At the Group, we strive to cultivate a culture of “Continuous
Learning”, and to inspire, encourage and develop our staff. In 2022,
the Group dedicated a total of over 8,795 man-hours to training and
development, covering technical and soft skill training. Apart from

in-house training, the Group has also encouraged and sponsored
employees to take external job-related courses.

Employee’s Well-being

We put more resources in health, safety, and wellness of our
employees as we care about their well-being. Apart from providing
a safe working environment and health insurance covering medical,
disability, accidental and life benefits to eligible employees, we also
aimed at assisting employees to strike a healthy work life balance
and to promote team spirit. In 2022, the Group organized a range
of activities for employees to achieve these targets. The Group
also arranged leisure activities inviting our employees to participate
together with their family members.

Remuneration and Awards

The Group believes in motivating, retaining and rewarding
employees and attracting new talent with the right incentives,
in order to facilitate the alignment of their interests with the
Company. NPI First Order Awards were granted to project teams
in appreciation of the order winning on our new products. The
Group also offers cash reward schemes (including KPI Incentive
for recognizing the attainment of annual KPI on both the team
and individual levels), and ES1 MP Award for new products which
win for mass production with the first successful sample attempt.
Patent Awards are in place to encourage and reward technological
innovation. The Group also offers long service awards to reward
employees of long standing.

Details of the remuneration of employees, bonus and share option
scheme are disclosed in relevant section of the Directors’ Report,
and note 6, note 10, note 11 and note 25 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group has a strong sense of commitment to fulfilling its
corporate social responsibility and ensures that it becomes part
of the daily operations of the Group. The Group’s Environmental,
Social, Governance (“ESG”) working committee has monitored the
Group’s performance in the areas of employees, the marketplace, the
environment and the community during 2022. The Group’s ESG Report
for 2022 has been published separately on the Company’s website at
www.solomon-systech.com and the Stock Exchange’s website at
www.hkexnews.com on the same date as this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS%;

Revenue and Results Overview

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s sales
revenue increased to US$190.8 million (2021: US$168.1 million),
representing an increase of over 13.5% from that of last year.
The increase in overall revenue was due to the Group strategic
adjustment its product mix in response to the demand of market.
As the COVID-19 pandemic seems to show a sign of easing, the
demand for handheld medical equipment and healthcare devices
slowed down.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent was reported at US$27.8
million, an increase of over 16.8% from US$23.8 million in 2021.
Earnings per share were 1.1 US cents, up 0.1 US cents from 2021.

Gross profit

Gross profit of US$65.5 million (2021: US$67.3 million) and gross
margin of 34.3% (2021: 40.0%) were recorded for the year ended
31 December 2022, representing a decrease of 2.7% and 5.7
percentage points as compared with that in the year of 2021,
respectively. The decrease in average gross profit margin was
mainly attributable to provisions made for slow moving inventories
due to reduced market demand for some of the Group’s old
products.
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Profit attributable to owners of the parent

for the year ended 31 December
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Costs and Expenses

The Group’s total expenses (including product R&D costs, S&D
expenses, administrative expenses and other expenses) for the
year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to about US$39.7 million
(2021: US$45.1 million), representing a decrease of 12.0% as
compared to that for the year 2021.

The Group is committed to its longer-term development by investing
in its R&D capabilities. During the year under review, the product
R&D costs amounted to US$27.1 million (2021: US$30.4 million)
representing a decrease of US$3.3 million and a decrease of
10.9%. The product R&D costs to sales ratio for the year ended
31 December 2022 was 14.2% (2021: 18.1%), a decrease of 3.9
percentage points. The Group has utilised the resources on the
products that more adopt with the global market trend, result
in a slight decrease in R&D expenditures. Apart from that, US$
appreciated against all other major currencies during the year, this
driven down the R&D salary costs in the Taiwan and the PRC when
translating their salary expenses from local currencies back to USD.
Still, the Group has set a bold target in R&D for innovation to solidify
its leading position in IC display industry.

Administrative expense amounted to US$8.3 million (2021: US$11.2
million), despite the increase in revenue by 13.5% due to foreign
exchange gain arose from the appreciation of US$ against majority of
other currencies for the year, as the Group’s administration expenses
were mainly incurred in the PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan, the amount
has therefore lowered after translating back to US$.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS%E

Other Income and Gains - Net

During the year under review, other income amounted to US$2.0
million (2021: US$1.2 million), increased by US$0.8 million mainly
due to increase in government subsidies in 2022. Government
subsidies mainly consisted of grants for the product R&D projects
totalling US$1.9 million in 2022 (2021: US$0.9 million).

Profit Attributable to the Owners of the
Parent

During the year under review, the Group reported a profit
attributable to owners of the parent of US$27.8 million, as
compared to a profit attributable to owners of the parent for the year
ended 31 December 2021 of US$23.8 million. The steady growth
in profit attributable to owners of the parent was due to increase in
revenue and a stringent control on overall expenses resulting from
the positive contributing factors discussed above.

Liquidity and Financial Resources
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As at 31 December

M12H31H
2022 2021
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FTEx
Current assets MENEE 146,126 121,590
Current liabilities mEAaE 48,387 51,633
Net current assets mEEEFE 97,739 69,957
Current ratio VLI S 3.02 2.35

The Group’s current ratio was 3.02 as at 31 December 2022 (31
December 2021: 2.35), reflecting a strong liquidity in its financial
position. Working capital position of the Group remains strong.

The Group does not have any significant interest-bearing loans and
borrowings, and is in net cash position. The Gearing Ratio is 0.013
(2021: 0.002).

Treasury Management

The Group has an internal treasury review team (the “Team”) to
execute treasury management policy, review the overall investment
portfolio and monitor the performance on a regular basis to increase
the yield of cash reserves. The Team conducts regular review
meetings or teleconferences with individual external portfolio
managers and holds internal review meetings to evaluate and
monitor the investment performance.

Total cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits of the Group
were US$51.6 million as at 31 December 2022 (2021: US$41.8
million), of which US$6.0 million denominated in US dollars
(2021: US$17.0 million) were pledged to banks to secure for
general banking facilities for general operation purpose. Cash and
cash equivalents and bank deposits of the Group were mainly
denominated in US dollars and Renminbi.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no major borrowing
other than a bank loan in connection with a PRC subsidiary for
working capital financing amounting to US$1.4 million, which was
denominated in Renminbi. The amount was fully repaid before the
date of this annual report.

Most of the Group’s trade receivables and payables are quoted in
US dollars. The Group closely monitors the movement of foreign
exchange rates and constantly seeks to obtain favorable exchange
rates for conversion of US dollars into other currencies for paying
local operating expenses. During the year under review, the Group
had not used any derivative instruments to hedge against foreign
currency exposure in operation as the Board considered this
exposure to be insignificant.

Capital Expenditure and Contingent Liabilities

During the year of 2022, capital expenditure of the Group was
US$2.5 million (2021: US$1.5 million).

As at 31 December 2022, capital expenditure contracted for but
not yet incurred was approximately US$0.7 million (2021: US$1.2
million).

The Company has provided corporate guarantees amounted to
US$12.9 million (2021: US$17.9 million) to banks in connection with
facilities granted to a subsidiary, of which US$8.0 million (2021: 8
million) were utilised as at 31 December 2022.

Aside from the aforesaid, the Group had no other material capital
commitment or contingent liability.

Significant Investments Held

During the year under review, there was no significant investments
held by the Group.

Future Plans for Material Investments and
Capital Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any future plans
for material investments and capital assets.

Acquisition and Disposal of Material
Subsidiaries and Associates

The Group did not acquire or dispose of any material subsidiaries
and associates during the year under review.

Charge of Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any charge on
its assets except for time deposits amounted to a total of US$6.0
million (2021: US$17.0 million) pledged to banks for securing
banking facilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS -

HUMAN RESOURCES

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had a total workforce of 294
employees*. About 36% of the workforce were based at the Hong
Kong headquarters, with the rest located in Mainland China and
Taiwan. The Group also has a testing center located in Mainland
China, with a workforce of 64 employees. Employee salary and
other benefit expenses decreased to approximately US$24.9
million during the year under review from approximately US$29.3
million in the year 2021, which represented a decrease of 15%. The
decrease was because of the decrease in the average number of
employees. The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on
the performance of individual employees, which will be reviewed
every year. Apart from the provident fund scheme (according to
the provisions of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes for Hong
Kong employees) or the government-managed retirement pension
scheme (for Mainland China and Taiwan employees), medical and
other insurances, discretionary bonus is also awarded to employees
according to the assessment of individual performance.

* Data excludes the testing center in Mainland China
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Chairman
Mr. MA Yuchuan, aged 58

Chairman of the Board: since May 2019
Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board: 2018
Chairman of the Nomination Committee
Member of the Investment Committee

Skills and experience:

Graduated from Zhejiang University, the PRC with a bachelor’s
degree in semiconductor physics and devices
Extensive experience in the semiconductor industry

Current appointments include:

Director of Shanghai Anlogic Infotech Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code:
688107)

Director of Beijing Huada Zhibao Electronic System Co., Ltd.
and APS (Shanghai) Ltd.

Vice general manager of Huada Semiconductor Co., Ltd.

Former appointments include:

Held various positions in CEC: division chief of project
division of business management department, division chief
of integrated circuit & components division of corporate
development department, vice general manager of integrated
circuit business group and deputy general manager of planning,
science & technology department

Director of China Electronics Huada Technology Company
Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
with stock code: 0085), Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited (a

company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange with stock
code: 1347), Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code: 600171), CEC
Huada International Co. Ltd., Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co.,
Ltd., Nanjing Micro One Electronics Inc. and Chengdu Sino
Microelectronics Technology Co., Ltd.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT -

Executive Director
Mr. WANG Wah Chi, Raymond, aged 56

CEO: since January 2020

Acting CEO: 2019

Appointed to the Board: 2019

Executive Director

Chairman of the Investment Committee

Authorized Representative of the Company pursuant to Rule
3.05 of the Listing Rules

Director of a number of subsidiaries of the Group

Skills and experience:

Graduated from the City University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor’s degree in electronic engineering

Received a master of business administration degree from the
Victoria University of Wellington, New Zealand and a master of
arts degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong

A chartered engineer with over 30 years’ experience in the
semiconductor industry

Former appointments include:

Corporate VP and Head of Advanced Display Business of the
Group

Held senior management position in Motorola Inc and worked
in Hong Kong, the USA and Canada

Asia Pacific Head of RFWaves Ltd. in Israel
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Non-executive Directors
Mr. WANG Hui, aged 40

Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board: 2021

Member of the Remuneration Committee and the Investment
Committee

Skills and experience:

Master of science in engineering in control systems from the
University of Sheffield

Master of business administration from the University of Hong
Kong

Current appointments include:

Director, development and planning department, Huada
Semiconductor Co., Ltd.

Director, Alpha Power Solutions Co., Ltd.

Director, Chengdu Sino Microelectronics Technology Co., Ltd
Director, China Electronics Smart Card Co., Ltd

Director, Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code: 600171)

Former appointments include:

Various positions including strategic manager and professional
manager of the development and planning department in
Huada

Marketing manager, Brite Semiconductor (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
Technical marketing manager, Shanghai Huahong Grace
Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation

Various engineering positions and technical marketing manager
in Shanghai Hua Hong NEC Electronics Co., Ltd.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT -

Non-executive Directors
Dr. KANG Jian, aged 41

Non-executive director
Appointed to the Board: 2021
Member of the Audit Committee

Skills and experience:

Doctor of philosophy in computer science granted by De
Montfort University in the UK

Master of business administration degree granted by China
Europe International Business School in the PRC

Current appointments include:

Head of the investment management department of Huada
Director, CEC Huada International Co., Ltd.

Director, China Electronics Corporation (BVI) Holdings
Company Limited

Director of CEC Capital Management Co., Ltd.

Director of Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code: 600171).

Former appointments include:

Professional manager at the investment management
department of Huada

Supervisor of Beijing Huada Zhibao Electronic System Co., Ltd.
Supervisor of China Electronics Smart Card Co., Ltd.
Supervisor of Advanced Semiconductor Manufacturing
Corporation Limited

Director of GTA Semiconductor Co., Ltd.

Director of the Shanghai branch office of China Fortune Land
Development Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange with stock code: 600340)

Various positions including as a senior consultant and the
general manager of the Shanghai branch office of CCID
Consulting Company Limited (a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange with stock code: 2176)
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. LEUNG Heung Ying, aged 59

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board: 2014

Chairman of the Audit Committee

Member of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Investment Committee

Skills and experience:

Received a bachelor’s degree from the University of Bradford,
United Kingdom, a master’s degree from London School of
Economics and Political Science of University of London, the
UK and a bachelor’s degree in Chinese Laws from Peking
University, the PRC

Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, as well as committee member of Hong
Kong Securities Professionals Association

Current appointments include:

Member of the Listing Review Committee of Stock Exchange
(appointed in July 2020)

Managing director and founder of Proton Capital Limited
Member of the Public Affairs Forum of the HKSAR Government
Committee member of the Political Consultative Committee of
Wu Hua County of Guangdong Province

Former appointments include:

Member to the Listing Committee of Stock Exchange (2010-
2016)

Executive director of Harmonic Strait Financial Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
with stock code: 0033)

Independent non-executive director of Creative Energy
Solutions Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange with stock code: 8109)

Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants Corporate Finance Committee, the Expert Panel
on Listing and the Advisory Committee on Listing and Takeover
Regulations
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT -

Independent Non-executive Directors
(continued)
Mr. SHEU Wei Fu, age 53

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board: 2014

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Member of the Nomination Committee and Audit Committee

Skills and experience:

Received a bachelor’s degree in business/managerial
economics from the University of California, San Diego

With over 18 years of high technology industry experience
focusing on strategy, business development and supply chain
integration for original development manufacturers and original
equipment manufacturers

Current appointments include:

Special Assistant to the Chairman & CEO (Strategy & Planning)
of Quanta Computer Inc.

Dr. CHAN Philip Ching Ho, age 73

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board: 2020

Member of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee, Audit Committee and Investment Committee

Skills and experience:

Received his bachelor of science degree in electrical engineer
from the University of California, Davis, the USA

Received his master of science degree in electrical engineering
and doctor in electrical engineering both from the University of
Illinois, Urbana-Champaign, the USA

Taught at the University of lllinois, Urbana-Champaign, the USA
for 3 years

Senior position for development and design of integrated
circuits in Intel Corporation for over 10 years

Current appointments include:

Founder and director of Apt Electronics Co., Ltd.
Member of the Committee on Innovation, Technology and Re-
industrialisation
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Independent Non-executive Directors
(continued)

Dr. CHAN Philip Ching Ho, age 73 (continued)

Former appointments include:

° Professor and the head of at the Department of Electronic
and Computer Engineering, the director of Nanoelectronics
Fabrication Facility of the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology (“HKUST”)

e Dean of the School of Engineering of HKUST and a chair
professor over the years

° Deputy President and Provost, a chair professor of Electronic
& Information Engineering (EIE) department of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (“HKPU”) and a council member of
HKPU until his retirement from HKPU in March 2020

e Director of Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology
Research Institute Company Limited and the chairman of its
technology committee, a director of Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited, and a member of the
Vocational Training Council.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, each of the Directors (i) has
no relationship with any directors, senior management or substantial
shareholders or controlling shareholders (as defined respectively in
the Listing Rules) of the Company, (ii) is not interested or deemed to
be interested, nor has short positions, in shares, underlying shares,
or debenture of the Company or any of its associated corporations
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, (iii) does not hold any
positions within the Company or other members of the Group, and
(iv) has not been a director of any listed companies in the past three
years. Moreover, none of the Directors has been involved in any of
the events under Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.

Founder and Chairman Emeritus

Dr. LEUNG Kwong Wai, JP, aged 66, is the Founder and Chairman
Emeritus of the Group.

Company Secretary

Mr. YU Chon Man, aged 45, Finance Director and Company
Secretary. Mr. Yu joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2022. Mr. Yu
is also the Authorized Representative of the Company pursuant to
Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Yu replaced Mr. Ho Yu Hong, Victor who resigned as Company
Secretary of the Company with effective from 6 July 2022. Please
refer to the paragraphs headed “Senior Management” for Mr. Yu’s
biography.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMEN'F

Senior Management

Mr. WANG Wah Chi, Raymond
Please refer to the details of Executive Directors in page 25

Dr. WU Wenchi, aged 54, Vice President, Design Engineering.
Dr. Wu joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2017. Prior to joining
the company, Dr Wu was assistant general manager of Socle
Technology Corporation. Dr. Wu holds a doctorate degree in
electrical engineering from the National Central University in Taiwan.

Ms. LO Oi Yee, Mabel, aged 58, Human Resources Director. Ms. Lo
joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2000 as Human Resources
Manager. Ms. Lo holds a master degree in Human Resources &
Training from University of Leicester, the UK, and has over 30 years
of human resources management experience.

Mr. YU Chon Man, aged 45, Finance Director, Company Secretary,
and Authorized Representative of the Company pursuant to Rule
3.05 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Yu holds a degree in accountancy
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow member
in the Association of Certified Public Accountants, CPA Australia
and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. YU has more than 20 years of experience in capital market
management, Initial Public Offering, financial reporting and financial
management. Before joining the Company, he was a chief financial
officer and company secretary of a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. Apart from that, he also worked in an
international audit firm for approximately eight years. Mr. YU is
currently an independent non-executive director and chairman of
audit committee of Luxxu Group Limited, a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange with stock code 1327.

Mr. WONG Ka Kei, aged 57, Planning & Customer Services
Director. Mr. Wong joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2005 as
Business Process Solutions Manager. Mr. Wong holds a master
degree in Information Systems Management from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology, and has over 30 years
customers’ service and logistics management experience in
semiconductors industry.

Mr. PANG Tat Kwong, age 58, Quality & Manufacturing Director.
Mr. Pang joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2019. Mr. Pang holds
a master degree in Engineering Management from City University of
Hong Kong, and has over 30 years quality management experience
in semiconductors industry.
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Company culture

Our vision is to provide the ultimate silicon solution for every display
system.

There are three pillars that serve as the foundation of our company
culture to support our pursuit of our vision:

Innovative: We continue to innovate and create new
technologies that will improve our product offerings. From
electronic shelf labels (ESL), e-Paper display driver ICs to touch
and display drive integration, we have continuously invested
in our R&D, and sought to secure first-mover advantage in
new markets. Currently we possess over 660 patent registered
worldwide.

Talent-oriented: People are critical to our success. We have
built a highly qualified and experienced workforce: as of 31
December 2022, among our employees, 88% hold a bachelor’s
degree or above, and 29% have earned a master’s degree
or higher academic qualifications; 64% are engineers who
specialize in product design and development. To retain talents
and encourage them to thrive, we offer various incentives such
as bonus and share options to our employees.

Responsive: Semiconductor technologies are ever evolving.
We always keep an eye on the latest development to capture
business opportunities. We also closely monitor the trends
in material and logistics costs with a view to maintaining the
competitiveness of our products.

We are committed to cultivating a strong company culture that is
built on the above core values which will enable to the Company to
offer sustainable growth and return to our shareholders.
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Corporate governance practices

The Board and the management of the Group are committed to
achieving and maintaining high standards of corporate governance
and continuously improve these standards, which the Group
considers as critical in safeguarding the integrity of its business
operations and maintaining investors’ trust in the Company,
and good corporate governance is indispensable for long-term
business success and sustainable performance of the Group.
The management also actively and constantly observes the latest
corporate governance developments in Hong Kong and overseas,
particularly those in the UK and the USA.

The Company has adopted and applied the corporate governance
principles that emphasize a quality board, effective internal controls,
stringent disclosure practices, transparency and accountability. The
Company has complied with all the applicable Code Provisions in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2022. To
maintain high standards of corporate governance, the Company
has adopted the recommended best practices in the Code where
appropriate. In addition, the Company is committed to continuously
improving these practices and inculcating an ethical corporate
culture.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code for Directors’
securities transactions. All the Directors have confirmed their
compliance with the required standards set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2022. Regarding the shares
held by the Directors, the details are listed in the “Report of the
Directors” from pages 58 to 69 of this Annual Report. Pursuant to
the Code Provision C.1.3, the Company established its own written
guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code for
Directors and relevant employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information in respect of their dealings in the
securities of the Company. All Directors and relevant employees
conformed to the Group’s own guidelines throughout the year 2022.
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Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management of the
Company’s business and affairs with the goal of maximizing long-
term value for shareholders, while balancing broader stakeholder
interests. Schedule of matters reserved for the Board include:

e  Strategy and management

e Group structure and capital

e  Financial reporting and control
e |Internal controls

° Major contracts

e  Corporate communications

° Board membership and other appointments
e  Remuneration

e  Authority and delegation

e  Corporate governance

e  Company policies

Matters not specifically reserved for the Board and relate
primarily to the daily operations of the Group are delegated to the
management under the supervision and leadership of the CEO.

Board Composition

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises one
Executive Director, three Non-executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The size and composition
of the Board are reviewed from time to time, taking into account
the scope and nature of the Company’s operations, to ensure that
the size of the Board is adequate to provide a diversity of views
and facilitate effective decision-making. The biographical details
of all Directors and the relationships among them, if any, are set
out in the “Board of Directors and Senior Management” on pages
24 to 31 of this Annual Report and the Company’s website. Except
as disclosed in the section of “Board of Directors and Senior
Management”, none of the Directors has any financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships among members
of the Board and the Company has received annual confirmation
of independence from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors. Accordingly, the Board considers that all Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent as defined in the Listing
Rules.
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The Company is committed to selecting the most appropriate
persons as members of the Board for the role. Since 2013, the
Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which has been
published on the Company’s website for better transparency and
corporate governance.

The selection of Board members is based on a range of diverse
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates can bring to the Board.

To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board has
delegated specific functions to four Board Committees. The
principal Board Committees are the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Investment Committee,
details of which are as follows:
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EEEONEESEESERISEHE  UE
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Date of Date of
first appointment last re-election
to the Board as Director Audit  Remuneration ~ Nomination  Investment
Position Gender  Ethnicity hge EREZEE BiE-REEER Committee  Committee  Committee  Committee
Bl . Fh EZEfENAN  AESMAN ghzee  FNZEE  R4ZRe REZef
Mr. Ma Yuchuan Non-executive Director/
Chairman Male Chinese 58 14 March 2018 22 June 2022
ET)ixs FUNESIR ] B\ 201853514R 2022567228 ¢ |
Mr. Wang Hui Non-executive Director ~ Male Chingse 401 April 2021 27 May 2021
£l 5 FU7ES g I AR1E4R1A AR1E5A2TR | |
Dr. Kang Jian Non-executive Director ~ Male Chinse 41 3 November 2021 22 June 2022
BHRL Fufes g I 2021%11A3A 20E6R2R |
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Executive Director/CEO
Raymond Male Chinese 56 20 March 2019 22 June 2022
IESRL YrESIHES b £\ 2019%35208 202256528 C
Mr. Leung Heung Ying  Independent Non-executive
Director Male  Chinese 59 8 October 2014 22 June 2022
RERRE BlunEs g I\ 2014510888 2F6A2A c | | |
Mr. Sheu Wei Fu Independent Non-executive
Director Male Chinese 53 8 October 2014 27 May 2021
HEREE BUFHES ] £\ 2014£1038A 2021558278 | C |
Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho  Independent
Non-executive Director ~ Male Chinese 73 10 December 2020 27 May 2021
RIZfL BikynEs g 9\ 200F128108 2RISR | | | |

C - chairman of the committee Z8 & % &
\ - member of the committee Z5 £ 5

The Company has taken appropriate insurance cover to indemnify
our Directors against possible claims and liabilities arising out of the
Group’s business and activities.
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Board meetings and Board practices

The Board has scheduled to meet for at least four times a year,
and the Board will also meet on other occasions when a board-
level decision on a particular matter is required. The meetings are
structured to allow open discussion. All Directors participate to
discuss the strategy, operational and financial performance and
internal control of the Group.

The Company Secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
assists the Chairman to prepare the agenda of the meetings and
each Director may request to include any relevant matters on the
agenda. Generally, at least 14 days’ notice is given for the regular
meetings by the Company. All substantive agenda items have
comprehensive briefing papers, which are, in general, circulated
three days before convening each Board meeting.

The Company Secretary is responsible for distributing detailed
documents to the Directors prior to the Board meetings to ensure
that the Directors are able to make informed decisions regarding
the matters discussed in the meetings so that they may receive
accurate, timely and clear information.

Minutes of the Board, Board Committee and General Meetings
are kept by the Company Secretary and are made available and
circulated to all Directors periodically.

All Directors may access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance and
regulatory matters. The Company Secretary is also responsible
for ensuring the procedures of the Board meetings are observed
and providing the Board with opinions on matters in relation to the
compliance with the procedures of the Board meetings.

Directors are able, upon reasonable request, to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses. The Board shall resolve to provide separate appropriate
independent professional advice to the Directors to assist the
relevant Directors to discharge their duties.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board, the Company will deal
with the matter by a physical board meeting rather than written
resolution or a Board Committee (except if that Board Committee
was specifically established for such purpose). Independent Non-
executive Directors with no material interest in the matter will attend
the meeting to deal with the matter if it is considered appropriate.
Other than the exceptional criteria allowed under the Listing Rules,
any Director who or whose associates have any material interest in
any proposed Board resolutions will not be counted as a quorum
in the relevant Board meeting or no vote for the relevant Board
resolutions.

All the Board Committees adopted the same principles and
procedures used in the Board meetings.
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The Board is of the view that the following mechanisms adopted by
the Company are effective in ensuring that independent views and
inputs are available to the Board:

e The Board comprises a majority of Non-executive Directors.

e The terms of appointment of all Non-executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors would not be more than
nine consecutive years.

e In appraising suitability of the Director candidates, the
Board will consider their profiles, including their experience,
qualifications and time commitment; the Board will also
consider to the Board’s overall composition and skill matrix as
well as the Company’s diversity policy.

° The Board will review each Director’s time commitment to the
Company’s business annually.

e The Board will assess Non-executive Directors’ independence
upon appointment and annually.

e Directors are required to abstain from voting in matters in which
he has material interest.

e Directors can upon reasonable request seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expenses to discharge
their duties.

The quality of deliberations at meetings of the Board are reviewed
during the annual evaluation of the Board’s performance.

The Board, supported by the Audit Committee, regularly accesses
the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control system and considers it to be adequate and effective. The
review covers all material risks, including ESG risks, and controls
including financial, operational, information technology and
compliance controls, and risk management functions. The Board is
not aware of any significant area of concern which may affect the
shareholders. The Board is satisfied that the Company has fully
complied with the code of provisions on internal controls as set
forth in the Code.
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Board meetings, Board Committees EESER ESZEEEERK
meetings and General Meetings BRERXE

The attendance of Directors at Board meetings, Board Committees AEEEEHFENEETSSE -ESZE8SS
meetings and General Meetings during the year are set out below: BERBRREAEFHBIINRT xR

Annual  Extraordinary Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination  Investment
General General Board  Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
EZe  ENZET  HMZEE  R#ZBE  REZEE
RRBEAE REHBIAE 83 EE ] EE ] 83 83
Number of meetings held BeERY 1 1 4 3 1 1 00
Number of meetings attended/Eligible to attend in 2022
Members of the Board  E-0 LESERY 0NFHEERLRES
Non-executive Directors F417E3
Mr. Ma Yuchuan (Chairman) EXIREER) 11 11 414 1M NATER
Mr. Wang Hui I%s 17 17 44 17 N/A TR
Dr. Kang Jian ERIEL 11 11 4/4 3/3
Executive Director BhEES
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond (CEO) IEFEE(THER) 11 11 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BUkHTES
Mr. Leung Heung Ying PERY 2 1 1 4/4 33 1 1M NATER
Mr. Sheu Wei Fu XL N il 4/4 33 il N
Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho RESHEL il il 4/4 3/3 il 17 N/A TiE A

() No Investment Committee meeting was held during the year under review (i) ~HIRESE K EBRRHEZZIEXTEE
as no proper investment plan and strategies were sound to propose to the B REOBFE UWEEHKEZSEEEE -
Board.

Pursuant to the Code Provision C.1.6, Independent Non-executive IRIEFAMEXHECA6IF BUFHITEER
Directors and Non-executive Directors should attend general FHITEEERHFERREARE o RIFELAMHIRK
meetings. According to the above table, all the Independent Non- ZAATFEBILFHTES kHTESEH
executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and the Executive {TEZBHC HFE2022RRBERS I EEARLD
Director were present at the 2022 AGM and available to answer TR ZMEE o

questions from shareholders of the Company.
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Directors’ Continuous Training and
Development

The Group has been responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions
and duties of a listed company director, to all the Directors. All the
Directors understand that they should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that they are equipped with all information
required for making relevant contributions to the Board.

The Company provides various guideline materials to Directors, for
instance, Directors’ duties and responsibilities, the relevant laws
and regulations applicable to Directors and duty of disclosure of
interest and business of the Group. Every newly appointed Director
will receive a comprehensive induction session at his appointment.
All Directors are encouraged to have continuous professional
development to enhance and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Mr. Ma Yuchuan, Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond, Dr. Kang Jian,
Mr. Wang Hui, Mr. Leung Heung Ying, Mr. Sheu Wei Fu and Dr.
Chan Philip Ching Ho attended seminars or read materials on
corporate governance, updates on laws, rules and regulations and
other professional skills. Directors were also encouraged to take
educational courses on duties of the directors.

The Board has received from each of the Directors (Independent
Non-executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and the Executive
Director) a record of the trainings received for the year ended 2022
indicating their compliance to Code Provision C.1.4.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles and responsibilities of the Non-executive Chairman,
Mr. Ma Yuchuan, and the CEO, Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond
are segregated as stipulated in the Listing Rules, to ensure an
appropriate balance of power, increased accountability and greater
capacity of the Board for independent decision-making.

The Non-executive Chairman, Mr. Ma Yuchuan, is responsible for
ensuring that all Directors act in the best interest of shareholders.
Acting independently from the Company, he is fully accountable
to the shareholders and contributes to the Board and the Group
on all top-level or strategic decisions. Specifically, he is assigned
with three key roles to perform, namely leading the Board, ensuring
the Group’s effective communication with shareholders and
implementing a high standard of corporate governance.

Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond, as CEO, is responsible for managing
the Group and executing the strategies adopted by the Board.
He leads the Group’s management team in accordance with the
directions set by the Board. He is responsible for ensuring that
a proper internal control system is in place and that the Group’s
business conforms to applicable laws and regulations. The CEO
chairs the monthly operations and financial reviews and also
the weekly management staff meetings, as well as the quarterly
employees’ communication meeting.
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Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and
Removal

At every annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director
shall retire from office at least once every three years or within such
other period as the rules of the Stock Exchange may from time to
time prescribe. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and
shall continue to act as a Director at the annual general meeting at
which he retires.

In order to promote the independence of Non-executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors, the Company
implemented the policy regarding the terms of office of Non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
(“Service Term Policy”). The terms of appointment of all Non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
should not be more than nine consecutive years. They should not
offer themselves for re-election for any period beyond the annual
general meeting at which they retire.

Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills, industry
and business experience to the Group. The composition of
Executive and Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) demonstrates a strong independent element
on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgment
pursuant to the Code Provision B.1 so as to further strengthen the
Company’s corporate governance. The Non-executive Directors are
of sufficient caliber and number for their views to carry weight. At
least once a year, Non-executive Directors and also Independent
Non-executive Directors will have a private discussion with the
Chairman on the Group’s matters. In addition, Non-executive
Directors, according to the Group’s policy, may approach the
Group’s employees at anytime they think appropriate. During the
year, the Group’s management also met with certain Non-executive
Directors to seek their views on certain business or operational
matters.

During the year 2022, the Board had a total of three Independent
Non-executive Directors and they represented more than one-third
of the Board, which is a sufficient number to meet the minimum
requirements under Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

All Independent Non-executive Directors bring their wealth of
experience to the Board and make active contributions to the
Group. They closely monitor the Group’s development and freely
express their opinions at the Board meetings. All Independent Non-
executive Directors, except as disclosed in this Annual Report,
do not have any business with or financial interests in the Group
and confirmed their independence to the Group pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises one Non-executive
Director and three Independent Non-executive Directors. A majority
of the votes in the Remuneration Committee are exercisable by
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Committee does not
deal with the remuneration of Non-executive Directors which shall
be a matter for the Executive Directors of the Board. No Director
or senior executive will be involved in any discussion in connection
with his or her own remuneration. The Committee also consults
the Chairman about their proposals relating to the remuneration of
other Executive Directors and has access to professional advice if
considered necessary. The Committee consulted the head of human
resources in respect of human resources policy and market as well
as other company information.

The meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall normally be
held not less than once a year to review and approve principally
the remuneration of Executive Directors of the Company. As
recommended by the Committee and approved by the Board, the
Committee, currently chaired by Mr. Sheu Wei Fu, has delegated
to the CEO the authority to approve the remuneration of all the
employees of the Group below the rank of Executive Director. Policy
related remuneration schemes will be decided by the Remuneration
Committee. No remuneration has been paid to Non-executive
directors.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

e To determine the framework and broad policy for the
remuneration of Directors, senior management and general
staff

e To establish guidelines for the recruitment of the Chief
Executive Officer and senior management

e To approve the policy and structure for the remuneration of
Directors (including Non-executive Directors) whilst ensuring no
Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own
remuneration

e To determine the remuneration of Executive Directors including
benefits in kind, pension right and compensation payment

e To review and approve the compensation arrangements
in connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment, or dismissal or removal for misconduct to
Executive Directors and senior management to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not
excessive

e To review the criteria for assessing the performance of the
Executive Directors and/or senior management which should
reflect the Company’s business objectives and targets

e To determine the annual performance bonus for Executive
Directors and review the annual performance bonus for senior
management achievements against the performance criteria
and by reference to market norms
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Remuneration Committee (continued)

e To review and/or make recommendation to the Board on the
matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules

e To engage such external professional advisors to assist and/or
advise the Remuneration Committee on issues as it considers
necessary

In 2022, the Remuneration Committee confirmed the remuneration
policy for the Executive Directors, assessed their performances as
well as reviewed their employment contracts with the Group. Details
of remuneration of Directors and the senior management are set
out in notes 11 and 35(b) of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements section.
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The remuneration of the members of the senior management of the #{Z2022F 12831 It FEREEEHREH
Group by band for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out ZESREEEXEMNIESEHINWOT :
below:

Number of
Remuneration bands persons
B < &5 = A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 #%1,000,000/& T 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017& 7t £2,000,0007& 7T 4
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7t £2,500,0007%& T 1
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001yt £6,000,0007& 5T 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 10 and 11 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one Non-executive Director
and three Independent Non-executive Directors, with a majority
being Independent Non-executive Directors. The Committee
generally meets before the annual general meeting, or at other times
as required by the Chairman of the Committee. The Committee will
nominate such candidates for the Board to consider, and regularly
review the composition of the Board as well as make suggestions
on any change that may be required.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

° To review the structure, size and composition of the Board at
least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to implement the Company’s corporate
strategy

e To assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

e To identify and nominate candidates to the Board for it to
appoint or to recommend to shareholders for election
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Nomination Committee (continued)

e  To regularly review the time required from a Director to perform
his responsibilities

e To make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the succession planning for the Chairman, the Chief
Executive Officer as well as the senior management

e To review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and the
progress on achieving the objectives set for implementing the

policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy to set out the criteria
and process in the nomination and appointment of Directors, and
to ensure the balance of skills and experience and diversity of the
Board and the Board’s continuity.

The ultimate responsibility for selection and appointment of the
Director rests with the entire Board; the Nomination Committee has
been delegated the responsibility and authority to assess and select
potential Director candidates.

In assessing a Director candidate’s suitability, the Nomination
Committee will consider, among other things, reputation for
integrity, qualifications, skills, knowledge, experience, willingness
and ability to devote adequate time to discharge his duties as
Director, independence, diversity, etc.

The Director nomination procedures and process are set out in
the Company’s nomination policy (which can be found in the
Company’s website), which are summarized below:

° The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should, upon
receipt of the proposal on appointment of new director and the
biographical information (or relevant details) of the candidate,
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out in
the nomination policy to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

e |f the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should rank them by
order of preference based on the needs of the Company and
reference check of each candidate (where applicable).

e The Nomination Committee should then recommend to the
Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for directorship, as
applicable.
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Nomination Committee (continued)

e For any person that is nominated by a shareholder of the
Company for election as a director at the general meeting of
the Company (please refer to the Company’s website for the
relevant procedures), the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as
set out above to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship.

e  Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should make recommendation to the shareholders in
respect of the proposed election of director at the general
meeting.

The Company also recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. In this
connection, the Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy (which
can be found in the Company’s website) to set out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against appropriate criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

The Company commits to selecting the best person for the role.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

See the paragraph headed “Board Composition” for the composition
of the Board.

In 2022, the Nomination Committee reviewed the policy for the
nomination of Directors, the nomination procedures, the process
and criteria to select and recommend candidate for directorship and
the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee considers
that the current Board composition has provided the Company with
a good balance and diversity of skills and experiences appropriate
for the business of the Company.

As regards the diversity of the Board, it is noted that the Board
currently comprises male Directors only. In this regard, the Board
will commence the process to identify potential Director candidates
in 2023 and appoint at least a director of a different gender on the
Board no later than 31 December 2024.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness. The Nomination
Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.

CRERRE

h%iﬁ (%)

;TEAEIZIK’Ajﬂxiim%E’D\THﬁ%k‘%L
ERRESNEMAL (HEEFFES
ZJK’AT,%HJE REEEE &/‘E%Eé
ERE HMREFAZREA  UHBEZ
REARSE ﬁ%*ﬁ?ﬁﬁcé%f’

e HEERAT REZEER REZE
EERRAS LMEZENESERQRR

EHERE-

ARBERVLEIBERS T LESSURS
REEENHRE HERHSTH ESSRAES
LR (JERD B4 EERH) - &5
ESSERZTNEE-

ATERTEHERTENEE AQARBE
EEEEMNS TItER AR EEREEK
EEMUBERRENELREE - Fﬁﬁ%%%ﬂ’ﬂ
ZEBENTAEBNER  SREBENE
/’Eiﬁﬂi BA BEBEEEZEESEZZ TN
53

$"77¥<Eﬁ EEREAEZ -BREBER EX
LB BB AIBMRBFR - RBEANE

BRERSESZ TR  BHEEFRRMK
B FER > EERAER - REREZER
FBREASDESETRNEZRERM -

20226  REEERCRNEERSHE -
REREEREARTESNESRES AR
REENUREERRES TLHE - REES
g5 EEREAMNREASBALDEMR
?@&%nﬁmﬁ ERER  BAAATER
Fi o

BEREEEMNZ Tt EBEIENR E5T
BRAIfEMEMESAR - ELITH EBEH
R2023FHBYBEEESREA  LELR
2024F12A31BZAIZE—REHES -

REZEEKEEERBERIESERES T
LR - BUBRZBRASEME - REZE
ERENWEMNIFELEINEE  BOE
$‘§Tmtﬂﬂi‘nﬁ_ ZRER -

R ERERAR o 2022658 45




-. “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A\'/‘- \\
TRERRSE

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee comprises one Executive Director,
two Non-executive Directors and two Independent Non-executive
Directors. It shall meet at the request of any member of the
Committee and its meetings will be facilitated by the Finance
Director, who will also participate in the discussion.

The Investment Committee, currently chaired by Mr. Wang Wah
Chi, Raymond, will evaluate and approve any strategic investment
of US$2 million or less. Any strategic investment exceeding
that amount will be proposed by the Committee for the Board’s
approval. The Committee is authorized, at the expense of the
Group, to seek external professional advice it considers necessary
and to arrange external advisers to attend its meetings. The
Committee will also periodically report the status and performance
of investments to the Board.

The main duties of the Investment Committee are as follows:
e To assist the Board in discharging its duties and responsibilities
in relation to investment activities (excluding treasury or cash

management)

e To assist the Board with all of its policy setting responsibilities
related to investment

e To establish and document the basic investment principles and
beliefs held by the Committee as well as the Code of Conduct
for avoiding possible conflict of interest

e To have all necessary access and authority to seek information
from management to fulfill its objectives, duties and responsibilities

e To review the appointment of external professional advisers
e To review and monitor investment performance

e To review and advise on additions to and dispositions of
existing investments

e To review annually the terms of reference of the Committee and
to recommend to the Board any required changes

e To submit an annual work report to the Board summarizing the
Committee’s activities, findings, recommendations and results
for the past year

No investment committee meeting held during the year under review
since there were no proper investment plan and strategies.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors and one Non-executive Director and is chaired by
Mr. Leung Heung Ying (“Mr. Leung”). Mr. Leung is a fellow member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has
many years of corporate finance experience at company board level.
Mr. Leung meets the requirement of having appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules for the purpose of
such appointment.

The Audit Committee meets not less than twice a year to review
and discuss the internal audit findings, internal controls, corporate
governance, interim and annual consolidated financial statements
respectively. It may hold additional meetings from time to time to
discuss special projects or other issues it considers necessary. The
independent auditor and internal auditor of the Group may request a
meeting if they consider it necessary.

The Audit Committee will conduct, on behalf of the Board, annual
review of the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff for the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and training programs and budget.

The authorities of the Audit Committee include (i) investigating any
activity within its terms of reference; (ii) seeking any information it
requires from any employee; and (iii) obtaining outside legal or other
independent professional advice if required.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

e To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the independent auditor, and
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
independent auditor, and deal with any question of resignation
or dismissal of that auditor

e To review with the Group’s management, independent auditor
and internal auditor, the adequacy of the Group’s policies and
procedures regarding risk management and internal control
systems, and any statement by the Directors to be included in
the annual accounts prior to endorsement by the Board

e To review independent auditor’s independence, objectivity,
effectiveness of the audit process and the scope of the
independent audit including the engagement letter, prior to
commencement of audit
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Audit Committee (continued)

To review the annual, quarterly (if any) and interim financial
reports prior to approval by the Board and liaise with the Board
and senior management, and the Committee must meet, at
least twice a year, with the independent auditor

To evaluate the cooperation received by the independent
auditor; obtain the comments of management regarding the
responsiveness of the independent auditor to the Group’s
needs; inquire the independent auditor as to whether there
have been any disagreements with the management which
if not satisfactorily resolved would result in the issue of a
qualified report on the Group’s financial statements

To seek from the independent auditor, on an annual basis,
information about policies and processes for maintaining
independence and monitoring compliance with relevant
requirements, including provision of non-audit services and
requirements regarding rotation of audit partners and staff

To review and monitor the scope, effectiveness and results
of internal audit function, ensure co-ordination between the
internal and independent auditors and ensure that the internal
audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Group

To discuss with management the scope and quality of systems
of internal control and ensure that management has discharged
its duty to have an effective internal control system including
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programs and budget

To review the findings of internal investigations and the
management’s response into any suspected frauds or
irregularities or failures of internal controls or infringements of
laws, rules and regulations

To consider other topics, as defined by the Board

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended
31 December 2022 to review and discuss the financial results and
reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal
control system and risk management review and process, to
evaluate the effectiveness of internal audit function by reviewing the
work performed by Corporate Audit Section and to re-appoint of the
independent auditor of the Group.
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Audit Committee (continued)

As the Audit Committee is also responsible for corporate governance
duties, the Committee performed the following duties during the year
ended 31 December 2022:

e  To note the amendments to Corporate Governance Code under
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules from time to time in particular
in the area of risk management, and to review the Group’s
policies and practices on corporate governance to ensure
compliance

e To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management

e To review and monitor the policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements

e To review and monitor the Code of Conduct applicable to
employees and the Directors

e To review the compliance with the Code Provisions and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report

ESG Task Force Committee

Pursuant to Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules, an ESG Task Force
Committee was established in 2021 under the delegated authority
of the Board. The ESG Task Force Committee was chaired by
the Executive Director of the Company working on promoting
and implementing various activities and measures regarding
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) matters. The
Committee members include the Company Secretary, the Human
Resources Director, heads of various operational departments,
Corporate Internal Audit Manager and Corporate Communication
Manager. The Committee meets at least once annually and a
separate ESG Report has been published on the same date as this
Annual Report. During the year under review, the Directors and
members of the ESG Task Force Committee had received a formal
training on anti-corruption.

The main duties of the Committee are as follows:

e Formulate and review the Group’s responsibilities, visions,
strategies, frameworks, principles and policies of ESG related
issues and implement relevant policies;

e Set, implement and oversee ESG relevant targets, key
performance indicators and measures that align with the
Group’s business model and effectively monitor the progress;

° Identify ESG related issues arising from external factors;

e Organize and monitor staff trainings related to ESG matters;

e Assist in the preparation of the Group’s annual ESG report
and submit it to the Board for their review and approval for
publication; and

° Report any new development of matters with its terms of
reference to the Board when necessary.
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Accountability and Audit

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the consolidated
financial statements of the annual and interim reports. The Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis, with supporting assumptions or qualifications as
necessary. When the Directors are aware of material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, such
uncertainties will be clearly and prominently set out and discussed
at length in this Corporate Governance Report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Group’s independent auditor is Ernst & Young. Ernst & Young
is responsible for auditing and forming an independent opinion on
the Group’s annual consolidated financial statements. Apart from
the statutory audit of the annual consolidated financial statements,
Ernst & Young was also engaged to perform a review on the
condensed consolidated interim financial information of the Group
for the six months ended 30 June 2022 as well as advise the Group
on taxation and related matters.

The fees payable by the Group to the independent auditor in
respect of audit and non-audit services (including tax advisory
service) provided by them for the year ended 31 December 2022
are US$148,000 (2021: US$139,000) and US$96,000 (2021:
US$102,000) respectively.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Board
on governance matters and should also facilitate induction and
continuous training of Directors. In 2022, the Company Secretary
has undertaken more than 15 hours of relevant professional training
which exceeded the requirement of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has full access to the advices and services of the
Company Secretary.

Diversity of workforce

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total workforce of 294
employees, of which 64% (188) are males, and 36% (106) are
females. Among the senior management team of 6 members, 5 of
them are males and the remaining one is female.

While we believe our future employee recruitment should
predominantly be based on merit and do not consider it appropriate
to set any target gender ratio for our workforce, we recognize
and embrace the benefits of having a diverse workforce, and will
continue to enhance the diversity of our workforce, subject to
availability of suitable candidates.
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Shareholders’ Rights and Investor Relations

Shareholders’ rights of the Company are at all times highly
regarded by the Group. The Group will make sure the Company’s
shareholders know how to exercise their rights. The Group provides
effective channels for the Company’s shareholders to communicate
their ideas to the Group and exert their rights.

General meetings can be convened on the written requisition of any
two or more members of the Company (or, in the case of a member
being a recognized clearing house (or its nominee) any one member
of the Company) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.

The requisition shall be deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to
have such a principal office, the registered office, specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist(s).

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held
within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner,
as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened
by the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

The Company amended the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company in order to bring the same in line with
the recent amendments to the Listing Rules and Companies Law of
the Cayman Island, and the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) in 2014.

With regard to general enquiry, a shareholder may contact the
Company’s Share Registrar directly. Information on proceedings
at general meetings, votes of members, proxies, dividends and
reserves, transfer of shares and other information are detailed in
the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, which
is accessible for inspection at the Company’s Share Registrar,
through website of the Group or the website of the Stock Exchange.
The contact details of the Share Registrar is on page 178 of this
Annual Report. In the event that a shareholder wishes to put forward
a proposal to the Board or at a shareholders’ meeting, he may
put forth his enquiry in writing to the Corporate Communications
Section of the Group who will act on the subject matter accordingly.
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Shareholders Communication

The Company considers that communication with its shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and its shareholders’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Board adopted a Shareholders’ Communication Policy,
which is published on the Company website, reflecting mostly
the current practices of the Company for communication with
its shareholders. Such policy aims at providing the shareholders
and potential investors with ready and timely access to balanced
and understandable information of the Company. The Board will
regularly reviewed the policy and considered the effectiveness and
compliance with the prevailing regulatory and other requirements.

For the year under review, the Group has taken a proactive approach
to communicate with the investment community, for example,
institutional investors, analysts and retail investors. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Group conducted meetings and
conference calls with investors and analysts. To enhance the Group’s
profile among the general public in Hong Kong, interviews were
conducted with local media, and group visits to its principal office
were arranged with local universities and technology institutions.

The views of investors are invaluable to the Company. To improve
its communication with investors, the Company has been collecting
ideas from shareholders and feedback from the investment
community. The Company also appreciates the opportunity to meet
shareholders face-to-face. The Company’s Articles of Association
has accommodated the use of websites for communication with
shareholders since 2009.

The Company establishes different communication channels with
shareholders and investors, including (i) annual reports, interim
reports, notices of meetings, circulars and proxy forms which are
required under the Listing Rules. Shareholders can also choose (or
are deemed to have consented) to receive such documents using
electronic means through the Company’s website; (ii) the annual
general meeting which provides a forum for shareholders to raise
comments and exchange views with the Board; (iii) the Company’s
website which provides updated and key information on the Group
and offers a communication channel between the Company and its
shareholders and stakeholders; (iv) media conferences and briefing
meetings with analysts to be held to update interested parties on
the performance of the Group; (v) the Company’s Registrar which
deals with shareholders for share registration and related matters;
and (vi) the Corporate Communications Section of the Group which
handles enquiries from shareholders and investors generally.
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Shareholders Communication (continued)

The Board has reviewed the shareholder communication policy and
considered that it is effective and properly implemented.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, as at 31 December 2022,
Huada/CEC held about 28.3% of the Company’s shares, the Board
held roughly 0.9%, and the remaining approximately 70.8%, is
believed to be in public hands.

The website of the Group (www.solomon-systech.com) is also
updated constantly to inform investors and the general public of
the latest information of the Group, for example, the important
dates for shareholders in the coming year. Further information for
shareholders can be found on pages 178 to 180 of this Annual
Report.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy in January 2019,
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute
dividends to the Shareholders, to provide stable and sustainable
returns to the Shareholders.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of
final dividend will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, inter alia, the Group’s operations and earnings, the
general financial condition of the Group, the cash requirements and
availability and any other factors that the Board thinks appropriate
from time to time.

The Company’s ability to pay dividends is also subject to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, all relevant applicable laws, rules
and regulations in Cayman Islands.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has responsibilities for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The risk management and internal control systems within
the Group are designed to help the Group achieve key initiatives,
and represent the Group’s efforts in protecting its physical assets,
information and technology. As maintaining an effective control
system is a shared responsibility of all in the Group, the Group is
dedicated to educating all employees via trainings to ensure they
understand the importance of internal control policies and adhere to
them.

To facilitate effective internal control system, the Group adopted
the Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by COSO.
The presence of risk management and internal control systems
empowers the Group to implement best business practices in
dynamic and challenging business environments.

The Group implemented the ‘Three Lines of Defence’ model as a
way of explaining the relationship between functions and as a guide
to how responsibilities of risk management should be divided:

e Under the first line of defence, operational management
has ownership, responsibility and accountability for directly
assessing, controlling and mitigating risks;

e The second line of defence consists of activities covered by
components of internal governance (compliance, financial
controller, quality, IT and other control departments). This
line of defence monitors and facilitates the implementation
of effective risk management practices by operational
management and assists the risk owners in reporting adequate
risk related information up and down the organization; and

e Internal audit forms the Group’s third line of defence.
The Corporate Audit Section or outsourced internal audit
consultant, through a risk-based approach to its work, provides
reasonable assurance to the Group’s board of directors and
senior management.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

The Group takes proactive measures to identify, evaluate and
manage significant risks arising from its recurrent and growth
businesses and from the constantly changing business environment.
The Group uses risk management matrix to determine risk level.
Each risk is evaluated by the likelihood of the identified risk and the
consequence of the risk event. The risk ratings reflect the required
management attention and risk treatment effort. All risks are ranked
and their treatment is determined by a combination of likelihood and
consequence according to a risk matrix, which takes account of risk
appetite. Operation units and management held regular meetings to
review the progress of risk treatment actions and the effectiveness
of the risk management.

The board oversees the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis.

The Board reviewed and assessed twice a year the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems in audit
committee meetings for the year ended 31 December 2022,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management functions, by considering:

(a) the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks, and
the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its business and
the external environment;

(b) the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of
risks and of the internal control systems, and the work of its
internal audit function and independent auditor;

(c) the extent and frequency of communication of monitoring
results to the board which enables it to assess control of the
Group and the effectiveness of risk management;

(d) significant control failings or weaknesses that have been
identified during the period (if any). Also, the extent to which
they have resulted in unforeseen outcomes or contingencies
that have had, could have had, or may in the future have,
a material impact on the Group’s financial performance or
condition;

(e) the effectiveness of the Group’s processes for financial
reporting and Listing Rule compliance;

() the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training program and budget of the Groups’ accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions; and

(9) the proper handling and dissemination of inside information.

The Board also reviewed the Group’s operating and financial
performance against the financial budget on a quarterly basis while
senior management closely monitored the financial performance on
a monthly basis.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

The management is committed to improve the Group’s overall risk
management approach and strategy. They continuously monitors
the global business environment, industry development, as well
as internal processes, to ensure the existing risk management
and internal control systems can identify and manage risks and
opportunities effectively.

In 2022, the management reviewed the existing risk management
and internal control systems and certain modification of the system
have be implemented during the year under review. The Company
has engaged a consultant to tick off the assessment on Cyber
Security for vulnerability scanning and network infrastructure
penetration test. The management continues to review the adequacy
of its risk management and control framework and looks for
opportunities to make improvements and add appropriate resources
when necessary.

The Group has an independent Corporate Audit Section/outsourced
internal audit consultant, who will prepare regular report to the Audit
Committee. The Corporate Audit Section/outsourced internal audit
consultant provides an independent assessment of the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
in accordance with the Code, and assists the Audit Committee
to conduct regular reviews of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, which include the review of the
effectiveness of financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions. The Corporate Audit Section follows
a risk-based approach. Different audit areas are assigned with
different risk ratings and an audit plan is formulated accordingly so
that priority and appropriate audit frequency is given to areas with
higher risks. The annual work plan is reviewed and endorsed by the
Audit Committee. The Corporate Audit Section/outsourced internal
audit consultant conducts regular financial and operational reviews
on the Group and reports directly to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee regularly. The Corporate Audit Section monitors the
follow up actions agreed upon in response to its recommendations.

The Finance Director, after consulting the Corporate Audit section/
outsourced internal audit consultant updates CEO about the internal
audit working progress on a regular basis. The Audit Committee
reviews the work performed by Corporate Audit Section/outsourced
internal audit consultant and summary of major findings and
control weaknesses, if any, at least twice every year to ensure
the effectiveness of internal audit function, risk management and
internal control system.

The Group has established and published a whistleblowing policy
and a system on anti-fraud for employees and third parties to raise
concerns in confidence, which complied with the recommended
best practice in the Code. In 2022, no incident of fraud or
misconduct was reported from employees or stakeholders that
had material effect on the Group’s financial statements and overall
operations.

56

Solomon Systech (International) Limited e Annual Report 2022

b B K A RREE 12 (&)

EEERIREASENEERAREELHR
R o MM TEESIRREERE TERE
URABITERF  UERERRENEBREER
MEREEIE R A RE A R B K B R PR A S -

Roo22F - EEBECRNRENEREER
AMEERG  ETE-—SELLZRENER
ERERER - ARFAICEEBEBERB R
FRFEBRIESENCAERAZZETMG -
R EAERT AR ENEEREN TR
B BISRNEHE LERYTSENEE
BIR o

ZNEEB 2 3R 18 M K A 3 B K SIS TR R A R
B ERERBESREITEREZES - RE
ROMNEAELZEBRBLEE ATAEAE
B AR EE R AR RS R AT
BHEARREER  UHPEREZESETE
ANERASEzRAREEN AMEZER -
BEN% EERERBRMENEENRRE
B zHR AENECRRSER 2 F
% HARMNERID B0 TR ERFRK
HERGRARNEZALR HASARNIED
BETUBRBARBEZR 2B BREES
CEELRNEFEELGE - AFIRRINE
NHBEZEB TS ENAAEENTHEMEE
FEHEHREROERZESTIFERIRSE -
NEFRTEHZREAN T EBFLHEE -

BBEBRANER SERNIELERE
SEHOTRARERATTFEE - BRE
BEELBEMA  BERARNER IMERBRE
PEENITEIREECERERRERSH
(nA) EH R AREREFETHEE - ARE
BERADESRSENE RN -

AEBCHER ABEBEZHER KT
AHE ZFEIRFZFABPER AR
EEERETEE - R2022F » WEETHFH
FHIRIE M A ANEE P IEIRR R BB ETE
EEBREATENTTFRAETS



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT -~

Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

The Group also established policy on Protection of Proprietary
Information of the Group to ensure that the confidential proprietary
information, including business, technical, financial or personal
information that has significant value to Group are properly
protected.

The Board confirmed a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted and
considered that the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group in 2022 are effective and adequate and the Company
had complied with the Code Provisions.

The Board acknowledged the responsibility to review the effectiveness
of risk management and internal controls systems of the Group.
However, investors and shareholders are reminded that the systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change in the constitutional document of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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» REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2022.

Principal activities and geographical
analysis of operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 78.

The Board of the Company does not recommend the payment of a
final dividend.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to US$19,000 (2021: US$1,000).

Share capital

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2022,
comprising share premium reserve of US$103,676,000 that is
subject to the regulation of Section 34 of the Cayman lIslands
Companies Law and the Articles of Association of the Company, the
accumulated losses of US$102,747,000, totalling US$929,000 net
are available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders.

Equity linked agreements - Share options
granted to directors and employees

Details of the share options granted in prior years and current year
are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements and
“The Share Option Scheme” section contained in this Report of the
Directors. All the share options granted during the year are with
vesting conditions, there was no share issued for the year ended 31
December 2022 in respect of share options granted in 2022.
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Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there is no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Five-year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December is set out
on page 173.

Purchase, sale or redemption of Company’s
listed shares

Save in respect of the options granted and/or shares issued by the
Company pursuant to its share option scheme (the details of which
are disclosed below), there was no purchase, sale or redemption
of the Company’s listed shares by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Permitted indemnity provisions

Pursuant to the Company'’s Articles, subject to the provisions of the
statutes, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of
the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred
or sustained by him as a Director in defending any proceedings,
whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his favour,
or in which he is acquitted. The Company has taken appropriate
insurance cover to indemnify the Directors against possible claims
and liabilities arising out of the Group’s business and activities.
The relevant provisions in the Company’s Articles and the aforesaid
insurance were in force during the financial year ended 31
December 2022 and as of the date of this report.

The Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2013 Share
Option Scheme”) at the annual general meeting held on 28 May
2013. Details can be referred to in note 25(a) to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 158 to 162 of this Annual Report.

Valuation of share options

The Company uses Binomial Valuation Model to value the share
options granted. Details of the key parameters used in the Model and
the corresponding fair values of the share options granted during the
year should be referred to in note 25(a) to the consolidated financial
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statements. The details of the share options granted to the respective BEAA THBREFZBOT :
parties during 2022 and 2021 are as follows:
2022 2021
Number Number
(in thousand (in thousand
units) Value units) Value
% EE yE e
(AFAz5t) SrESn (AF st SV
Leung Heung Ying RZH 800 22 800 27
Sheu Wei Fu ATAEX 800 22 800 27
Chan, Philip Ching Ho RIS 800 22 800 27
Wang Wah Chi, Raymond TES 3,000 83 3,000 101
Subtotal for Directors £\ 5,400 149 5,400 182
Senior management SREEE - - 3,500 122
Employees 8T 500 14 14,500 507
Total @zt 5,900 163 23,400 811
SFYEBERAR o 20226F% 59
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Details of the share options outstanding as at 31 December 2022
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FA2022F 1231 H B M2013B R AEFTEFE H

under the 2013 Share Option Scheme are as follows: ZEBRENFEBOT
Number of share options (in thousand units)
BEARE (1)
*Share price
of the Company
immediately
Exercise before the
price forthe  exercise/grant
Lapsed/ share options date of
Held on Grant Exercised forfeited Held on granted  share options
1 January during the during the during 31 December per share (note)
Name of Directors 2022 year year the year 2022 HK$ HK$ Grant date Vesting period/date Exercise period
gsERR
i /BLAH
ERERE  2AARAR
R2022% £ £ 2 R02E  BEZOFE (W)
E2tR 181855 BRH B BEE/BE  128%18EE BT B RHRH B it
Independent Non-executive
Directors
BukNES
Leung Heung Ying 800 - - - 800 0.840  NATHERI0.790 1 June 2021 1 June 2021 to 1June 2022 to
25x 31 May 2022 31 May 2024
202156418 021565182 2020%6518%
2022555318 2024558318
- 800 - - 800 0530  N/ATERI0520 22 June 2022 22 June 2022 to From 23 June 2023 to
21 June 2023 20 June 2025
or 2023 annual general
meeting date, whichever
is earlier
2022564228 B02256A20% #20356A23AZF
202356721 8520235 20255672081
RREEA§2R
(hmezRE)
800 800 - - 1,600
Sheu Wei Fu 800 - - - 800 0201 NATRER0.190 30 October 2020 30 October 2020 to 1 November 2021 to
X 27 May 2021 31 October 2023
20205107308 2020£10A308F WNENFIRE
2021558278 20235108318
800 - - - 800 0.840  N/ATER/0.790 1 Jung 2021 1 June 2021 to 1 June 2022 to
31 May 2022 31 May 2024
02156A18 021%6R18Z 02046518%
2022558318 2024558318
- 800 - - 800 0530  N/ATERI0520 22 June 2022 22 June 2022 to From 23 June 2023 to
21 June 2023 20 June 2025
or 2023 annual general
meeting date, whichever
is earlier
2022567228 B0256A220% #202356A238ZF
20235682185 2025562081
NBERREEREE
(hmrzrE)
1,600 800 - - 2,400
Chan Philip Ching Ho 800 - - - 800 0.840  NATER0.790 1 June 2021 1June 2021 to 1 June 2022 to
REX 31 May 2022 31 May 2024
02156418 21465182 022%6518%
2022555318 2024558318
- 800 - - 800 0530  NARER0.520 22 June 2022 22 June 2022 to From 23 June 2023 to
21 June 2023 20 June 2025
or 2023 annual general
meeting date, whichever
is earlier
2022565228 H202565220% H202356523A %
20036A21R 5, 202556A208 1
NBFRFEFAEEA
(N582RE)
800 800 - - 1,600
Subtotal
gt 3,200 2,400 - - 5,600
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Number of share options (in thousand units)

BEREE (U7)
*Share price
of the Company
immediately
Exercise before the
price forthe  exercise/grant
Lapsed/ share options date of
Held on Grant Exercised forfeited Held on granted  share options
1 January during the during the during 31 December per share (note)
Name of Directors 2022 year year the year 2022 HK$ HK$ Grant date Vesting period/date Exercise period
pEER
/8RS
SRERE  2iA0ERE
Ro022f Em £h £ nooE  RHzTRE (HfiE) i
EZ4R 181855 BRI Bfiff  BHE#/HE  128%1AKE B En RHUAH GEHA i
Executive Directors
HTES
WangWah Chi, Raymond 2,000 - (2,000) - - 0.201 0.72/0.201 30 October 2020 30 October 2020 1 November 2020 to
I#5 31 October 2022
20205104308 202010308 00511A18E
20251074318
3,000 - - - 3,000 0840 NA/0.840 1 June 2021 1 June 2021 1 June 2022 to
31 May 2024
202156817 202156818 2020565102
2004558318
- 3,000 - - 3,000 0530 NA/0.520 22 June 2022 22 June 2022 From 23 June 2023 to
20 June 2025
20256F28 2022467228 220035672302
20255652081
Subtotal
it 5,000 3,000 (2,000) - 6,000
Semor management & 50 - (50) 0 0.159 NA/0.159 30 December 2019 30 December 2019 to 2 January 2021 to
thers 29 December 2020 31 December 2022
ﬁﬁiﬁﬂ?&iﬂh
20195128308 2019512A308F 01515285
20205125298 2022512/318
50 - - 50 0.159 NA/0.159 30 December 2019 30 December 2019 to 2 January 2022 to
29 December 2021 31 December 2023
2019512308 219512A308% N051A28E
2021512R298 2023512A318
1,000 - - - 1,000 0.2454 NA/0.221 17 July 2020 17 July 2020 to 19 July 2022 to
16 July 2022 18 July 2024
2020578178 00F74178Z 0057A198Z
2022578168 202478188
7,200 - - (1,600) 5,600 0.790 NA/0.770 8 December 2021 8 December 2021 to 8 June 2022 to
7 June 2022 7 June 2024
2021%512/8H 0215128802 2020%56F8R%
202256878 202456578
10,800 - - (2,400) 8,400 0.790 NA/0.770 8 December 2021 8 December 2021 to 8 June 2023 to
7 June 2023 6 June 2025
2021512888 2021512R8AE 202356A8HZ
202356578 2025566
- 250 - - 250 0.530 NA/0.520 22 June 2022 22 June 2022 to From 23 June 2023 to
21 June 2023 20 June 2025
2022568228 £202056R20A% $202356A230%
0356/218 20255672081t
- 250 - - 250 0530 NA/0.520 22 June 2022 22 June 2022 to From 24 June 2024 to
21 June 2024 23 June 2026
2022568228 £202056520A% H202456R24R%
224568218 20265672381
Subtotal
et 19,100 500 - (4,050) 15,550
Total
Eh 21,300 5,900 (2,000) (4,050) 21,150

* The weighted average share closing price of the shares immediately *

before the date on Wthh the options were exercised or the closmg
ely before the dates on which the option

§§ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁZmWﬁﬁME$ﬁWﬁF

REEBRETEDZ
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The Group’s environmental policies and
performance

Other than financial performance, the Group believes that a high
standard of corporate social responsibility is essential for building
up a good corporate and social relationship and motivating staff and
creating a sustainable return to the Group. We are committed to
contributing to the sustainability of the environment and community
in which we conduct business and where our stakeholders live. The
Group’s ESG Report for 2022 has been published on the same date of
this Annual Report and has been published separately on the Company’s
website at www.solomon-systech.com and the website of the Stock
Exchange at www.hkexnews.com.

Relationships with employees

People are the Group’s most valuable asset. The Group believes
in communicating with staff and giving them training and career
development opportunities. It also recognizes good performance. It
provides a variety of activities for staff to help them achieve work-
life balance. Remuneration packages are generally structured with
reference to prevailing market terms and individual’s qualifications.
Salaries and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based
on performance appraisals and other relevant factors.

Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits including
mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and performance
related bonus. Share options may also be granted to eligible
employees of the Group.

Directors

Directors during the year and up to the date of this Annual Report
were:

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Leung Heung Ying

Mr. Sheu Wei Fu

Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ma Yuchuan

Mr. Wang Hui

Dr. Kang Jian

Executive Director
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond
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In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Wang Hui, Mr. Sheu Wei Fu and Dr. Chan Philip
Ching Ho will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, Mr. Wang Hui, Mr. Sheu Wei Fu and Dr. Chan Philip Ching
Ho being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Mr. Leung Heung Ying, Mr. Sheu Wei Fu and Dr. Chan Philip Ching
Ho are Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company and
their service contracts were renewed in 2022 for a term expiring on
30 June 2023.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, or its
subsidiaries, was a party and in which a Director of the Company or
an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 24 to 31 of this Annual Report.
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Directors’ interests

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV
of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies were as follows:

EEED

R2022%F 128310 ' FESRITBEARAEL
ARERBELIE(EERESRBPEFL)NER
HREERMTIFHEEELCHNIRERSFRBER
BISEXVEBSESS2F M EAR DN A EFENER R
ML RERBLTRTAESETRSERS
HEETFHANERDNARBITNEZRAR
mE

Ordinary shares in the Company as at % of the
31 December 2022 issued share
#2022 1231 AR DAL ER capital of the
Share Company
Position Shares Options® Total EARDFE
BRMRR kip EREo @i BTRREAL
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BUFHTES
Mr. Leung Heung Ying DEFEL Long & 2400000 1600000 (i) 4,000,000 0.16%
Mr. Sheu Wei Fu SEXEE Long H& 1,600,000 2,400,000 i) 4,000,000 0.16%
Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho RESELT Long #%& - 1,600,000 (iv) 1,600,000 0.06%
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Ma Yuchuan (Chairman) EX%E (ZF) Long & - - - -
Mr. Wang Hui IE%E Long ##& - - - -
Dr. Kang Jian )b Long #& - - - -
Executive Director HTES
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond (CEO) TESRE (THEAHR) Long #& 5,600,000 6,000,000 () 11,600,000 0.47%
Notes: Kzt -
(i)  Share options granted under the 2013 Share Option Scheme with more (i) ZZHBRIESRIE20138KE 2 (#1555
details on pages 59 to 61. 59F615H) IR H Z BB IR -

(i)  The 800,000 share options of the Company granted to Mr. Leung
Heung Ying on 1 June 2021 have been vested and are exercisable from
1 June 2022 to 31 May 2024 and another 800,000 share options of
the Company granted to Mr. Leung Heung Ying on 22 June 2022 will
be vested on 21 June 2023 or the 2023 annual general meeting date,
whichever is earlier and will be exercisable from 23 June 2023 to 20
June 2025, provided that Mr. Leung Heung Ying remains a member of
the Board from the date of grant until the vesting date.

(iii)  The 800,000 share options of the Company granted to Mr. Sheu Wei
Fu on 30 October 2020 have been vested and are exercisable from 1
November 2021 to 31 October 2023, another 800,000 share options of
the Company granted to Mr. Sheu Wei Fu on 1 June 2021 have been
vested and are exercisable from 1 June 2022 to 31 May 2024, and
another 800,000 share options of the Company granted to Mr. Sheu Wei
Fu on 22 June 2022 will be vested on 21 June 2023 or the 2023 annual
general meeting date, whichever is earlier and will be exercisable from
23 June 2023 to 20 June 2025, provided that Mr. Sheu Wei Fu remains
a member of the Board from the date of grant until the vesting date.

(iv) The 800,000 share options of the Company granted to Dr. Chan Philip
Ching Ho on 1 June 2021 have been vested and are exercisable from
1 June 2022 to 31 May 2024 and another 800,000 share options of the
Company granted to Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho on 22 June 2022 will
be vested on 21 June 2023 or the 2023 annual general meeting date,
whichever is earlier and will be exercisable from 23 June 2023 to 20
June 2025, provided that Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho remains a member
of the Board from the date of grant until the vesting date.
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(v)  The 3,000,000 share options of the Company granted to Mr. Wang Wah
Chi Raymond on 1 June 2021 have been vested and are exercisable
from 1 June 2022 to 31 May 2024 and another 3,000,000 share options
of the Company granted to Mr. Wang Wah Chi Raymond on 22 June
2022 have been vested and will be exercisable from 23 June 2023 to 20
June 2025.

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year, Directors
and Chief Executive Officer (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) had any interests in, or had been granted, or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares of the Company and
its associated corporation required to be disclosed pursuant to the
SFO.

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries or its associated corporation a party to
any arrangement to enable Directors and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company (including their spouse and children under 18
years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
associated corporation.

Substantial shareholders’ interests

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at
31 December 2022, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company, being interests of 5% or
more of the Company’s issued share capital. These interests are in
addition to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

EEGHRE

() ERABAR2021F6H1ABFEFEERLEN
3,000,00017 5% iR ## E 53 /B it 7] JR202246 5 1
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Ordinary shares in the Company
as at 31 December 2022
R2022F12A1 AXDALER

% of the

Number of issued share

Number of share options capital of the

Name of shareholder Capacity Position shares held held Total Company

REEE &1 ERfR FERAYE FEBEREZE @t oy NG =)

BIRARE A

Huada Semiconductor Co., Ltd Beneficial owner Long 706,066,000 - 706,066,000 28.31%
ERYERERAT ERREEA #E

*China Electronics Limited Interest of controlled corporation Long 706,066,000 - 706,066,000 28.31%
HEEFERAF FriEsinEBnER #e

China Electronics Corporation (i) Interest of controlled corporation Long 706,066,000 - 706,066,000 28.31%
HEEFEREERBERAA FrEtin B ER #E

Note: Yoz

(i)  Huada Semiconductor Co., Ltd is a wholly owned subsidiary of China
Electronics Limited, and China Electronics Limited is 81.66% owned
by China Electronics Corporation (“CEC”). CEC is a stated-owned
information technology conglomerate under the administration of the
central government of the People’s Republic of China.

English name is for identification purpose only

() EAF¥ERERAABFEEFHRLAH
2EMBRA  MHEEFEHRRAHFEHE
FEEREXEBERAE ([FEEF])HEE
81.66% 1% - HEHEFE—KEEFRBRPE
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no other
persons (other than the Directors) were recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
as having interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company.

Management contracts

No contracts, saved for service contracts of the Director and
employment contracts, concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Major suppliers and customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases g

- the largest supplier —BRAMER

- five largest suppliers combined - hRHEEEE
Sales HE

- the largest customer —BRAEF

— five largest customers combined -HEREF&E

B ESCFriREE SN - 20225128318 » RiE
EBERPEIEOIEBEAATETFHEENE
MRS MEHEMA L (BEERM) EEAN
ARAIBRORBBERDHNEZIAE -

EEEH

BRESHRBESOARERSHON  FRBES
AEREAERAQRREHAEMNEENDEH
MEBERTERHEH -

TEHREBREFR

FEEEIEHEBLREFREAFENREBR
HEBOLWT :

32%
75%

37%
71%

None of the Directors of the Company, their associates or any
shareholder (who to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.

Related parties and connected transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group entered
into certain transactions with related parties as defined under
the applicable accounting standards, which include transactions
that constitute connected/continuing connected transactions for
which the disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules have
been complied with. Details of the related parties transactions
are disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
The following transactions between certain connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and the Group have been entered into
and/or are ongoing for which relevant announcements, if necessary,
had been made by the Company in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Connected transactions

HES, an indirect subsidiary of CEC, entered into a licence
agreement with each of Solomon Systech (China) Limited and
Solomon Systech (Shenzhen) Limited (wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company) respectively on 29 October 2021 in connection with
the grant of licenses to the Group on the installation and execution
of certain Electronic Design Automation (EDA) tools for internal use
and development of the Group’s own products for a two years’
term from 30 October 2021 to 29 October 2023. The consideration
payable by the Group to HES amounted to CNY4,000,200,
among which, CNY2,000,100 was paid by 30 November 2021 and
CNY2,000,100 shall be payable by 30 November 2022. For further
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29
October 2021.
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Continuing connected transactions

On 22 October 2020, the Group entered into an agreement with
CEACI, an indirect subsidiary of CEC, under which CEACI would act
as a non-exclusive authorized distributor of the Group in Mainland
China and Hong Kong, and purchase IC and driver products from
the Group for the years 2021 to 2023 (“Sales to CEACI). The prices
for the products under the Sales to CEACI shall be determined
fairly in accordance with the costs, resources and technology
requirements with reference to market practices and prices and
having taken into account the technology and quality of the relevant
products. Such agreement was approved by the independent
shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 4
December 2020.

On 6 May 2022, the Company and CEACI entered into a
supplemental agreement to revise the annual caps in respect of
the Sales to CEACI as set out in the abovementioned agreement.
The supplemental agreement was approved by the independent
shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 22 June
2022.

For further details of the continuing connected transaction on the
Sales to CEACI, please refer to the circulars of the Company dated
12 November 2020, 21 April 2021 and 7 June 2022, respectively.

The actual transaction amount for the year ended 31 December
2022 in respect of the above continuing connected transactions on
the Sales to CEACI was set out:

EEGHRE

BEBERS

2020510822 @ AR & B ECECHY & £ [t
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Eh22E B ([BMCEACIEE ]) - BICEACIEE 2
ERNERERBERE BERREMESR 2
BHSEGARER  WZEEEERNRMR
MEMAFLEE - BEEHZECS R2020F1284
HETZRRENARE LEBIRERHAE -

2022%F5H6H © A"Q BEACEACIE] M 1## 7¢ 1
EUMEE] LR R T E B M CEACISE E 2 &
ELR - BRI ESTN2022F6 8228 £1T2
BEREBHIAE LEBIREAE -

EEOCEACHEECE L BERER S 2HE
F2HEAQT AHA20205E11 8128 ~ 2021
F4H21B R2022F6A7H 2B X ©

LFHEEFCEACIZIFERER S NE 2022
F12A31BELEENEBRRZSEUNT :

Actual

Annual Cap transaction

for the year amount for

ended the year ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2022

HZ22022FF HZ2022F

12831801t 128318k

EENFE EENER

tREeHE Pk

US$’000 US$’000

Nature of Transactions XHMHE TEnr TEn
Sales to CEACI $EFCEACI 135,000 71,151

The aforesaid connected transactions and continuing connected
transaction have been reviewed by independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The independent non-executive directors
confirmed that the aforesaid continuing connected transaction was
entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole, and (d)
the relevant transactions conducted in the year ended 31 December
2022 were within the annual cap.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company, together
with the Group’s Corporate Audit Section/outsourced internal audit
consultant and Audit Committee, have conducted regular review
of the continuing connected transaction of the Group. The Audit
Committee were satisfied that the Group’s continuing connected
transaction during the year ended 31 December 2022 have complied
with the Listing Rules requirement in all respects.

The Company’s independent auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised)“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued an unmodified letter containing findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transaction disclosed for
the year ended 31 December 2022 in accordance with paragraph
14A.56 of the Listing Rules, and confirm that nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that the continuing
connected transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the
provision of goods or services by the Group;

(iii) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there
is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as at 23 March 2023.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has complied
with all the applicable Code Provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules effective for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (“Appendix 14”). To maintain high
standards of corporate governance, the Company has adopted the
recommended best practices in Appendix 14 where appropriate.
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Compliance with the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers

The Company has its own written guidelines on securities
transactions by Directors and relevant employees on no less
exacting terms than the required standard set out in the Model Code
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has
been made to all Directors, and all Directors have confirmed that
they have been in compliance with such guidelines during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Compliance with laws and regulations

To the best knowledge of the Directors, for the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group has complied, in all material respects,
with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact
on the operations of the Group.

Business review and outlook

The business review and outlook disclosure of the Group for the
year as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of Hong Kong) are set out on pages 13 to 16 of this Annual
Report. The business review forms part of this Report of the
Directors.

Independent auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 have been audited by Ernst & Young who retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Ma Yuchuan
Chairman
Hong Kong, 23 March 2023
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EY:

To the shareholders of Solomon Systech (International) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Solomon Systech (International) Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 78 to 172, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

The Group had inventories with carrying amount of US$48.2
million as at 31 December 2022. The Group performs regular
review of the carrying amounts of inventories to determine
if any write-down of inventories to net realisable value is
required after considering the aged analyses of inventories,
relevant historical sales, usage reports and obsolescence.

The determination of net realisable value requires
management to make significant judgements and estimates
based on expectation about future market conditions.

The related disclosures of estimation uncertainty and balance
of inventory provision are included in notes 4 and 22 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

We evaluated management’s assessment of
whether the estimated net realisable values of
inventories declined below their carrying amounts.
Our procedures included understanding and
assessing the Group’s processes over identifying
and valuing obsolete, damaged, slow-moving,
excessive and other potentially impaired inventory
items for which their net realisable values might
decline below their carrying amounts; evaluating
the methodologies, inputs and assumptions used
by the Group in determining the net realisable
values of inventories; and assessing the write-down
of inventories required by testing the aged analyses
of inventories, sales made and materials used
subsequent to the end of the reporting period and
historical sales and usage reports.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Wong Yat Kin.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27th Floor, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

23 March 2023
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BABRBE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B B2022F 12531 H1FEE
2022 2021
Notes US$’000 US$’000
izt FEn EP
Revenue HERE 5 190,843 168,120
Cost of sales $HE R (125,370) (100,868)
Gross profit EF 65,473 67,252
Research and development costs T 22 I BA 3% B AR (27,071) (30,421)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERE (4,221) (2,960)
Administrative expenses THEX (8,254) (11,213)
Other expenses Hip X 8 (154) (476)
Other income and gains - net HitpWg AR Wi - F58 7 2,002 1,209
27,775 23,391
Finance income - net REWA - 58 9 246 220
28,021 23,611
Share of (losses)/profits of associates gL AT (BX),HA 18 (114) 166
Profit before tax RR B4 A& R 6 27,907 23,777
Income tax expense FrEFim% 12 (83) (48)
Profit for the year REEZER 27,824 23,729
Attributable to: FEAL -
- Owners of the parent - RAREE A 27,833 23,782
- Non-controlling interests - FERER (9) (63)
27,824 23,729
Earnings per share attributable to KRAAEBESFEA
ordinary equity holders of the parent: BENERER :
(expressed in US cent(s) per share) (AL ERZ5) 13
- Basic - B 1.1 1.0
— Diluted - 58 1.1 1.0

The notes on pages 85 to 172 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME -~
RAZEBARE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B Z2022%F 1231 H IE F &
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
FEr EH
Profit for the year REERF 27,824 23,729
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Htt2mE (BX) WA
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that RERSE > Hit2mE
may be reclassified to profit or loss in (BX) ' WMABEHIEZE
subsequent periods: BEk
- Exchange differences arising on -RESNEREELE
translation of foreign operations ZERERE (2,772) 1,417
Other comprehensive income that will not be R HRE  Hat2EUA
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent BresEfsEEEBRE
periods:
- Equity investment designated at fair value = - ZAFEEFAHEMEE
through other comprehensive income: WERERENT
Changes in fair value BEZE 96 136
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FREMEZE (GBX) WA
for the year (2,676) 1,553
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEEZEMWR AL 25,148 25,282
Attributable to: FEAL -
— Owners of the parent - ARRDEEE A 25,157 25,335
- Non-controlling interests - FERER (9) (53)
25,148 25,282
The notes on pages 85 to 172 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BABERRE

As at 31 December 2022

ONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JR2022612831A
2022 2021
Notes US$’000 US$’000
izt FEn EP
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Intangible assets BLERE 15 - 505
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERSEE 16 5,089 4,269
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 17(a) 1,802 2,315
Investments in associates REE QTR E 18 968 1,082
Equity investment designated at fair BRAFEEA
value through other comprehensive Hitt 2 ERE
income BRERE 20 1,161 1,065
Other receivables, prepayments and HEWFR » FERR
deposits EET € 23 3,117 9,087
Total non-current assets ERBEELET 12,137 18,323
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 7E 22 48,221 40,866
Trade and other receivables, FEUWRR R EAth LK
prepayments and deposits EARKE 2 23 46,308 38,967
Pledged bank deposits 2IRARITER 21 6,041 17,000
Cash and cash equivalents REeERBEEEY 21 45,556 24,757
Total current assets MEEERS 146,126 121,590
CURRENT LIABILITIES k=R
Trade and other payables R R EMEATR 28 45,347 50,149
Interest-bearing bank borrowings RITFTEER 29 1,421 -
Lease liabilities HEBeRE 17(b) 1,304 1,139
Deferred income IEIEU A - 3
Tax payable FES B 315 342
Total current liabilities RBEEES 48,387 51,633
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 97,739 69,957
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRD
LIABILITIES =L 109,876 88,280
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings RITFTEER 29 - 181
Lease liabilities HEAE 17(b) 692 1,392
Total non-current liabilities FRBE B 692 1,573
Net assets EEFE 109,184 86,707




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continue o
SEPBRRE (BH)

As at 31 December 2022

JR2022612H31A
2022 2021
Notes US$’000 US$’000
MiEE FEr EP
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the  Z&ATHEE AEWL
parent s
Issued capital SETRA 24 32,149 32,123
Reserves #E 26 77,100 54,640
109,249 86,763
Non-controlling interests IEERER (65) (56)
Total equity R 109,184 86,707

The notes on pages 85 to 172 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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On behalf of the Board
REREE®

WANG Wah Chi, Raymond
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Chief Executive Officer
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» CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B Z20226F 12531 H IE F &
Attributable to owners of the parent
KAREEARL
Equity
compensation Non-
Issued Share Merger  Exchange reserve  Fair value Other  Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve resenve  RAEE reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
Ba  RREE  AfEE  EXEE  RMER OTVERE  HBRE  RMER  GHEY  RERER #Es
Notes USS000  USS000  USSOOD  USS000  US§000  USSOO0  USS000  US$000  USE000  USSOOD  USS000
E Tin Tin TiL i i T T e i i1 Tin
At 1 January 2021 ROAE151R 31977 83,500 2,082 Il 17,79 187 20 (73,357) 63,435 ) 63432
Proftfor the year Enigl - - - - - - - 28782 28762 B B
Other comprehensive income EREh2ENA:
for the year:

- Changes in farvalug of equity - RATEETALM
investment at fai value through 2EYERERED
other comprehensive income FEZS - - - - - 136 - - 13 - 13

- Exchange differences arisngon - %ﬁiﬁ%#%ﬁé

translation of foreign operations EfZE - - - 1417 - - - - 1417 - 1417
Total comprehensive incomef(loss) ~ 2EH A/ (§8) &3 - - - 1417 - 13 - 8782 2533 By %M
2000 firl didnd pad ANERERE T - - - - - T T
Equity-settled share option RrERRH
arrangements 2 - - - - 204 - - - 24 - 204
lssue of shares upon exercise o TEREAR TR
share options s 146 315 - - (102 - - - 359 - 359
At 31 December 2021 and iV IEVERTED
at 1 January 2022 N2E1R1A RVAVA] 81,245 2,082 1,838 17,897 923 20 (49,579) 86,763 (56) 86,707
Proftfor the year ERiEA - - - - - - - 21,83 2783 [/
Other comprehensive (oss)income ~ EAER2E (%8)/
for the year. A
- Changes in fair value of equity -ROFEETALM
investment at fai value through 2ENGEREREL
other comprehensive income TESD - - - - - % - - % - %
-Exchange differences arisngon - EEEHEREEE
translation of foreign operations LEREE - - - 2m) - - - - R - (thi]
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2EA/ (§) 43t - - - @m - % - 2783 2,157 o) 2,148
201 fel diicend ped WIEXERE - By - - - - - - -
Equity-settled share option RAREH
anangements 2 - - - - 496 - - - 496 - 496
Issue of shares upon exercise of  TEREAR R
share options i 2% 3% - - (10) - - - 52 - 5
31 December 2022 HOERANE R T 202 @4 1By 10 W PN 182 B 108

The notes on pages 85 to 172 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
ESSEIT2EMMEAAZEREMBRERMNAK LM -

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of US$77,100,000 (2021: US$54,640,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
HEBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B Z2022%F 1231 H IE F &
2022 2021
Notes Us$’000 US$’000
MIEE FEx FET
Cash flows from operating activities RETH2EHERE
Profit before tax BR T AR R 27,907 23,777
Adjustments for: RS
Finance costs I8 B B AR 9 117 58
Share of losses/(profits) of associates EhBENTBEL
(%)) 18 114 (166)
Interest income B U A 9 (363) (278)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEVE BERREHN
plant and equipment W &= 7 (3) (3)
Provision/(reversal of provision) for BERNAEFERE
obsolete or slow moving inventories, (E#) FE
net 6 12,013 (1,152)
Depreciation of property, plant and M HeEREHE
equipment e 6 1,293 1,074
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 6 1,355 1,251
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEN 6 504 517
Equity-settled share option expense % 75 RE 55 3R A 6 496 204
COVID-19-related rent concession from 2019 mSHIEEHEE
lessors R 17b (76) (1)
43,357 25,281
Increase in inventories FEEMm (19,368) (23,286)
Increase in trade and other receivables, FE WK R L At BE WK
prepayments and deposits FEARKRTSEM (1,371) (28,630)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other BE A 3R R HL At FE S 3R
payables CRA) /0 (4,832) 20,717
Cash generated from/(used in) meEE  (EA)
operations WiRe 17,786 (5,918)
Hong Kong profits tax paid HAEBREH (56) -
Overseas income tax paid MBI FBR (27) (8)
Interest paid AR R (117) (58)
Net cash from/(used in) operating meEEEELE S (FRA M
activities RE&FHE 17,586 (5,984)
Cash flows from investing activities REFZBZHRERE
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEY¥% - BE
equipment REE 16 (2,532) (1,533)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant H &3 - #38
and equipment REE 3 -
Interest received 2 W F 2 363 278
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHFEANESFEHE (2,166) (1,255)
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ONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
mEBRERER(A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E2022% 125310 1L F I
2022 2021
Notes US$’000 US$’000
MisE FEx FEx

Cash flows from financing activities BMETHESRE
Release of/(increase in) pledged bank BEE, (3Eh0) BIKIF AR T

deposits TR 10,959 (16,870)
Dividend paid 1R ER R (3,219) (2,570)
Proceeds from issue of shares upon BREEBITERSR

exercise of share options 24 52 359
Principal portion of lease payments HENRHOERSIHH 32(b) (1,231) (1,096)
Drawdowns of bank borrowings T EIRITE R 32(b) 1,421 913
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITER 32(b) (181) (913)
Net cash from/(used in) financing BMETHELE, (ERMH

activities REeFHE 7,801 (20,177)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BeRREEEWF

and cash equivalents =, Ged) 23,221 (27,416)
Cash and cash equivalents FNRERES

at beginning of year ZEY 24,757 50,827
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EZRE B & F4E (2,422) 1,346
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRES

at end of year EEY 45,556 24,757
Analysis of balance of cash and cash ReERBESEEYNEE

equivalents 2R

- Bank balances and cash -BITEBRES 45,556 24,757

The notes on pages 85 to 172 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information

Solomon Systech (International) Limited and its subsidiaries are
fabless semiconductor companies specializing in the design,
development and sales of integrated circuits (“IC”) products
and system solutions that enable a wide range of display
applications for smartphones, tablets, smart TVs/monitors,
notebooks and other smart devices, including electronic shelf-
labels (ESLs), wearables, healthcare devices, smart home
devices, as well as industrial appliances etc.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21
November 2003 as an exempted company with limited liability
under Cap. 22, the Cayman Islands Companies Law (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised). The address of its
registered office is Third Floor, Century Yard, Cricket Square,
P.O. Box 902, Grand Cayman, KY1-1103, Cayman Islands (with
effect from 1 October 2022) and the address of its principal
office in Hong Kong is Unit 607-613, 6/F Wireless Centre, 3
Science Park East Avenue, Hong Kong Science Park, Shatin,
New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company has been listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 8 April 2004.

Information about subsidiaries

Please refer to note 19 to the financial statements for the
particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries.

Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for certain financial
assets which have been measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in US dollars
(“US$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

.- ZFNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. TEETHERUE (R)

21 RREE(H)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has, directly
or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar
rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Solomon Systech (International) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS%E

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

e IR R R

2. TEETHERMUE (&)

2.1

2.2
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BN BERREZEH

AEBCRAFE 2 BBRERE R
MUT RIERT 2 BB B|EER

Amendments to HKFRS 3

BB RS EREIF 1G] B ERE By 1R
Amendments to HKAS 16
EARAETTERE1658 2185

Amendments to HKAS 37
BAEFTEREITH 28T EREMEH —BITA
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020
2018 E2020F By F E K #
FA1R 2 1EFT

9%k ~ %

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use
¥ BERZE & KEEEHZHRIPZ7E

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

BERIBY A

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41
EBMBHREERE1SR - 5

16559 BRG] ¥ R E B E TR

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

(@)

Solomon Systech (International) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2022

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
(the “Conceptual Framework”) issued in June 2018
without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to
its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes
an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that,
for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be
within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if
they were incurred separately rather than assumed
in a business combination, an entity applying HKFRS
3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent
assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition
date. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to business combinations that occurred
on or after 1 January 2022. As there were no
business combinations occurred during the year, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such
items, and the cost of those items as determined by
HKAS 2 Inventories, in profit or loss. The Group has
applied the amendments retrospectively to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use
on or after 1 January 2021. Since there was no sale
of items produced prior to the property, plant and
equipment being available for use, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

.- ZFNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. TEETHERUE (R)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS%;
e IR R R

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

()

(d)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose
of assessing whether a contract is onerous under
HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises
the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g.,
direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for
an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to contracts
for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations
at 1 January 2022 and no onerous contracts were
identified. Therefore, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets
out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41.
Details of the amendments that are applicable to the
Group are as follows:

e HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the
fees that an entity includes when assessing
whether the terms of a new or modified financial
liability are substantially different from the terms
of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the
borrower and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the borrower or lender on
the other’s behalf. The Group has applied the
amendment prospectively from 1 January 2022.
As there was no modification or exchange of
the Group’s financial liabilities during the year,
the amendment did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

2. TEETHERMUE (&)
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2. TEEHEHRBE (&)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

23 EEMEEARERNERMBRE

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

%A

AEENBEEVBHRRHDEATIE
AR MBI R AE BT R] RAZIER] B8
P E R -

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28 (2011)

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

ERMBRELERNF10RREBENER REFHAB LN ELE BN EELEXTE

£2855(2011) 2 185T

Amendments to HKFRS 16
BRI RELERE 1655 2185

HKFRS 17
BB BMELRE1T7

Amendments to HKFRS 17
BERMERMELERE17IR 2185

Amendment to HKFRS 17

BRMBERE LR FE17RZER]

Amendments to HKAS 1
BEEETERNE 12155

Amendments to HKAS 1
ERETERNE1R 28T

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

BRETEAFIRREBYBIRELER

BERHAE25R

Amendments to HKAS 8
BEETERES 2 18F]

Amendments to HKAS 12

EBETHERE125 28]

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

ERBEHER E?

Insurance Contracts’

REEEAT

Insurance Contracts?’ ®

REBEA

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 — Comparative
Information®

BXEFE BRI BHEERE17HR BB HHEEERFIN — LB
B

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (the “2020
Amendments”)? 4

BENTE - REBHHRE ( [2020F 5T ) ) 24

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)?

MEZZNEREERE ( [2022F 55T ) 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies’
BRI E

Definition of Accounting Estimates’
HEi 1 ES

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’

E-XGHELHEERE EIHFELYE




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT§
e IR R R

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective
date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition,
as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
was revised to align the corresponding wording with no
change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued
in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39
rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1
January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating
to the classification overlay set out in this amendment shall
apply it on initial application of HKFRS 17

2. TEETHERMUE (&)

23 EEMEEARERNERMBRE
A8 (4)

1
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BRI A%

HARBERHMEEMRBE  HEA
HLER A

EHFE2022F 85T » 2020 55T 2 &£
WA HEIEE2024F1B1BH 2%
M2 EERRE - o HFE2020
FETR2022F 53] - EAERES
SMEBERNER-—ERAEEE
REREBERINEHERIED
E%%T'ﬁwﬂﬁﬁ%%m%—ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
e N

HEFER2020F 108 B 2 BB 1§
WREEBIEI7TR 2EF] » BBUHK
MR EASR D FI1E5T  WERE
AR REAN2023FE1818 251
Mz EEHEERE RS EL
FI0EMIE T B IR ERFo5%
ZEERR

RIEEMAZEI A BELR
HHNBEREENEEENERE
RERBMBHREENFITRBRA

SPNHBERAR o 20225F% 91




e B R R M R

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected

to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS
10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream
transaction when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s
interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS
28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments

are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that
a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising
in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-
lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to sale
and leaseback transactions entered into after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019).
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s

financial statements.
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2. Summary of significant accounting 2. TESTHHEME (B)

policies (continued)

2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 23 CHEMEMAKRERNERBUBERSE
Reporting Standards (continued) 28| (&)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities BREHENEIN ZBITEEN S
as Current or Non-current clarify the requirements E-mBAIEREREERESERE
for classifying liabilities as current or non-current, in ARBEIFERB2RE  FRIRETE
particular the determination over whether an entity has ERRSEREEREREHEED12
a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least BREEEE BERSSITHHEHEE
12 months after the reporting period. Classification of a BEABECZENEIEFEEEZE
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will Do ZEEFNEHAREFTERE
exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The ZEREITEE o A2022F » BB
amendments also clarify the situations that are considered TE A EEM2022 F (&R A HE — 5 7%
a settlement of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA issued B EERZHEENEGERESD
the 2022 Amendments to further clarify that, among REERERSE MR ZAILEAEST
covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement, NWRFETEFEZEEIEARDR
only those with which an entity must comply on or IEFE o BhIh - 2022 FERTEREKE
before the reporting date affect the classification of that REHEENEBEIEAFRBNE
liability as current or non-current. In addition, the 2022 B CEREERBEEZZAME (BA
Amendments require additional disclosures by an entity EeERARBEHE T _EARE
that classifies liabilities arising from loan arrangements FARREE) FETRHEMIE - 25
as non-current when it has a right to defer settlement of &3] B2024F1B1B 2 & ME =2
those liabilities that are subject to the entity complying FEMBEN  WEEWERARARF
with future covenants within 12 months after the reporting IR A1 FE A - 12 AT FE F2020F 15T 49
period. The amendments are effective for annual periods EBARKER2022F185] Rz
beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied TRAR o ANEEE B AT EsTh iS85 2
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An entity FEIURBAENERMERSEER
that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to 7] o MBS  FHEZEBIT
apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice SHAEBUBRERELETANERY
versa. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the o

amendments and whether existing loan agreements may
require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies BERETTERBIR BT EHHEE
require entities to disclose their material accounting ZHEEERERBIEBEEESTTERE
policy information rather than their significant accounting B (MIEBEBREGFHER) - MiEBEEZ
policies. Accounting policy information is material if, B BXREEHEERMBERRTES
when considered together with other information included 2HMEE—EEE > TUEEE
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be RN -RENUBERRCEE
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of FRERBZEVNKIRRAIEZRAR
general purpose financial statements make on the basis EEFE AEBRZETBREREB
of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS BE - FERUERESENEHERAE
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance R IEET AMAERSTTREREE
on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting 2EEMB SR EFEIES - &
policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective BB B SB15E 2 15 5] 202341
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January B1HB 2B 2EERBER
2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the WAFIRAIER - AREBMBERE
guidance provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice EREHHEER BT FiRMHZ
Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these ESIBHFHamt  WEERZEMBI
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently ETEMRBE - NEBHAESTE
revisiting the accounting policy disclosures to ensure TEUR I B AR REZ ST R —
consistency with the amendments. H o
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2. TEETHERUE (R)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 23 CHEMEMKRERNERBUBERSE

94

Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques and
inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur
on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences, such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities
are required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided
that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred
tax liability for temporary differences arising from these
transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and shall be applied to transactions related to leases
and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative
effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits or other component of equity as
appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall
be applied prospectively to transactions other than leases
and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and
did not recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax
liability for temporary differences for transactions related
to leases. Upon initial application of these amendments,
the Group will recognise deferred tax for all temporary
differences related to leases at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS%E

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

e IR R R

2. TEETHERMUE (&)

24 EREFBRME

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring
into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share
of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group’s investments
in associates.
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2. Summary of significant accounting 2. TESHHEME (8)

policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETTHEBRE (F)
Investments in associates (continued) REBEQATNRE (E)
If an investment in an associate becomes an investment MEHHEENANBRERAHEEDL
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is ENRE (R2TR)  REEZTE
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be BHFtE R REEEBERESE
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases, AR - REXRHBERNRNERTE
upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the H#E AEBRAFEFERERME
Group measures and recognises any retained investment MREBIRE -NREXEREFENEE
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying ENANEAERRERENATEE
amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence REHEMSHRERNTMEREIRE
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds wmHER o

from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill (¥BEHREE

Business combinations are accounted for using the EBEOHERAWEE AR - BEMR
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is BRVIBEBHPAFENE  BAEEH
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the FEZEEERBBANNATE K
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred SEHBEBESREEARENERS
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the RAEEABEW KB HZEGEM
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests BITHREAI - EELKAHT
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the B OAEEERERSUATESREML
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects WL A EEFENLS - 5t
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the ERKBIEREGEEREERNIEE
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle BEZREBTIFEARIREEEZ
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the Lo EEFENFZRER © 3F
event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate ERESNFEEMARDIITRD
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other TEFE o WEHEBRAREERX
components of non-controlling interests are measured o

at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired set of activities rEERETHEKWE-—AZBNEE
and assets include an input and a substantive process (B EEmaEREELEIW
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create RANEBEMHBRE) -

outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the EARKEWE —EHELR  REER
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate BE XGRS ERR R
classification and designation in accordance with the HERGHFAENESREEREA
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent BETM  MEHEEWN S ERIE
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the E o WENAABESHRARNITEIA
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of HEFWEHEENDR -

the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the HMEXREHIBERET  ZAFEN
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its RERZEWEBSHNAFEENRG
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is 2 MAEMELAEENRRESRES
recognised in profit or loss. EERPER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:E;
e IR R R

2. Summary of significant accounting 2. TESTHHEME (B)

policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 ERETHEME (&)
(continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued) (¥BEHREE (&)
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the W A EENEMRARERKER
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition HMRATERR 2 EAEESEE
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or WHARERAFEFE  BAFE
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value SBENIERER - o EAERNR
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that ARETTENTE HREFEETR
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent EERAR-

settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess BENSERRN (N EERE - F
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the ERERNERSERATE ZAR
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any BREBAFEENEMRELEENEZ
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in FNHR 38 B W B AT 38 Bl B R B R AR
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and EEENER)TE - MERERE
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and 18 B WAFRR TR EETEN
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets AVE EFTFGHEENEZEEEE
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised mhERAZERBE -

in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost AT EDE  BABRERNREMREST
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is REBETE BESFETRER
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if 2o AWM ESHRERE CERRE
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the B IRBER  AETEEEN
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its WERNE - KANEBER+=-A=+—H
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. BEEBETFEERENR o BURER
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired HME o ERESHPESHNEERNK
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, BAME  S2EEFARERESONEG
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, EAREFSRNAEESREELES
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to L (HREEEENHAR) > MARE
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective SENHMWEERBEREIE T
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are LENREMNAT -

assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable REDEATIEHERBENRSESE
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash- B (REEEENAR) WaRE
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the THEE MRESELEEN(REE
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of A ENAR) KU E & RE RN ERE
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, & BIFEFREEE - iEEEIMR
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss BEEBENREZHBARTEM -
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent

period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating HEEe oM EREELE (FHIB
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the SELEBENMAR)  MZREBEMHIDD
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill EBPHE > AIRNEBEZLHENKRSE
associated with the operation disposed of is included in HEEE SR HEXKEERNE
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the BHAZEREREAE £Z5BRT
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these HENEE2EBEEEXBNEEER
circumstances is measured based on the relative value RESELEBEVNNRESITE °

of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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2. Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investment and certain
financial assets at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset and liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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TEETHERBE (&)

2. Summary of significant accounting 2.
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETTHESRE (H)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing
a cash-generating unit for impairment. a portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters
building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit
if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis
or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating
units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.
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'NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS R AR Y RE

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iiiy the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

2. TESTHREBE (H)

24 EXSHBREBE (H)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS%E
SA R RENE

2. Summary of significant accounting 2. TESTHHEME (B)

policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETTHEBE (F)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation ME BERSEBUARITE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less M  BRERLBRANBETINE
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. REMBEEEYR M - BER
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment REEENARS  SEHEBEERE
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable EEERECHECFEHEERRER
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and BRNEERRNEMEEBGEAR
location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and E BRERZBEEERALEERMN
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs EEMNIZE (MEBRREEAR)
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement —RREEEHEEERPHR - &
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In KpELHERERRAEE AlES
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the EEMBA FUAERLFTAEERE
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the B-Y* BRERKENEIERD
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where EEHEE > AIXREEKZEDI®
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are RAABEERFHNERNEEZ &
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises FHIRAEREITE -

such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to NERBEVE BERREEEN

write off the cost of each item of property, plant and et ERFEHUE S EMEER AR

equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful HREHKEETE - BUMEANEE

life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as FWERNT

follows:

Freehold land KAERELTH Not depreciated
FFIE

Building BF 2%

Leasehold improvements HEWMEEE 20% or over the lease period,

whichever is shorter

20%HIRHEH (UREERHE)

Furniture, fixtures, licenses FHE - BEEE - 33.33%
and equipment HTREREE

Machinery and laboratory HERERERE 12.50% to 33.33%
equipment

Motor vehicles E 33.33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment Y% BERRZBEESBIHE

have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated BAFHTE  AZEBENRARUEE

on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is BEENEH D 2BHE MDA

depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and BETETE ZEORESVBREES

the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if ERRSRRER  FRAFHRTE

appropriate, at least at each financial year end. Tt WHEBEBRTIEHFAE -
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=" NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ERRMEE

2. TEETHERUE (R)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETTHEBRE (F)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Patents and intellectual property

Purchased patents and intellectual property are stated at
cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of no
more than eight years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell
the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -~

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Leased properties 2 to 3 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

e IR R R

2. TEETHERMUE (&)
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HE

AEBRENHBRKILENRER
HERBESHE - HENBBRIKRE
miaTHE—REBARZEFERIEE
EANER - AZENABEERES
HE -

KEFEHBAEA

AEEUMAERE (EEREERE
BEEEHERN) KRME-BIR
SFERE - AEERIEESEUE
HEENR - MEAEEEREERNE
BEEMNER -

@ ERAREE

ERAREEZHEERK A (B
HEEETHEAER) BRI -
fEAEEERBARBEMRTIN
ENEMRERSEE YT
AEEEBENENTEFEA
Z - FABEENRABRECHE
ANEEEESHE  EEENT
WMEERAURERI BBz
BI1E H AV E A OB E W EI
AHEEE - EAREELEHM
BN AET A EAFH (URE
ERE)RRESETTRITED
T :

HEWME 235
AE 45

N EEHERGEEEENE
ERERENEENAA R
BRENTE  FERMRBEEN
EEt T ERFHAE -

SRxEEERAT o 202255% 103



e B R R M R

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments or a change in assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease
payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS%;
e IR R R

2. TEETHERMUE (&)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)

Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”)
on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.
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2. TEFFBORBE (F)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETTHEBRE (F)

Investments and other financial assets (continued) RERHMWESMEE (H)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued) L HERR T E ()

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. TEETHERMUE (&)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as finance income in the statement of profit
or loss when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income and debt instruments which are held for trading.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as finance income in the statement of profit
or loss when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if
the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or
loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative
is required to be classified in its entirety as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS%;

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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= NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk E

2. Summary of significant accounting 2. TESHHEME (8)

policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETTHEBRE (F)
Impairment of financial assets SREERE
The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit AEERMELFZATFETT ABE
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair BENERETIARIAFEHERBERE
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the B(FREEREXR] - BHREREX
difference between the contractual cash flows due in DBURBENESHNEHNRERENR
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows AEBFEHEENAEREREZHE
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an HERAEE  RERBERIEMN
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The EMFIZREER - BHRESREKERE
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale REHEMFERFRIEMIE G
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are 2&E’Jiﬁé/m§ T E NIRRT
integral to the contractual terms. R 2
General approach — R %
ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures FEHE AR ARWER BRER - §HR
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit BYREREL BB R NNEAR
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit b o FRERE B AR AT RE AR K128
losses that result from default events that are possible BR (12 AFEHIEREX) HEN
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those EXNEHBHNERBERTRERE -
credit exposures for which there has been a significant HRBEBRAREEZENNER
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss Ak BEEHAEXARTERNEG
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the FHGREERE  TREIEHR
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of ARRE (FEREREREX) -
the default (a lifetime ECL).
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether AEBRSHRE TGS IARS
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased AR BEIBREREEST KIFEM -
significantly since initial recognition. When making the ETHEE AEEBRBREEHE
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default RTAZFEENNRRENKRERA
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting HemTAR4EENNRERLE > I
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial %J’éﬁ SRS ERAEE DM E
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and BHEEEEREIHNER B
considers reasonable and supportable information that is BEEEHRAEEER -

available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when TIJ]++A Y FREES60K - BIAEE
contractual payments are 360 days past due. The Group RESHEEEN - FAEECERES
has rebutted the 90 days past due presumption of default fi&ﬁﬁ(%ﬂ’\]’ﬁ*ﬂ?ﬁ@?@gﬂ%iZE
based on reasonable and supportable information, HEE EEENEEREENEE
including the Group’s credit risk control practices and EEEEERFBHEBIOXNESHE
the historical recovery rate of financial assets over 90 EEMNELWEE - AW EFTRA
days past due. However, the Group may also consider a SEEENEMGEERE  AEE
financial asset to be in default when internal or external TFARRBEPBERBEREEBR
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive RAREBRE BRI G REREN SRR
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking BEMEERERY - RUBSETE
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. HEEREESHNESRERMESRE
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable Ee

expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS%;
e IR R R

TESTBERBE (H)

2. Summary of significant accounting 2.
policies (continued)

24 EXESTBEBE ()

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal

to lifetime ECLs
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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- .OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R AR Y RE

2. TESTHREBE (H)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

24 EXSHBREBE (H)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities tREE
Initial recognition and measurement WA ERRTE

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS%;

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance
determined in accordance with the policy as set out in
“Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount
of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
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=" NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ERRMEE

2. Summary of significant accounting 2. TESHHEME (8)

policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (F)
Inventories 7E
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net FEERBARAUSBEFEMERZR
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted REDIAR o AR IR IR E
average method and, in the case of work in progress R m R R w2 RAREE R
and finished goods, comprises direct materials and PRATER o A S8 FEAREM
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is based on FEERMTERREEMEEZME
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be A AGTE ©

incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents ReRESEEY

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash MRS RERMS BakERE
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand ZEYVEREEREREHER
and demand deposits, that are readily convertible into DUREBERBzEHRE (HERSE
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk HERIAK  B—RRBAZR=EA
of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally NEIE > WHERERACHMESS
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts HIREREREZEBAEERS
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part BB 2WTEX ©

of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial MEEHBERREMS BeRRE
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on ZEYPALERAZRREZEFRER
hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets FEREBITZRE(BREEHER -
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to

use.

Provisions B

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal HMEBTIFEGHSIBIRKER CEES
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and HE)BRRAEEZERR L LUE
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be BERK  BIEIARE HEHEKS
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable FHERE M SEfh Tt o

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount fHEY IR EE KR > BIREERNS
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end EARSHARBHESEGEBTHIARR
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected Bl WIRME o E R R m A2 £ A AL
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the RIMERETABRANBERAE

discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax g st

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income B EENERIELERIE - FEH
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss HRRBEIIERNIEE - IREB
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other HIMER  FOREMEEVRARE
comprehensive income or directly in equity. BERERAER -

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the MHREEEREBIRENRREH
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the REEMHRELD LEEHHIHRE (R
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) BE) Wt RAEBERKEREBR
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the WIRERBRER - ZEH B H B
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration BAEE R FFHEELEBENSEET
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries/ £ o

jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS%;

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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S LOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R AR Y RE

2. TEFFBORBE (F)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETTHEBRE (F)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future periods in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR HRR N E

2. Summary of significant accounting 2. TESTHHEME (B)

policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)
Revenue recognition WEmER
Revenue from contracts with customers BEFE &4 W
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised BEFEEHNWRENE MRS Ay & fE
when control of goods or services is transferred to the B TEPRUASEEEHREREE R
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to AR T IRE R ERER o

which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable EeRRNEEETESE  AEEE
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which LEtEREFEZEERSREMEE
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring WEHWRESEE 2R ERERFA
the goods or services to the customer. The variable MEEET X —BEZR EEATER
consideration is estimated at contract inception and EMHETEEMERERR BT
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant SR+ ECHRIARTNRRBREERK
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue wHIL -

recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component EeNBEE s RENsATFIRHEE
which provides the customer with a significant benefit B-—FHARIREEERENEXR
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the Flz50F - WAREWERFRIREE -
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at BRI A 2R R RN AR EE
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted HEFEENRRBEZEBRER
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a 5 EENEECRER s ALER
separate financing transaction between the Group and RUHE-—FULINEARMBERNRRE R
the customer at contract inception. When the contract BENEIZBANBRERERNE R
contains a financing component which provides the Group BENBEEFZ2ANERZ -BREF
with a significant financial benefit for more than one NREBZEAZADRNERBIBARS
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the —FHEEREZEHOMES » RBEK
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under KA BMBHREERE1GR 2B
the effective interest method. For a contract where the EERLZ TSHEARER SN
period between the payment by the customer and the ZEHPE -

transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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» NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. TEFFBORBE (F)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETTHEBRE (F)

Revenue recognition (continued) KR (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) BEFE&GH W (B)
(a) Sale of proprietary integrated circuits products () EEEREREREE

Revenue from the sale of proprietary integrated
circuits products is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the proprietary
integrated circuits products. Some contracts for the
sale of proprietary integrated circuits products provide
customers volume rebates. The volume rebates give
rise to variable consideration.

(i) Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided
to certain customers once the quantity of
products purchased during the period exceeds a
threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are
offset against amounts payable by the customer.
To estimate the variable consideration for the
expected future rebates, the most likely amount
method is used for contracts with a single-volume
threshold and the expected value method for
contracts with more than one volume threshold.
The selected method that best predicts the
amount of variable consideration is primarily
driven by the number of volume thresholds
contained in the contract. The requirements on
constraining estimates of variable consideration
are applied and a refund liability for the expected
future rebates is recognised.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS%E

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund
some or all of the consideration received (or receivable)
from the customer and is measured at the amount the
Group ultimately expects it will have to return to the
customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund
liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction
price) at the end of each reporting period.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services in exchange for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
with grant after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer
using a binomial model, further details of which are given
in note 25 to the financial statements.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS%E
SA R RENE

2. TEETHERMUE (&)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially
at fair value at the grant date taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the instruments were granted
(note 25). The fair value is expensed over the period until
the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding
liability. The cumulative expense recognised for cash-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of awards that will ultimately vest. The
liability is measured at the end of each reporting period up
to and including the settlement date, with changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2. TEETHERUE (R)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETTHEBRE (F)

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China and overseas are required to participate
in a central retirement benefit scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central retirement benefit scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central retirement benefit scheme.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employers’ existing level of
contributions can be reduced by contributions forfeited by
the employers on behalf of those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Forfeited
contributions totalling US$32,000 (2021: US$20,000)
were utilized during the year ended 31 December 2022 to
reduce contributions and US$5,000 forfeited contribution
was available as at 31 December 2022 (2021: US$19,000)
to reduce future years’ contributions.

Under the central retirement benefit scheme to which the
Group’s subsidiaries operating in Mainland China and
overseas are required to make contribution, no forfeited
contributions will be used by the employers to reduce the
existing level of contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

122  Solomon Systech (International) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2022

BEREA
BUkEFE

FEBRBEFBRFMEAEESHER
FBERERSERESHENEEER
T-RAREHRRNEFMELESR
RERGH 8 ([REERT 8 ]) - R
RESEFNETEOLEE - AR
BEAESTERERNBEREPH
Bk o MRS BN EEEAKE A
EEIHERE HBUEENESE
B o ERRE A BME SR AE
EHNEEIHIEEZBEBEESHES
AEBREEHABHKAERI - RE
BETTANSRE  BREEEHNKE
HEBRSABME  AEEZNEEM
HAERETAEKH -

AEBEFREMNGNMEENHE QT
NESHFTZSNMAELHRFEE
By rh IR R RIRT 8 - BLWE D T
BEHUR—ELLHIN T ERAEZ R R
RNFERIETE o 208 IR AR R
WA ENRNERTARRER -

REBESTE  EERZENER
2 EBABATTENES TR W
AT BERDEZTEEMHIIKFE -
B E2022F12A31B L EER - A
EBDEFTKFEmMBPRRNERE
# A32,000% T (20214 : 20,0003
JT) © MA2022%128318 » AR
SRR FE B A TR K S T B R Uk R 3
X A5,000% 7T (20214 : 19,000
JT) °

RIBPRBAFERNGE - AEBES
B A0 MM & RO B B 2 B L B AE A
M BORBHE R S WIEE AER
DEBEHRKFE -

AU EF

EXAEETABEZSEANENRE
AEEBREARAS KA LR
B FUURRRLEER  UBREER
* o
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2. TEETHERMUE (&)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in US$, which
is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
with the exception of monetary items that are designated
as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment
of a foreign operation. These are recognised in other
comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed
of, at which time the cumulative amount is reclassified to
the statement of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits
attributable to exchange differences on those monetary
items are also recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.
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2. Summary of significant accounting 2. FESHBEBE (&)

policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEBE (&)
Foreign currencies (continued) S (48)
The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries BN B A BN IhEEE M B X T S
are currencies other than US$. As at the end of the MWEE  -RBEHR ZZEEEBNE
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities EREERBESHRNNBERRE
are translated into US$ at the exchange rates prevailing RET > MZEBEEREERFEHR
at the end of the reporting period and their statements RIBNEAE =R E ERIBERETT ©
of profit or loss are translated into US$ at the exchange FELENESRZEESEHEM2ZEKSE
rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates BR O UWEELRBHERRE-E
of the transactions. The resulting exchange differences HEFNEBLRE > BHZBINEKERE
are recognised in other comprehensive income and PEMEEKENERTSRIEER
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On R o

disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign KB S/IEEMEENEEREE
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying MEGEHNIREEN A FERAE 987
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are EZBNBERNEERERE  TRK
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation MEXRKRE -

and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash REERERERMS  BIMEL
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are ANRERERREEREEERMNESR
translated into US$ at the exchange rates ruling at the BREMET o BINHE L RREAER
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows EEENESRRZFENMETES
of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year BEEBERET

are translated into US$ at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS%E

3. Financial risk management and fair value
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments

3.1 Financial risk factors

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2022, the Group is exposed to fair
value or cash flow interest rate risk in relation to the
interest-bearing bank borrowing of the Group with fixed
interest rate. The Group currently does not have any
interest rate hedging policy. However, management will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures primarily arise from revenue and other income
generated, and cost and expenses incurred by operating
units in currencies other than the Group’s operating units’
functional currencies. For the Group’s operating units’
that have the Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”) as their functional
currency, their foreign currency transactions during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, and the units’
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies as at the end of the reporting period were
mainly denominated in US$. As HK$ is pegged to the US$
within a narrow band, the Group does not expect any
significant movements in the US$/HK$ exchange rate.
Accordingly, management considers that the Group’s
foreign currency risk exposure for HK$ is not significant.
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MEEREERE A FERA

3. Financial risk management and fair value 3.

and fair value hierarchy of financial FEESR (&)

instruments (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MEEKEZ(E)
Credit risk FERK

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below shows the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2022

FEEERERIREFEIENE=
FETRS - RBASENBUR - Fi
BHRREERTETRZNEFLA
BREERERFE  HAMFEE- I
O AEEE R EEREWGIEAR
5’9(1%%  HFFEE AVRRE R R B

REEBRFETH

TRETNTERAEBEEHREN
FREENGXRERRRKO - ZE
ERFFEENBENTBEE (R
FEMEEEETFIMVENRARE
H) o UREBE12A31BMNEL D
é:;ﬁ c B SEAETREENIREA

A2022%F12H31H

12-month
ECLs
1218 A Lifetime ECLs
BHEERE FRABHEESE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1RR B #IEr W EE @t
US$’000 US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
TERT TERT TERT TER TEn
Trade receivables* e - - - 23,761 23,761
Financial assets included in ~ FJ& R EMEKZRA
deposits and other receivables HEEEE
- Normal*™ ~-EE" 16,899 - - - 16,899
Pledged bank deposits SEEBNRITER
- Not yet past due - RiBH 6,041 - - - 6,041
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY
- Not yet past due - RBH 45,556 - - - 45,556
68,496 - - 23,761 92,257
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3. Financial risk management and fair value
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

e IR R R

3. MBEBRERE A FERA
FEERH (F)

3.1 MBEAREER(E)

EERMK (E)
REBERERFATH ()
M2021F12H31H

12-month
ECLs
12184 Lifetime ECLs
BHEERSE ERREHEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E1RE EoRER HIWE  BLIHER @t
US$’000 US$’000 Us$’000 US$’000 Us$’000
Ee E Ey E EY
Trade receivables* R - - - 24,332 24,332
Financial assets included in ~ FJ &R EMEKTRA
deposits and other receivables MEFEE
- Normal* —E&E™ 13,612 - - - 13,612
Pledged bank deposit SEBNRITER
- Not yet past due - RiBH 17,000 - - - 17,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEN
- Not yet past due - RPBH 24,757 - - - 24,757
55,369 - - 24,332 79,701

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the * BBEREERERBGORERA/GLS
simplified approach for impairment, information based on EATREEBNER  RUER
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 23 to the financial RHF 23K 5E ©
statements.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in deposits * e NHEMERRTEENSmME
and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when ENEREEERIMBEREAIE
they are not past due and there is no information indicating Bl WTEREEERPBEDNRER
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit BREMEENEARMBEEIEM -
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of BH cRMEENEREERRA
the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”. 2[A5EM] -

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, rEBHEMeRMEE (BERERE

which comprise cash and cash equivalents and other SEBEYREMERR) NEERK

receivables arises from default of the counterparty, with a ERXRGEHLEAMESL  RaEKE
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these ERZETANWKREME-

instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group had certain concentrations of credit risk as 21%
(2021: 17%) and 67% (2021: 68%) of the Group’s trade
receivables were due from the Group’s largest debtor and
the five largest debtors, respectively. Further quantitative
data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 23 to
the financial statements.

RFIFERARAF

HRAEEEEERTREETEN
E=ZFEARS REBFEBERK -
RFERR  AEBREETEES
R EREENE S EWRRIE
o 5 BIE21% (20214F 1 17%) &
67% (20214 : 68% ) HEWAREEH
BABEHEARAAREEANRE o &
EEEEBEEZEWFENEERR
W O R — B BB IR BER IR
FMIEE23 ©
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3. Financial risk management and fair value 3. M ¥EBREERE A FERAD
and fair value hierarchy of financial FEESR (&)
instruments (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MEEKEZ(E)
Liquidity risk 7 B L B
The Group monitors and maintains a sufficient level AEEEERAREEERAZHAN
of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by RERBELEEY  WEAXEEN
the management to finance the Group’s operations EERMHESUYEMBESTEREMN
and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flows. FE EEHETHERREEAEER
Management reviews and monitors the Group’s working NEEEEFER

capital requirements regularly.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at RBEHR  AEBERESHRER
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual NEENemEENBRERE W
undiscounted payments, is as follows: ™
2022
No fixed term 3 to less
of repayment/ Less than than
on demand 3 months 12 months 1 to 5 years Total
REEEN
BRER/ MEAZESD
REXEE D3R i PA:] 1256 i
US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$000 US$000
Ee e Ee N Es

Financial liabilities included in EARREMESRA

trade and other payables Hemes 9,285 15,807 - = 25,092
Interest-bearing bank borrowings £ /Tit B &R - 1,423 - - 1,423
Lease liabilities HESHE - 220 1,127 699 2,046

9,285 17,450 1,127 699 28,561
2021
No fixed term 310 less
of repayment/ Less than than
on demand 3 months 12 months  1to 5 years Total
RBEEN
ERER/ 3ERES K
REREE Hi3fEA 12f8 A 1255 @t
US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000
S e S S S
Financial liabilities included in EARREENHA

trade and other payables nemas 8,966 23,919 - - 32,885
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ~ R{T:EER - 1 2 182 185
Lease liabilities HEEE — 205 993 1,370 2,568

8,966 24,125 995 1,552 35,638
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e IR R R

3. Financial risk management and fair value 3. I EREE 2 FERD
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.1

3.2

Financial risk factors (continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

The capital of the Group represents equity attributable to
owners of the Group.

Fair value

The carrying amount and fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amount that

FEERH (F)

3.1 BIEMEE (&)
EARER

FEBMEAEENERERER/RESR
SESFECENREILESRRENE
AR UXIHHEBRBRRANE
RAEE-

REERBLEERESCREBEEE
HEMRSHEERAZEERERE -
BESRARERERE  AEERE
BREERTFRRBEBTHRGD - RE
£2022F12H831H &2021F12831
HIEFE EXEEEEZ  BEXRE

REBNEXRNERQATEE AEML
R o
3.2 A¥E

RIREESEHBEIATFENESRT
B AEEERITANREENA

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: FEOT
Carrying amounts Fair values
REE AYE
Financial assets SREE 2022 2021 2022 2021
US$’000 Us$’000 US$’000 US$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn
Equity investment designated RATEETAHM
at fair value through other ZHBANEE
comprehensive income 1,161 1,065 1,161 1,065
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3. Financial risk management and fair value
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.2 Fair value (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade
receivables, trade payables, financial assets included in
deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, the current portion of
interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities
of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank borrowings have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings as
at 31 December 2021 was assessed to be insignificant.
The carrying amounts of the non-current portion of
interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to their fair
values.

OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MEEREERE A FERA
FEERG (&)

3.2 A¥E (&)

EEECHERERRESEEY B
ERRITER B B &
BEFREHEMCERRPHNERE
E BEEEMBEMRRETIEES

WemERE  FRRITERNRBI
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TRHEEREBENLFEERAEX
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Financial risk management and fair value
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.2 Fair value (continued)

The fair value of an unlisted equity investment designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income has
been estimated by observable prices or rates of sale of
similar assets. The directors believe that the estimated fair
value which is recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position, and the related changes in fair values,
which is recorded in other comprehensive income, are
reasonable, and that it was the most appropriate values at
the end of the reporting period.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2022

3.
S'Z

3.2

e IR R R

BEREER RAFERA
BERH (&)

DFE (&)

URAABEEFT ARMEEBANIE
FRERENQAIAEBE  BRAUBE
BERFEUEENHEERLE -ES
RR - FEMBMRR R PR
AREEARAIABEENHEEZD
(RAHMAZREWE) REEN - XA
ERBREHRREENEE-

DFEERE

TRAPTAEEESHTAENARE
BT 245

EERAVENE

M2022512831H

Fair value measurement using

NP EFENA

Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
RiER ER TABE
miEHE BARE BARE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E1ER) (E2[EHR) (%3ER) st
Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000
ST TR S SEY
Equity investment designated at fair ~ ZAFEEF A
value through other comprehensive ~ ZEWAMNKRE
income - 1,161 - 1,161
FPXERERAT o 2022555 131
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3. Financial risk management and fair value 3. B EREE > AFER A

and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.2 Fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

FEERH (&)

3.2 A¥E (&)
AFEEKD (&)
20215128318

Fair value measurement using

AFEHEAA

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
RWERE EE TAEE
TSRE BARE BWARE

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F1ER) (F2BR) (%3EBR) st
US$000 US$’000 USs$’000 Us$'000

EH EH EH EYH

Equity investment designated at fair R AFEE AL
value through other comprehensive ~ ZHEWAHRE
income

- 1,065 - 1,065




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS%;

4. Significant accounting estimates and

judgements

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Income taxes

The Group has exposure to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is involved in determining
the provision for income taxes. Determining income tax
provisions involves judgement on the future tax treatment of
certain transactions and interpretation of tax rules. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account
all changes in tax legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Determining the method to estimate variable consideration and
assessing the constraint for the sale of products.

Certain contracts for the sale of products include volume
rebates that give rise to variable consideration. In estimating
the variable consideration, the Group is required to use
either the expected value method or the most likely amount
method based on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled.

e IR R R

4. BERETEER A E

RRASEBBHRERE  EEBAFLHE
FEMERUA  HAX BEREEBEZR
SEENRHERRERIREERE 2
B AT REBR - BEZRSEHRERRMAZ
THREMSSEHAREAUZIZECEE
HEEREEFEHERAE -

#

REATEESTBERBRES BRI RM
ST EBEN  EBEECEHY TR
KRHERATEBREEAFE ZHEW
T :

PR %t

FEBAREZEREREHNAES - &
EFGHREBHEYRERHE - BERSH
BERIREETIZ ZARBREGTER
BIERARENHE - AEEBEFMGER
ZBBRE  WHBRYGERE &
HEHMEZERZER 5 NBIRSTE L RRE
BHE REREANZIREL -

HEF T RERE

RBEEHREERAR 2 EERR R E A
FATAEEMCEEZRE ST —EMK
FEANEERBERABEERAEN
Bk FRT XA o

HEFHEITSRNBA

BELMETZRENFEERBEIRN
Tk e

HEERHEESREERELETERENL
BN - RS U ERER  AEEFE
ERERBPEEEANKITEESIEL X
EEFHEAEERESHNRESHE -

SRuEEERAT o 202265% 133
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Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

In estimating the variable consideration for the sale of products
with volume rebates, the Group determined that using the most
likely amount method is appropriate. The selected method that
better predicts the amount of variable consideration related
to volume rebates is primarily driven by the number of volume
thresholds contained in the contract. The most likely amount
method is used for those contracts with a single volume
threshold.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the
transaction price, the Group considers whether the amount of
variable consideration is constrained. The Group determined
that the estimates of variable consideration are not constrained
based on its historical experience, business forecast and the
current economic conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on
the variable consideration will be resolved within a short time
frame.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
using key assumptions such as budgeted revenue growth rate
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets at 31
December 2022 were US$5,089,000 (2021: US$4,269,000) and
US$NIl (2021: US$505,000), respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:%

4. Significant accounting estimates and

judgements (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geographical region).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade
receivables is disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on deposits and other
receivables

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits
and deposits with suppliers. Where applicable, an impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date by considering the
probability of default of comparable companies with published
credit ratings. As at 31 December 2022, the probability of
default applied ranged from 0.40% to 0.90% (2021: 0.24%
to 0.84%) and the loss given default was estimated to be
100% (2021: 100%). In the situation where no comparable
companies with credit ratings can be identified, expected credit
losses are estimated by applying a loss rate approach with
reference to the historical loss record of the Group. The loss
rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions, as appropriate. The loss rate
applied where there were no comparable companies as at 31
December 2022 was 100% (2021: 100%).

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and
past due amounts. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the loss
allowance was assessed to be minimal.

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged analyses of the Group’s
inventories, projections of expected future saleability of goods
and management experience and judgement. Based on this
review, write-down of inventories will be made when the
estimated net realisable value of inventories declines below
their carrying amount. Due to changes in technological, market
and economic environment and customers’ preference, actual
saleability of goods may be different from estimation and profit
or loss could be affected by differences in this estimation. As
at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of inventories was
US$48,221,000 (2021: US$40,866,000).

e IR R R

BT E & H E (&)

fEErTRERR (8)
BUZRNEAREERAERE

REBERBBERSERRRNES
EREX BERENAFEUBRENX
(B> BB E) NEEZTFHNDEN
BERE -

BEEEGYNENEEELBEINEY
R o NEBREKEELEMATEMLEEE
FEE L AIBREER - flm - mRES
AEGIRR (BN EERE) B ERFR
b ERREHREXENHELN - B
REELEYR - ABEREEH B
RSB B RIE A RI 5 AT AT M fEEHE
Mt - BEASERVRNALRIERE
KNEESRBENF B RRMEE23 -

AEkEMERRNWAREERARE

FJEREMERFEERHASIT S REM
EENT€ AEERSRERHBRZ
EEAMEEFANTELEATNEYN
AIEE M EITRE D A (@A) ° 2022
F12831H BEH T EMEN F0.40%ZE
0.90% (20214 : 0.24%%E0.84% ) > M
BEENEBMFTA100% (20214F :
100%) ° W EE B EEF RN T ELLE
DAEHEEBE > NSBEAEBEFEIBRLHE
EABEBXRAGITRHBEESE - BEX
TR LU BLE B R 30 T8 A SR B AR 7 AR
(B A) o 20225128310 > i E
AELRATBEREANEIEZA100%
(20214 : 100%) °

FFA LSS EERY EITHEY
RN A ENERER - K2022F
N2021F12831H ' BREBELSTEE

FENARRFE

KEBZEREEFEWRRD W - BH
AREVEEHENTEARSTELERH
B EHRNTFERAEE - RIEZR
EFENGTUTERFERNERAE
B SRR EE - HREM » mEMERE
REUREFRIFNEL  EROERT
SHEM TR ETTE » WH G EHHE
BEARESEEER - H E2022F12H31
H 75 RMEE 548,221,000 Jt (2021
£ 1 40,866,000% 7T) °
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Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation
when no observable rates are available or when it needs to
be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease.
The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs such as
market interest rates when available.

Segment information and disaggregation
of revenue

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the
design, development and sales of proprietary IC products
and system solutions that enable a wide range of display
applications for smartphones, tablets, smart TVs/monitors,
notebooks and other smart devices, including electronic shelf-
labels (ESLs), wearables, healthcare devices, smart home
devices, as well as industrial appliances etc.

The Group has been operating in one single operating segment,
i.e., the design, development and sales of IC products and
system solutions.

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified
as the Executive Directors and senior management led by
the Chief Executive Officer. The Executive Directors and
senior management reviewed the Group’s internal reporting
as a whole to assess performance and allocate resources.
A management approach has been used for the operating
segment reporting.

Sales amounted to US$190,843,000 and US$168,120,000 for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Group mainly
operates in Hong Kong. During 2022, the Group’s products
were mainly sold to customers located in Hong Kong, Mainland
China, Taiwan, Japan and Europe.
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5. Segment information and disaggregation
of revenue (continued)

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated
by geographical markets

(b)

(c)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —

5.

e IR R R

THERREESES E (R

(a) BB HSEIBNEFEHNRE

2022 2021

US$’°000 US$’000

FEn FER

Hong Kong 107,126 90,819
Mainland China 8,702 15,343
Taiwan 32,973 35,992
Europe 19,124 16,830
Japan 17,763 7,913
Korea 418 765
South East Asia 650 86
USA 3,376 122
Others 711 250
190,843 168,120

Sales are classified based on the places/countries in which

customers are located.

Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated

by product types

HEREREFAELE BRDHE -

(b) RERBEEIBENEFENNWE

2022 2021

US$’000 US$’000

FEx ET

New Display ICs A FE/RICS 87,827 71,286
OLED Display ICs OLED#ERICs 24,778 34,737
Mobile Display and Mobile Touch ICs BEIZRKBEHEIEICs 66,953 43,078
Large Display ICs REFETRICs 11,285 19,019
190,843 168,120

Revenue from contracts with customers that was
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of

the reporting period

The following table shows the amount of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that was
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the

reporting period:

(c) EENEETRIR/EIBEPINE

F&#KWaE

TRETRBEHINEESEANER
FHEAAIREDANWE S

2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
FER FErT
Revenue recognised that was RBESHNESEENEET
included in contract liabilities WERRNKZESEE !
at the beginning of the reporting
period:
Sales of ICs 1,480 1,391

EFvEmERAT o 2002555 137

-



= ~. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R AR Y RE

5. Segment information and disaggregation
of revenue (continued)

(d) Non-current assets

(e)

(f)

(9)

5. 7 HEMKEEE SR (E)

(d FRBEE

2022 2021

US$’000 US$’000

FEx ESH

Hong Kong &8 3,865 5,413
Mainland China AR K FE 3,983 3,349
Taiwan 8& 1,511 1,788
Korea B2 - 7
9,359 10,557

Non-current assets are listed based on the locations of

FRBDEE (TESLEMIA) IR

assets which exclude financial instruments. BEENFEHTUNE -
Capital expenditures (e) BEXRMX
2022 2021
US$000 US$’000
FEx FEn
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRE
Mainland China AR K fE 1,907 830
Hong Kong B8 561 616
Taiwan (=¥ 64 87
2,532 1,533

Capital expenditures are listed based on the locations of
assets.

Major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the largest
customer was located in Hong Kong, and sales to that
customer was US$71,151,000, over 10% of the Group’s
total revenue. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
largest customers was located in Hong Kong. Sales to that
customer was US$60,166,000 over 10% of the Group’s
total revenue.

Performance obligation

Sale of integrated circuits products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the products and payment is generally due within 30 to
90 days from date of delivery. Some contracts provide
customers with volume rebates which give rise to variable
consideration subject to constraint.

(f)

(9)

gizkﬁ?‘iiﬁﬂﬂiﬁéﬂ’ﬂﬁﬂii&%uﬂ

FEEF

B ZE2022%12A31BLEHFE -
BAEFNUREB - HEEES
71,151,000 7T » WIEAREBEBRHEE
ZEHEIBE10% ° EE§2021$12H312

@

K

LEE FREFUREHE - Hif
58360,166,000E 7T + S {5 A EE
HEFERBRIE10% °
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6. PR AT R
AEBWBRBAERIENR, GIA) T

6. Profit before tax

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting): JIBIEEZESE
2022 2021
Notes US$’000 US$’000
MiEE FER Epv
Cost of goods sold $HE KA 112,718 101,431
Product engineering costs EmIEEAE 9,182 7,450
Provision/(reversal of provision) BENEHEEENERE
for obsolete or slow moving (E#) - FE
inventories, net 22 12,013 (1,152)
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#E 15 504 517
Depreciation of property, plant and M HERRE
equipment e 16 1,293 1,074
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 17 1,355 1,251
Lease payments not included in the HEXETEEE
measurement of lease liabilities HEBGEZ=E 17(c) 64 226
Impairment of other receivables and Hit B R ET £ RE
deposits* il 23 92 68
Reversal of impairment loss of trade JRE USSR B RS 18 [ 3
receivables* 23 (6) -
(Gain)/loss from dissolution of FRAREEE (B
subsidiaries* Bk (86) 331
COVID-19-related rent concession 2019 B R Fm = fH B B8
from lessor HERZ 17(b) (76) (1)
Foreign exchange differences, net YMNE = 2B 2E (1,366) 1,200
Auditor’s remuneration ZEE & 148 139
Employee benefit expenses (including EERAEX (BEES
directors’ emoluments (Note 11)): B (MFEE11)) -
— Salaries, allowances, bonuses - e RERAR
and other benefits HAunEF 23,997 28,633
- Equity-settled share option - UEREEN
expense BRERX 496 204
- Pension scheme contributions - RIREFHEIMHR
(defined contribution (REMRETE)
schemes)** 337 386
— Termination benefits - RIEER 78 91
24,908 29,314
* The balances are included in “other income and gains - net” * EEEGTAEREEMS 2R AGRE

for gains and “other expense” for losses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

BErRIEtMBARKE -FEIRIE
feBi ] °

**  There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by *
the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of
contributions.

BREHHRTEREBEREZRAAN
DR RFRKFE -

SRMEEERAT o 202268% 139
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7. Other income and gains - net

7. Hftli AR s - FHE

2022 2021

US$’000 US$’000

FEx FEx

Government grants* BT w8 B~ 1,898 946
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWME - BMERRE

plant and equipment 1H B k& 3 3

Gain from dissolution of a subsidiary FRRIEEME 86 -

Reversal of impairment loss of trade SRR RN LS 1 [ 4

receivables 6 -

Others HAtb 9 260

2,002 1,209

* Various government grants have been received for the Group’s * FR - AEENHAREECESSERF

research and development projects during the year. There are no

ey MR ARELERNBENRETR

unfulfilled conditions relating to these grants. o
8. Other expenses 8. Hipx
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
FEx ES
Impairment of other receivables and HihEWR KT B EEE
deposits 92 68
Loss from dissolution of subsidiaries FRRIEEEL - 331
Others Hih 62 77
154 476
9. Finance income - net 9. REWA—- FH
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FEx
Interest income F) B A 363 278
Interest on bank loans RITERNAEZH (36) (3)
Interest on lease liabilities HEEENFEXH (81) (55)
246 220




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN

10.Five highest paid employees

One (2021: one) of the five top-paid employees of the Group
is a director of the Company whose emolument is disclosed in
note 11 to the financial statements.

Details of the emoluments of the other four (2021: four) top-
paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive
officer of the Company are as follows:

e P wRMEE

10. 5 8EEHMES

AEFBLEESHFATB/E—F (2021
F:—R)AQAES HHES SR HK
HRARMEETTRER ©

BT 2B IFESRIFTHAR (2021
F OB RSHFATHMENT :

2022 2021
US$’000 us$’000
FEx FErx
Salaries, allowances, bonuses and e RORR
other benefits TEALF H A F 596 576
Discretionary bonuses BIETEAL 454 504
Contribution to pension scheme ARG EIH X 26 23
1,076 1,103
Number of individuals

Emolument bands (HK$) AB
e EzEEE (Bx) 2022 2021
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1 2

2,000,001 - 2,500,000
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e B RS R AR Y RE

11. Directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration

Directors’ and chief executive officer’s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)
(@), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Hong Kong Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

NEERTHEAZMS

RiIBELETRARSE B QA EH 5E383(1)
(@ () c)RMHERAT (KEEEFR
ER) RO BAEE RN FE 2 EERIT
BAEMESOT :

Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2022

HZ202F 12N ALFEES M

Salaries Pension
and benefits scheme  Share-based
Fees in kind® contributions paymentf? Total
#ER Bihe
fie HitERO SHEER RER X @t
US$'000 US$°000 US$°000 US$’000 US$’000
S ST TEn Txn ST
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BUFHTES
Leung Heung Ying RER 33 - - 22 55
Sheu Wei Fu THEX 30 - - 22 52
Chan Philip Ching Ho REZ 31 - - 22 53
94 - - 66 160
Non-Executive Directors FHTESE
Ma Yuchuan 1/ - - - - -
Wang Hui I - - - - -
Kang Jian e - - - - -
Executive Director BTES
Wang Wah Chi, Raymond TEF - 659 14 83 756
- 659 14 83 756
94 659 14 149 916
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11. Directors’ and chief executive’s NEERTHARWNE (F)
remuneration (continued)

Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2021

HZ2021E12831ALEEES S

Salaries Pension
and benefits scheme  Share-based
Fees in kind®  contributions paymentt Total
\ FER _Biks o .
e =82l SE [ REm %o @t
Us$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000
ey e iR e Es
Independent Non-executive Directors B H317E%
Leung Heung Ying RER 32 - - 16 48
Sheu Wei Fu AHER 30 - - 16 46
Chan Philip Ching Ho REX 30 - - 16 46
92 - - 48 140
Non-Executive Directors FUITES
Ma Yuchuan Yl - - - - -
Wang Huie Tl - - - - -
Kang Jian® BEglo _ _ _ _ .
Ye Nan® Zigo - - - - -
Li Jun® Zigo - - - - -
Yu Jian® Bfg® - - - - -
Lo Wai Ming® B 9 - - - 9
g - - - 9
Executive Director HiTES
Wang Wah Chi, Raymond TEL - 628 14 101 743
- 628 14 101 743
101 628 14 149 892
Notes: M EE -
(@) Appointed on 1 April 2021. (a) M2021F4R1BREE -
(b) Appointed on 3 November 2021. (b) M2021F11B3REZE -
(c) Appointed on 10 June 2021 and resigned on 3 November 2021. (c) }?6;%032&%(13; 100 # Z 1 R 20214
(d) Resigned on 10 June 2021. (d) 7202146 3 100 BHE -
(e) Resigned on 1 April 2021. (e) M2021F481HBHE -
(f)  Retired on 27 May 2021. () HR2021F5H27HRAE °
During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable by ERASERECHABENEENS
the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon EAMAREBSMAKREBEEZER
joining the Group (2021: Nil). During the year, there was no (20214 1 4&) o TR » AEBEIEZNE
compensation for loss of office was paid by the Group to the EEBWEE (2021F 1 8) -
directors (2021: Nil).
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FABEEZHRNE TR REMM A
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2021: Nil). ZHE (20215 : ) o
(i)  Benefits in kind include leave pay, insurance premium, termination () HUESNEERBEIE REE  KLE
benefits and other allowances. I Rz H fth 32 BE o
(i)  This represents the amount charged to the consolidated statement (i) U TRRIEE B B35 3R 5 A B 05 [ AR 47 |
of profit or loss under the requirements of HKFRS 2 Share-based NRNREMSAGESEEROEHE - B
payments. During the current and prior years, certain directors REERBEFE - ETESRELNF
were granted share options, in respect of their services to the 9 B8 iR 1 AT Bt HL 3 S £ B B9 AR A5 AR
Group, under the share option scheme of the Company, further BB - FUE— Dt EER B RR W
details of which are set out in note 25 to the financial statements. 25  ZZEHENRIABEEREBHAR
The fair value of such options, which has been recognised in the FRBERRER  MROBEE  MAF
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, ERBHRRMEENSHROTALMRES
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included 9 B [ A0 47 B A8 28 19 37 B 3 2B ©

in the financial statements for the current year is included in the
above directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.

SRMEEERAT o 202265% 143
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Frig®t

12. Income tax 12.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. In the prior year, no provision for Hong Kong
profits tax had been made as the Group had no estimated
assessable profits. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions
in which the Group operates.

BEBNESHORFAREBELENMGETE
BB A IE16.5%5T 1R - REFREF - K
SEEEMERRTGR M BRETBRE
B - BN EHARBAEENEE
Rl iR 2 E AR RTE -

2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
FErx FTErx

Current — Hong Kong and Elsewhere: B8 — &8 &g
Charge for the year FAXH 83 48
Total income tax expense FriefimH%E 83 48

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the Hong Kong statutory tax rate (the statutory tax
rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority
of its subsidiaries are domiciled) to the tax expense at the
Group’s effective tax rate is as follows:

BRARKAERBEERR (RAAREKX
MOMBLARAMER EEBREBNEER
) 5T & YRR AT 5 R B B I8 B 37 B R AR
SEERBEFENOTEMIHKROT

2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FEx
Profit before tax B FR A S R 27,907 23,777
Income tax calculated at a tax rate Fri88i1216.5%
of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) (20214 : 16.5%) 5T & 4,604 3,923
Difference in tax rates for other H B LAEBEN
jurisdictions HEER 964 739
Losses/(profits) attributable to BeENTNEL S (BR)
associates 19 (27)
Income not subject to tax B AR B U &= (1,777) (2,000)
Expenses not deductible for tax TANFEAX 3,637 1,955
Tax losses utilised from previous FERAUTHREBIE
periods 518 (2,863) (3,537)
Effect of additional tax deduction BREKBERENFRENR 2 E
enacted by tax authority (4,574) (1,006)
Others H 73 1
Tax charge at the Group’s effective  EAEBEEERHRFE 2
rate BEEX 83 48




13. Earnings per share

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS%

(a) Basic earnings per share

The basic earnings per share for the year is calculated
based on the Group’s profit in 2022 attributable to owners
of the parent of US$27,833,000 (2021: US$23,782,000)
and the weighted average number of 2,493,903,036 (2021:
2,488,069,886) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The diluted earnings per share is calculated based on
the Group’s profit for the year attributable to owners of
the parent and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year after adjusting for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The information related to the weighted average number of
ordinary shares is as follows:

e IR R R

13. 5RER

(a) BREXEF

BREXRBIAEZERERAQIANE
B AEMRAEEBR2022F 27 F
27,833,000 7t (20214 : 23,782,000
ERX)RAFRNECRITEBRMNE
¥4 8(2,493,903,036% (20214 :
2,488,069,886/%) 5T & o

(b) EREFTEF
BREEERNRERAQNTRNFEEN
BEAEBGEERERREAIRERERNAT

BEEEBELENCRITEERE
HARR ZMEFIIEBRETEH -

?—3 IR g1 B BB E R S H

—,i

Number of shares

RADEE

2022 2021

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue

ERITEBRRNEFIH
% 2,493,903,036

2,488,069,886

Effect of dilution — weighted BEoTE-SZBRME
average numbers of ordinary T BRAE
shares: share options 1,373,259 2,754,579
Adjusted weighted average RETESREERF
number of ordinary shares MARKSER
for diluted earnings per share hnAEF 19 R
calculation 2,495,276,295 2,490,824,465
14. Dividend 14. R B
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
FER FET
Final dividend attributed to FREERBRE :
the year:
Final dividend, proposed, ERRERERE  SREER &
of Nil (2021: 1.0 HK cent (50214 © 1.0l
(approximately 0.1 US cent)) (#90.13=40))
per ordinary share - 3,216

The Board resolved not to declare any final dividend for the

year ended 31 December 2022.

ExgfiE
EFEEZRBRE -

At a meeting held on 23 March 2022, the Directors recommended
the payment of a final dividend of 1.0 HK cent per ordinary share,
totaling HK$24,924,000 (approximately US$3,216,000).

RPIFERARAT o

R2022F3 H23H £17

EIRE =2022F128318

mWeEZEL E=g

BRERPRESREBERA1.08
#5+24,924,0008 7T (#493,216,000% 7T ) °
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15. Intangible assets 15. BEEE

Patents and

intellectual
Goodwill property Total
=R
BmE HEERE st
US$°’000 US$’000 US$’000
E ES ES
31 December 2021 2021%F12A31H
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of 2021%F1 A1 B AR
accumulated amortisation E-Sg: ] - 1,022 1,022
Amortisation provided during the year FR#H - (517) (517)
At 31 December 2021 R2021%F12831H - 505 505
At 31 December 2021 M2021%12831H
Cost N 2,317 21,517 23,834
Accumulated amortisation g Fc - (13,024) (13,024)
Accumulated impairment ZiHEE (2,317) (7,988) (10,305)
Net carrying amount REFE - 505 505
31 December 2022 2022%12A31H
Cost at 1 January 2022, net of 202251818 RAR K
accumulated amortisation - 5] - 505 505
Amortisation provided during the year & Py - (504) (504)
Exchange realignment (L - (1) 1)
At 31 December 2022 2022%12831H - - -
At 31 December 2022 M2022%12831H
Cost A 2,317 21,517 23,834
Accumulated amortisation E-SE - (18,529) (13,529)
Accumulated impairment REHRE (2,317) (7,988) (10,305)
Net carrying amount BREFE - - -

Amortisation expense of US$504,000 (2021: US$517,000) has
been charged in research and development costs.

1# §8 B9 504,0003 Jt (20214 : 517,000
EN)ERARRFEERAIP I -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSi'

16. Property, plant and equipment

e IR R R

16. M35 - BBERRE

Furniture, Machinery
fixtures, and

Land Leasehold licenses and laboratory Motor
and building improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
BE-
1 BENx EEKE- HER
¢ 3 %E HURRRE ERERE "E @t
US$000 US$000 US$000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000
Sy Tin S SE TEn S
31 December 2022 2022 12A31H
At 1 January 2022 #2022%1A1H
Cost A 1,910 2,763 6,293 14,536 156 25,658
Accumulated depreciation ~ EiHiE (292) (2,392) (5,750) (12,887) (56) (21,377)
Accumulated impairment 2 HE - - (11) (1) - (12)
Net carrying amount RHEFE 1,618 3N 532 1,648 100 4,269
At1January 2022, netof  R2022F1R 1Rk
accumulated depreciation ZTERAE
and impairment 1,618 371 532 1,648 100 4,269
Additions HE - 92 797 1,643 - 2,532
Depreciation provided during  F/R#TE
the year (21) (159) (396) (673) (44) (1,293)
Exchange realignment ERRZ (192) ) (80) (139) - (419)
At 31 December 2022, net of ~ R2022F 12531 B
accumulated depreciation BREFHERRE
and impairment 1,405 296 853 2,479 56 5,089
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12531H
Cost R 1,682 2,742 6,757 14,807 156 26,234
Accumulated depreciation  EFHTE (277) (2,446) (5,893) (12,417) (100) (21,133)
Accumulated impairment ZiHE - - (11) 1) - (12)
Net carrying amount RHFE 1,405 296 853 2,479 56 5,089

Depreciation expense of US$640,000 (2021: US$589,000) has
been included in cost of sales, US$68,000 (2021: US$70,000)
in research and development costs and US$585,000 (2021:

US$415,000) in administrative expenses.

T E & 640,000 T (20214 : 589,000
EL)CFTAHEERR st AR
& A £68,0003% jt (20214 : 70,0003%
Jt) » s AT EB S A585,0003% 7T (2021

% 1 415,000%7T) ©

RFIFERARAF
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16. Property, plant and equipment 16. Y1 % - B RZRE (&)
(continued)
Furniture, Machinery
fixtures, and
Land Leasehold  licenses and laboratory Motor
and building  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
wE

T BEME EEkE. HER

REgF & HUERRE ERERGK RE act

Us§'000 US§'000  US$000 US§'000  US§000  US$'000
TER TR TER TR TR TR

31 December 2021 2021127318
At 1 January 2021 202151518
Cost B 1,812 2,935 6,108 14,441 72 25,368
Accumulated depreciation ZiiTE (255) (2,803) (5,638) (12,906) (32) (21,634)

Accumulated impairment 2itAE (1) (1) - (12)

Net carrying amount REFE 1,557 132 459 1,534 40 3,722

At 1 January 2021, net of R2021E1 B 1BEkK
accumulated depreciation ~ BiHTERFE

and impairment 1,557 132 459 1,534 40 3,722
Additions NE - 362 341 746 84 1,533
Disposals R - @) - - - 2
Depreciation provided during  FRHTE

the year (2) (122) @72) (634) 4) (1,074)
Exchange realignment ERHE 83 1 4 2 - 90

At 31 December 2021, net of  R2021F12A31R
accumulated depreciation BREFHTERAE

and impairment 1,618 371 532 1,648 100 4,269
At 31 December 2021 R2021%12831H

Cost R 1,910 2,763 6,293 14,536 156 25,658
Accumulated depreciation ~ B3f#TE (292) (2,392) (5,750) (12,887) (56) (21,377)

Accumulated impairment ZitHE (1) (1) - (12)

Net carrying amount REFE 1,618 371 532 1,648 100 4,269




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group has leases for its office properties and motor
vehicles used in its operations. Leases of leased properties
generally have lease terms between 1 and 3 years, while
motor vehicles generally have leases between 1 and 4
years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets

e IR R R

17. &

AEBEREBEA

AEEHERQE

AERREXKE

B-HEMXEMBERIEF  MAE
MEREERIZ4F - —RM 5 - A5H
THEAAEEUMANTEEZRSEEES

= o

(a) EREEE

FEENERAEEERAERANFE

and the movements during the year are as follows: SEOT
Leased Motor
properties vehicles Total
HEMZE RE HT
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
E3 E3 EH
At 1 January 2021 R2021F181H 823 16 839
Additions wE 53 - 53
Lease modification on extending FERIEH ZHEEET
lease term 2,674 - 2,674
Depreciation charge e (1,242) (9) (1,251)
At 31 December 2021 and MR2021FE128318 K
1 January 2022 2022%F1H81H 2,308 7 2,315
Additions hE 699 - 699
Lease modification on extending LR ZHEEET
lease term 143 - 143
Depreciation charge e (1,348) (7) (1,355)
At 31 December 2022 M2022%12A31H 1,802 - 1,802

RMYERERALH
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17. & (&)
(b) HESME

17. Leases (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

HEEENREBRAFEZEHM

(c)

during the year are as follows: T:
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
TER E
Carrying amount at 1 January M1A1HEREE 2,531 887
New leases S 699 53
Lease modification on extending lease ERMBEHZHEET
term 143 2,674
Accretion of interest recognised during REFRSIEM
the year H’E 81 55
COVID-19-related rent concession from  2019BiRHES HAEE
lessor HERR (76) (1)
Exchange realignment AR (70) 14
Payments B (1,312) (1,151)
Carrying amount at 31 December M12B31BEREIE 1,996 2,531
Analysed into: DHAT -
Within one year —FR 1,304 1,139
After one year but within two years —FULEERFEUR 692 984
After two years but within three years MELEE=ZFLURA - 408

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note

3 to the financial statements.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all
eligible rent concessions granted by the lessors for leases
of certain leased properties during the year.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases

are as follows:

B EES R -

HEEEN IR DRI BEHE

BRHHEAEFRAREREYEE
W THREEERESRREAE

ERATTEEDERE -

(c) RESXBEIANEAEHOT :

2022 2021

US$’000 us$’000

FEn FEn

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FERAREERE 1,355 1,251

Expenses relating to short-term leases EHRHEZHEER 64 226

Interest on lease liabilities HEESENFAEXZEH 81 55
COVID-19-related rent concession from 2019k F=HFAEE

lessors HERR (76) (1)

Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIEFRRERANET H 1,424 1,531
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18. Investments in associates 18. REEE R BN E
2022 2021
US$°000 US$’000
FER ETT
Share of net assets BiEFEE 968 1,082
Particulars of the associates are as follows: BEQNTANFMABROT :
Place of Percentage of equity
registration/ Particulars of attributable to the Company
incorporation registered capital/ RAREEEREAL
Associated companies and operation Principal activities issued shares
MR SMER, BRI
BEnTF EEHE TEXEK RBHFHE 2022 2021
Beijing LED Energy PRC LED system design RMB20,000,000 23.5% 23.5%
Management Technology ~#El and contract 20,000,000 A R#
Co. Ltd. installation
T RERREENERA LEDZ &R
BRATR IRR%E
Kitronix Limited Hong Kong Design, development,  HK$38,000,000 25.0% 25.0%
HEINERAF B manufacturing & 38,000,000/ 7T
distribution of LCD
modules
Bt W WER
PHRRETFER
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial Tﬁpﬁﬁﬁm’élﬁfj 4 N\ B Y 4E BE B R =
information of the Group’s associates that are not individually B @RILIEEKX :
material:
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
FER FET
Share of the associates’ (losses)/ BB E ATARE (BX)/
profits and total comprehensive gl ﬁ&%@”ﬁlﬁﬁ/ (F18)
income/(loss) for the year (114) 166
Aggregate carrying amount of Zliﬁlﬁ"ﬁﬁ’r‘*é’&
the Group’s investments in the REWRER
associates 968 1,082

SPNHBERAR e 20225&% 151
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19. [ff B 2 A
ARFEEHBADFAFEROT :

19. Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Place of registration/

incorporation Principal activities and
Name and kind of legal entity place of operation Particulars of capital Interest held
£H ERRUBEREELY TEEBREELE Rast KRk
Solomon Systech Limited HK, LLC Design, development, sales of IC 500,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each ~ 100%

BFNRARLR

Jing Guang Semiconductors
(Dongguan) Limited

REREYERERLR

Solomon Systech (Shenzhen) Limited

BRNE () BRAT

Solomon Systech Taiwan Limited

BENRRABRAA

Solomon Systech (China) Limited

aIRE (PE) BRAF

Sentron, Inc.

&4 ARAF

PRC, LLC

e BRAR
PRC, LLC

hE - BRAR
Taiwan, LLC
2% BRAR
PRC, LLC

hE D BRAR

Korea, LLC
g8 BRAR

and system solutions, HK
Rit B HEEAERBRE
ES i VY EE -

Manufacturing of IC, Mainland China

RERRERE, - PH

Design and distribution of IC,
Mainland China
RARAHERERRS B

Design and development of IC, Taiwan

RARFERERERSS 2R

Design and distribution of IC,
Mainland China
RARIHERERRS 78

Application R&D, Korea
ERRE &8

500,000,000k § REE 12T HEER

US$7,500,000 registered and paid up capital 100%
75000002 L EEMR AR ER

HK$16,000,000 registered and HK$10,325,596 100%
paid up capital
16,000,000 E MR E4E 410,325,596
AT

5,000,000 ordinary shares of NTD10 each ~ 100%

5,000 0008 REE 10 AL RR
US$34,000,000 registered and paid up capital 100%
34,000,000 2 HMRARER

80,000 ordinary shares of KRW5,000 each ~ 52%

80,000 B REES, 000E T HEER

ESAB LXMIAQTZHMBERRTS
IRVEARETFAXARAREEFE
ZEBRHRDE EZRAMIEMHEL

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets

of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

AzHEEEENBRAR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - -

20. Equity investment designated at fair

21.

e IR R R

2. BN EEFARMEERK

value through other comprehensive mHRERE
income
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
FEx E3
Equity investment designated BAFEEFAEMEZEKEHN
at fair value through other RERE
comprehensive income
Club debenture BHES 1,161 1,065

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group
considers this investment to be strategic in nature.

Cash and cash equivalents and pledged
deposits

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
US$6,412,000 (2021: US$10,857,000). The pledged deposits
denominated in US dollars amounted to US$6,041,000 (2021:
US$17,000,000) were pledged to banks to secure banking
facilities. RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, and Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

21.

RFIFERARAF

FEERRRERHKMMEME  RERE
AAEEREEAFEETARMEE

W 25

BeRESEEYREEH
(SN

REBR > NEBUARE (AR
STEMBE S KRIIB1T4HE 656,412,000
Jt (20214 : 10,857,000E Jt) - L E T
SHE2BIEFFER S48 456,041,000E T
(2021% : 17,000,000% ) @ BIKFET
GRERTHREAEZ - ARBTITEHRRT
BAEHEMEY  BIRE KM CIMNE
EEEMN)R(EE -EERNESTER
E) AEEEEEREREETIHIESE
BHWRTHBRAREBLBEMER -

ROTFABBEEARTERANRZZEH
MEHMAL - EHEREFROHARSB
AREIERAAE  AFAEENNKES
ERME  AREEANEHEHREFRA=X
REFIS - RITERTFRREERFHR
17 MHEENRCHE -
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22, Inventories 2 &
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
FEn FEn
Finished goods B 5,635 5,305
Raw materials and work in progress EMRRERSR 57,586 39,286
63,221 44,591
Provision for obsolete or slow moving BERFHEFE
inventories e (15,000) (3,725)
48,221 40,866
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and BRAEFAILF AHEREANEERRE
included in cost of sales amounted to US$112,718,000 (2021: 112,718,0003 jt (20214 : 101,431,000
US$101,431,000). E) e
Movements on the provision for obsolete or slow moving BEIFBEFENRENEBINOT
inventories are as follows:
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FEx
At 1 January M1B18 3,725 8,979
Scrap of inventories against provision FEMEIRERE (738) (4,102)
Provision/(reversal of provision) for BEIFHTE
obsolete or slow moving inventories, net B #E{# E#  FE 12,013 (1,152)
At 31 December M12H31H 15,000 3,725
23. Trade and other receivables, 2. B R R EHMERR FAM
prepayments and deposits MEE®
2022 2021
Note US$’000 US$’000
MiEE FEx FEx
Trade receivables i N 19,227 22,082
Trade receivables from related parties B8 B 7 FE U K 35 4,534 2,250
Impairment RERE (214) (220)
Trade receivables — net W —F5 23,547 24,112
Other receivables, prepayments and HMEWR » EARK
deposits HkA 22,700 14,690
Prepayments to related parties B TR 35 221 233
Impairment WERE (160) (68)
Trade and other receivables, JE W R R LAt B LKURR
prepayments and deposits ENRET£
— current portion — & 46,308 38,967
Other receivables, prepayments and Hitt W ~ EARR
deposits H o

- non-current portion —3ERE 3,117 _ 9,087

f




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - -

23. Trade and other receivables,

prepayments and deposits (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s trade receivables from
corporate customers were mainly on credit terms of 30 to 90
days. As at 31 December 2022, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables based on invoice dates and net of loss allowance,
is as follows:

e IR R R

2. BRI R EMEWRRR - AN

MR & (&)

A20225F 12831 AEFBH L EE
FrEWREEHEEAI0E0H - B
2022F12H31H  EW R U B ERHK
HRBERENRESMOT :

2022 2021

US$’000 UsS$’000

Fxr S

1-30 days 1-30H 11,658 9,795
31-60 days 31-60H 3,728 6,515
61-90 days 61-90H 2,785 5,452
91-180 days 91-180H 4,431 2,350
181-360 days 181-360H 945 -
23,547 24,112

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

FEWRERBEBMNT

2022 2021

US$’000 US$’000

FEx FEx

At beginning of year REL) 220 220
Reversal of impairment losses RE [ 3 (6) -
At end of year RER 214 220

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are
written off if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity.

BEGBSAMERBRBERETRED
o Ut EEHEAEE - BERERA
BEUBAEANZEZTFHN D ANB
HIRH (AR IE &) - et ERR T H
RMEER  ER¥BEEEARKREAH
AESHENBESMH BRI KRR
RERRFINEEMNITZFEE - — R
= RURNBHEB-FYARZH
ERE B AT UGEE -

RFYEEERAT o 2022655 155
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23. Trade and other receivables, 28 BWREHEMERK AN
prepayments and deposits (continued) MKE & (4&)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure LU 0 51| 7 52 (B 457 A 438 48 SE Pl Y FE LUK S
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix: BRIk :
As at 31 December 2022 A2022%F12H31H
Expected credit Gross carrying Expected credit
loss rate amount losses
FHEEBRSR MR E{E FHEEER
% US$’000 US$’000
Aotk FEnr FEx
Past due B
Current RiBHA 0.42 18,141 76
1 to 30 days 1-30H 0.38 3,341 12
31 to 60 days 31-60H 0.66 905 6
61 to 90 days 61-90H 1.80 267 5
Over 90 days B0 H 10.39 1,107 115
23,761 214
As at 31 December 2021 A2021%F12831H
Expected credit Gross carrying  Expected credit
loss rate amount losses
EHEERER MREE FEHEEEE
% US$’000 US$’000
Epalse FERT FET
Past due B
Current KRiBHA 0.73 14,245 104
1 to 30 days 1-30H 0.78 6,210 49
31 to 60 days 31-60H 1.27 2,652 34
61 to 90 days 61-90H 2.18 1,116 24
Over 90 days HiEB90H 8.66 109 9
24,332 220
For financial assets included in other receivables and deposits, Mt AHMBERRRITIEHNESREEM
an impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by = AEEREAHSRABERTER
applying a loss rate approach with reference to the historical WSEZREFRTEEILEETHED
loss record of the Group. As at 31 December 2022, the o R2022F12B31H  TEEAMNEN
probability of default applied ranged from 0.40% to 0.90% BEZE AN F0.40%FE0.90% (2021F : H F
(2021 ranged from 0.24% to 0.84%) and the loss given default 0.24%ZE0.84%) » M ATh T BN K18
was estimated to be 100%. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, EB100% ° 120224 K2021%12 531

the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal. H EBERERTEHRMY -
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2. BRI R EMEWRRR - AN

prepayments and deposits (continued) MKRET & (&)
The movement in the loss allowance for impairment of other HittEW R RTRESBEESE M
receivables and deposits are as follows: T
2022 2021
US$°000 US$’000
FER EYM
At the beginning of year RED 68 -
Impairment losses EREYF= 92 68
At end of year RER 160 68
Issued capital 24, B BITRA
2022 2021
Number of Number of
shares US$’000 shares  US$°000
R E B TEx BRpEE EY
Authorised: EE
- Ordinary shares of -SREE010BTH
HK$0.10 each ZER 5,000,000,000 64,433 5,000,000,000 64,433
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR :
At 1 January M1B1H 2,492,352,351 32,123 2,481,052,351 31,977
Exercise of share options (i)  1TEEEAR#E(i) 2,000,000 26 11,300,000 146
At 31 December MW12831H 2,494,352,351 32,149 2,492,352,351 32,123

() The subscription rights attaching to 2,000,000 (2021:
11,300,000) share options were exercised at the
weighted average subscription price of HK$0.201
(2021: HK$0.246) per share (note 25), resulting in the
issue of 2,000,000 (2021: 11,300,000) ordinary shares
for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of
approximately US$52,000 (2021: US$359,000). An amount
of approximately US$10,000 (2021: US$102,000) was
transferred from the share option reserve to share premium
account upon the exercise of the share options.

RMYERERALH

(i

2,000,0001% (20214 : 11,300,000
) BREMETNRBEUMET
B E S R0.20178 T (20214 :
0.2468 jt) (Miz¥25) MR B E 1T
i » BHE 172,000,000 (20214 :
11,300,0008%) B2 19 NBRE A Al 4
BERBH 52,0003 7T (20214 -
359,000 7T) - RIBRETER » —
£410,0003 7t (20214 : 102,0003=
WS EHBERERERARNSSR
EIR ©

o 2022E&H 157
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25. Equity compensation scheme

(@) The Share Option Scheme (a)

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2013
Share Option Scheme”) at the annual general meeting
held on 28 May 2013. The terms of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme are in accordance with the provisions of Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange. The 2013
Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing on 28 May 2013, being the date
of adoption of such scheme by the shareholders of the
Company. The Board shall be entitled at any time within 10
years commencing on 28 May 2013 to make an offer for
the grant of an option to any qualifying participants.

The purpose of the 2013 Share Option Scheme is to
provide the participants (directors, employees, advisers,
consultants, agents, distributors, contractors, contract
manufacturers, suppliers, service providers, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, etc., of
any member of the Group) with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
them to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2013 Share
Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
approval of the 2013 Share Option Scheme or 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue.

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the qualifying
participant concerned for a period of 21 days from the
date of the offer (or such longer period as the Board may
specify in writing). HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to
the Company on acceptance of the offer of the option.
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KA T R2013F5H288 BITH R
RBERGCHEM—BRETE
(FT20138E R #E5T 21 1) - 20138 B IR #&
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28H (BN D B IR R ER A 5% 8 AR A 5t
EzR)RBEN BHIOE-EEE
A LLA20135E5 828 B B10E RN H
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2013BREFEELERTRENRS
HE(KXEEREZES BT B
B %A RE - 28E - AEE -
AERER - HER - RFREME -
BE  -BEEBH SELEBERBMHY
Z)REESAQAEARDNSE
HESE  BELRARERREER
mMREAAQFEE-

RIB2013BIRE ST RE AR
PRAEBAITEM A TRTHRDBE -
T EEBNUEBRESEERAEALD
BAIEBITRAMNI0%TA LT RED
BITIRAHIB0% °
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BRE(BREETRE - EHElEART
) BTEREERDERITHARA
BARDAE SR TEBAERLQTE
BITRIDA1% °
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(a) The Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) BBRRFESHEI(E])
The subscription price of share option shall be determined FE2013E R ETEIRIXAET &
by the Board at its absolute discretion in accordance EEAEREENT LIBRENIE
with the terms of the 2013 Share Option Scheme. The B o HERIBRENRBEERU
subscription price in respect of any particular option shall THERSE  (RMAIRE A BT
be no less than the higher of (a) the closing price of the RS ARERMIIKGE Rb)K
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued HESEREAHASEL XA EH
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; and (b) the R ARERAIFHWRTE -
average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant.
The total number of share options available for issue upon RAFHRMER  RIBF2013B I ESH
exercise of all share options to be granted under the 2013 2 METEAREBRETHEE
Share Option Scheme as at the date of this annual report F TG EE 592,830,235
is 92,830,235, representing 3.7% of the issued shares of B EARDE]EITRMDES.7% o R
the Company. The number of share options outstanding as 2022%12H31H » & #27,150,000
at 31 December 2022 was 27,150,000. RE BB REREITHRE -
The following share options under the 2013 Share Option FR 0 2013 IRETH I RITEER
Scheme were outstanding during the year: EHEWT :
2022 2021
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price Options  exercise price Options
MELHTEE BREZE MEEHTEE BREHE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At beginning of year READ 0.717 27,300,000 0.236 15,700,000
Granted during the year FRERH 0.530 5,900,000 0.802 23,400,000
Exercised during the year FEREITE 0.201 (2,000,000) 0.246  (11,300,000)
Lapsed/forfeited during the year FRT 8, HE 0.782  (4,050,000) 0.201 (500,000)
At end of year RER 0.705 27,150,000 0.717 27,300,000

The weighted average share closing price of the
Company's ordinary shares immediately before the dates
on which the share options were exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2022 was HK$0.720 (31 December
2021: HK$0.647) per ordinary share.

During the year, movements in the number of share
options outstanding under the 2013 share option scheme
and the related exercise prices are as follows:

B ZE2022F 128318 LLFE £ &
EBERETFERAZANAQATEER
EFHETEASREERO0.720
BT (20215128310 : 0.64738
JT) °

FR - BR2013BIRERT BiE RITRE
BRESENEZBRATETEESD
1

SRMEEERAT o 202265% 159



25. Equity compensation scheme (continued) 25. IR 4~ #E %5 SR B 51 2 (&)
(a) The Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) B fESHE (&)

Number of share options (in thousand units)
EREHE (AT

Exercise Held on Lapsed/ Held on

price 1 January Granted Exercised forfeited 31 December

per share 2022 during during during 2022

HK$ R2022% the year the year the year R2022%
Grant date BRIFE 1818 Erd i R 12A31R Vesting period Exercise period
RiAH ER K& B it HEHE K5 FRE it
30 December 2019 0.159 50 - - (50) - 30 December 2019 to 2 January 2021 to
2019%125308 29 December 2020 31 December 2022
201981243082 21E12RE
2020127298 2020%128318
0.159 50 - - - 50 30 December 2019 to 2 January 2022 to
29 December 2021 31 December 2023
20191243082 2F1B2RE
2021%12A298 2023%128318
17 July 2020 0.2454 1,000 - - - 1,000 17 July 2020 to 19 July 2022 to
2020%7817H 16 July 2022 18 July 2024
2057A178E 0ETR19BE
2022575168 2024%7718H
30 October 2020 0.201 800 - - - 800 30 October 2020 to 1 November 2021 to
20205108308 27 May 2021 31 October 2023
2020610A30R% WNENAIBE
2021554278 20235104318
0.201 2,000 - (2,000) - - 30 October 2020 1 November 2020 to
2020%10A308 31 October 2022
020E117182
20205104318
1 June 2021 0.840 3,000 - - - 3,000 1 June 2021 1 June 2022 to
2021%681A 202156718 31 May 2024
202056102
202458318
0.840 2,400 - - - 2,400 1 June 2021 to 1 June 2022 to
31 May 2022 31 May 2024
021%6R10E 2022%6R10Z
2022554317 202454318
8 December 2021 0.790 7,200 - - (1,600) 5,600 8 December 2021 to 8 June 2022 to
2021512788 7 June 2022 7 June 2024
2021512882 02F6A8RE
202256478 20245678
0.790 10,800 - - (2,400) 8,400 8 December 2021 to 8 June 2023 to
7 June 2023 6 June 2025
2021F1288% 2023%5678AZ

2023%6A78 20055668
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25, MR 7 fE 2 SR B =1 8 (4])

(a) The Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) BRRESTE (E)
Number of share options (in thousand units)
BREHE (UTfus)
Exercise Held on Lapsed/ Held on
price 1 January Granted Exercised forfeited 31 December
per share 2022 during during during 2022
HKS$ 20225 the year the year the year 20225
Grant date BRAFE 1818 ERi ERg Egg 128318 Vesting period Exercise period
REAs A #E bb] i RE:1)E ] %% BEY fi:d:]
22 June 2022 0530 - 3,000 - - 3,000 22 June 2022 From 23 June 2023 to
2022F68227 2020568228 20 June 2025
H202356A238%
2025%6A208
0.530 - 2,400 - - 2,400 22 June 2022 to 21 June From 23 June 2023 to
2023 or the 2023 annual 20 June 2025
general meeting date,
whichever is earlier
H2020F6A220 2 H202356A230%
2023E6A218 520235 2025864208
hREFAEE
(H8FEa%R)
0.530 - 250 - - 250 22 June 2022 to From 23 June 2023 to
21 June 2023 20 June 2025
82022567220 % H202356/236%
2023564218 2025%6A208 1
0.530 - 250 - - 250 22 June 2022 to From 24 June 2024 to
21 June 2024 23 June 2026
M2020F6A220% H202456A248%
2024564218 2026564238 1
Total
8z 27,300 5,900 (2,000) (4,050) 27,150
At the end of the reporting period, the total number of RIEHR - RIBF2013BRESTE
share options which are exercisable under the 2013 Share ] 47 1% 89 B8 IR #E 42 £ 512,850,000
Option Scheme is 12,850,000 (2021: 2,850,000). (2021% : 2,850,000) °
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had RIEHR - NQ AR B %2013
27,150,000 share options outstanding under the 2013 BR RE ST 218 R 17 f£27,150,0001% BB
Share Option Scheme during the year. The exercise in full BRE-BERAQATAVEFTERERE
of the outstanding share options would, under the present EHTHERITEBRRESEET
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 27,150,0007< 2 7] & 18 IR ] B8 M BR 7K
27,150,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and #2,469,0003 7t (FIBREEITE MAD) ©
additional share capital of approximately US$2,469,000
(before issue expenses).
The fair value of the share options granted during the year FAEREUEBERENAELES
was HK$1,267,000 (HK$0.21 each) (2021: HK$6,292,000, 1,267,000 7t (& 190.2178 t)
HK$0.27 each), of which the Group recognised a share (20214 : 6,292,000/8 7t ' F190.27
option expense of US$496,000 (2021: US$204,000) during B) HPAREERE £20225F
the year ended 31 December 2022. 12B31HLELFEFERRBERER X
496,000 Jt (2021% : 204,0003%
JT) °
SP¥HBEERAT o 20225658 161
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25. Equity compensation scheme (continued)

(@) The Share Option Scheme (continued)

The Company uses the Binomial Valuation Model (the
“Model”) to value the share options granted. The key
parameters used in the Model and the corresponding fair
values of the share options granted during 2022 and 2021

are listed below:

25. R AN HR BN =T &1 (A&

(a)

BRESE (|

AAFFERA-ZBITEER (EX)
FEERENERRE - R2022K
C21EAERHEERENATFER
EALEXNETESZHENT :

2022 2021 2021
22 June 8 December 1 June
Date of grant R AH 64228 1288H 6A1H
Number of share options EREBREZE 5,900 18,000 5,400
granted (in thousand units) (AFAzsh
Total share option value BRELE
- HK$’000 -TER 1,267 4,871 1,421
- US$’000 equivalent -FTEnEE 163 629 183
Share price at date of grant (HK$) REBHNREERT) 0.510 0.790 0.840
Closing price immediately before the SERL A 2K 0.520 0.770 0.790
date of grant mE
Exercise price (HK$) TREERT) 0.530 0.790 0.840
Expected life of options (years) BRENEHRAE) 3-4 2-4 3
Annualised volatility FERIE 71.6%-79.3%  73.1%-82.5% 70.1%
Risk free interest rate EEBAIE 3.46%-3.47% 1.084%-1.267% 0.216%
Dividend payout rate REE 2.97% 1.1% 4.4%

The Binomial Valuation Model is used to estimate the
fair values of European share options. The fair values
calculated are inherently subjective and uncertain due to
the assumptions made and the limitations of the Model

“IHFIEEXEARMGERA B RE
HWATPE - FEHNAFESHER
HRMEXBERFMABERNEE
HEAEE BRENEESEER
LEIXBBERNTEEHMSLE - R

(b)

used. The value of a share option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change in
variables so adopted may materially affect the estimation
of the fair value of a share option.

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of
continuously compounded share returns is based on
statistical analysis of daily closing share prices over the
last few years.

The Share Grant

There was no share award granted during the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021.

AHSHNEARE S B RE

DFENEEEREALE -

RIEDERNBEREIERBEHF
FARRBUHENG DT 2 RDE

BEBBEEFEHR -

(b) M7 HER

B 22022F K2021E 128318 L &F
E UERHROER -




26.

27.

28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS%;

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 82 of the
financial statements.

Deferred tax

At 31 December 2022, the Group had unrecognised tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of US$72,051,000 (2021: US$90,861,000),
subject to the agreement by the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department, that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. The Group also had unrecognised tax losses arising in
Mainland China of US$1,664,000 (2021: US$1,961,000), subject
to the agreement by the relevant taxation authority, that will
expire in five years for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses due to
unpredictability of future taxable profit streams.

At 31 December 2022, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subjected to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion
of directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2022, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2021: Nil) for taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries or
associate as the Group has no liability to additional tax should
such amounts be remitted due to the availability of double
taxation relief.

26

27

e IR R R

R

REERFERUNFEZHEREBFE
BN BHRRECREGEREZERA -

AEEFRB B

A2022F12A31B - AEBEEBE
£ ARERBEE IR A72,051,000% T
(20214 : 90,861,000E T) (EE&HBH
RERE)  ZESHEBETVERHRE
WEELEFBN QTN RRERBFE -
AEBNTREEDPEAREESEWARERHRE
581,664,000 7T (20214 : 1,961,000
En) (BEFEEBEKERE) » 25/
BHEBEREFERRER  WHREREES
FEEN QTR R REZHAE - ANEE
FEB SR SR FERR B R 2RR - B UL R R
EFEERAELHEEE -

R2022F12831H  EFRAEB R
B AP K S BY BT B 2 B B AR TR B R
EHEMNNESBEIHEIRELHRE - &
ERE ZEWBLARATATERTER
KRDREBEF -

R2022%F 12831  BIEEMNELREEH
MEBASRBELEARAMNAELEFNE
FHREMHEEARERELHEESRE
(2021F - &) FEAMNFEZERERE
B BEHRANAEERBER  AEEL
BARIEBEIINRESE -

Trade and other payables 28. FE {3 X & H b FE {4 =X
2022 2021
Notes US$°000 US$’000
FiEE FEx Ep
Trade payables R (a) 15,807 23,919
Accrued expenses and other payables FESTRA S R H A R 5K 17,825 18,891
Contract liabilities eEHNEE (b) 6,346 6,350
Contract liabilities from a related party BELaNEaE 35(a) 4,224 -
Refund liabilities BRRERE 1,145 989
45,347 50,149
SPYHEEREAT o« 20226F% 163



RAMBmRME
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28. Trade and other payables (continued)

Notes:

(a) At 31 December 2022, the ageing analysis of the trade payables

7A2022F 128310 » BB Z R

based on invoice dates is as follows: HERE DA T ¢
2022 2021
US$’°000 Us$’000
FEx FEx
1 - 30 days 1-30H 7,939 14,726
31 - 60 days 31 -60H 3,422 6,478
61 - 90 days 61 -90H 4,096 2,439
Over 90 days #HiE90H 350 276
15,807 23,919

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
term of three months.

BARBEEE-—RNEARNGEE -

(b) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (b) BHEEWFBOT:
31 December 31 December 1 January
2022 2021 2021
12A31H 12A31H 1H1H
US$’000 US$°000 US$’000
FEx FErx FErx
Advances received from customers WEE F Z FE R E

Sales of ICs $HEICs 6,346 6,350 2,598

Advances received from a related party U EREAHE 5 = FE UL TR IE
Sales of ICs $EEICSs 4,224 - -
10,570 6,350 2,598

Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver
semiconductor products. The increase in contract liability in 2022
and 2021 was mainly due to the increase in advances received.

29. Interest-bearing bank borrowings

At 31 December 2022, the Group had a bank loan of
US$1,421,000 (2021: US$181,000) in connection with a PRC
subsidiary (2021: Korean subsidiary). Regarding the bank
borrowing in connection with the PRC subsidiary, the amount
is denominated in RMB which has been settled before the date
of this report which bears interest at a rate of 1.4% per annum.
Regarding the bank borrowing in connection with the Korean
subsidiary last year, the amount has been settled before the
year ended of 31 December 2022 which bears interest at a rate
of 1.1% (2021: 1.1%) per annum. The carrying amount of the
loan at the end of last reporting period approximated to its fair
value and the loan is denominated in KRW.

29.

EHNEEEEARMNEERERMBE ZFEF
I ° 2022F K201 F S NEBEMEERH
RUE Z TS FRIEE ANFT 3R ©

RITFFERER

A2022%F12A31H  AEBH —EIRT
& 7%1,421,000% 7T (20214 : 181,000
JU) BB R KBE T 2 E)(20215F 8 E
FRA) - BRBRIPBERETFLARZRT
ERCRAERAPRIEESERERNER
Bl14% BUARBIE MEERE
RERF LT ZIRITERE R2022F12
B31HAIEEZEER ERENEA
1.1% (2021F 1 1.1%) o FHASREHRER
HEEEAFEMEE  LUBETHIE-




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CEP B

30. Banking facilities 30. RITEE
At 31 December 2022, the Group had banking facilities MR2022F12A31H  AKEEBHBRTE
amounted to US$26.3 million (2021: US$25.9 million) and B 26.3EB X (2021F (25958 %
US$12.9 million (2021: US$9.9 million) was unutilised. L) BEHRARA129EB B Xt (2021F ¢
9.9BBXET) °
31. Contingent liabilities M. AAREE
The Company has provided corporate guarantees amounted to AATREHRBEFTHEBLARNRERRITR
US$12.9 million (2021: US$17.9 million) to banks in connection HEEERI2OBEE T (2021F 1 17.9
with facilities granted to a subsidiary, of which US$8.0 million BEBXER)  ZmER2022F12A8318E
(2021: US$8.0 million) was utilised as at 31 December 2022. BAHET80EEXT (20215 1 8.0HE
E I

32. Notes to consolidated statement of cash 32. ZEBHEHRERM T
flows

(a) Major non-cash transactions (@) EE*REXH
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions and FR AEERLHHEHENENSE
modification to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities AREENMHEAGHNIEESFE
of US$842,000 (2021: US$2,727,000) and US$842,000 K 1& 3] 2 Bl 5842,0003 T (2021
(2021: US$2,727,000), respectively, in respect of lease £ :2,727,000% jt) #1842,000% T
arrangements for leased properties. (20214 : 2,727,000% T) °
(b) Change in assets/liabilities arising from financing activities (b) BETHER-EE BEEL
2022 2022
Pledged Lease
bank deposits  Borrowings liabilities
i)
IRITIER &N HEEE
US$’000 US$°’000 US$’000
EH EH E3
At 1 January 2022 R2022F181H 17,000 181 2,531
Changes from financing cash £2EHR&REMWE (L
flows - - (1,231)
Release of pledged bank BRI 2R IRITIFR
deposits (10,959) - -
New leases HEE - - 699
Lease modification on R 2 HEEET
extending lease term - - 143
Foreign exchange movement [E =& &) - - (70)
Interest expense AMEFH - - 81
Interest paid classified as EFFEEAKE
operating cash flows BERE - - (81)
COVID-19-related rent 20198k E P 1HE
concession from lessor HERR - - (76)
Drawdowns of bank SZEURITER
borrowings - 1,421 -
Repayments of bank EEBITEN
borrowings - (181) -
At 31 December 2022 2022 12H831H 6,041 1,421 1,996

SPINHBERAR o 2025F% 165
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32. Notes to consolidated statement of cash 32. ZE R EFRERH T (&)
flows (continued)

(b) Change in assets/liabilities arising from financing (b) BETHEFEE SEEL (A)
activities (continued)
2021 2021
Pledged Lease
bank deposits Borrowings liabilities
CEA
RITE £ HEAE
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
EY EY EY
At 1 January 2021 R20215F1 A1 E|* 130 181 887
Changes from financing cash ~EZEBRLFRENE L
flows - - (1,096)
Increase in pledged bank MECEANRITEN
deposits 16,870 - -
New leases MEE - - 53
Lease modification on extending R 2B EBET
lease term - - 2,674
Foreign exchange movement  [ER&F) - - 14
Interest expense MEFH - - - 55
Interest paid classified as ERFED BAKE
operating cash flows BenE - - (55)
COVID-19-related rent 201958 R m S HIAE
concession from lessor HER® - - 1
Drawdowns of bank borrowings X EUE{TER - 913 -
Repayments of bank borrowings E&HETER - (913) -
At 31 December 2021 R2021%F12H31H 17,000 181 2,531
(c) Total cash outflows for leases (c) HEESRHAE
The total cash outflows for leases included in the ReREXDEENEEREREL
statement of cash flows is as follows: BT ¢
2022 2021
US$'000 US$’000
FTEx E
Within operating activities EREEFHH 145 281
Within financing activities EREEEH 1,231 1,096
1,376 1,377
33. Commitments 33. A& IE
Capital commitments & AR EIE
Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet provided for at RB|BEBR  CAESHNEERBANE
the end of the reporting period is as follows: REZIEHMT :
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000

FEx FERT




34. Financial instruments by category

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2022
Financial assets

e IR R R

M. e T EZEER

SERNSMITARRE BRAEDT |

2022
ETHEE

Financial asset at
fair value through
other comprehensive

income
BATEERA
Hith 2 WY
SHEE
Equity Financial assets at
investment amortised cost Total
R SR A Gt
RERE BENEREE wst
US$'000 US$’000 US$’000
TERr S S
Equity investment at fair BOFEEA
value through other Hit 2 EREN
comprehensive income RERE 1,161 - 1,161
Financial assets included in  FEURER K E bR A
trade and other receivables £REE - 40,286 40,286
Pledged bank deposits EHEANRITER - 6,041 6,041
Cash and cash equivalents HE&REEEEY - 45,556 45,556
1,161 91,883 93,044

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

RS AT E

mEmas

_ US$’000

Financial liabilities cREaE FERT
Financial liabilities included in trade FEAS SRR H A AT A

and other payables Wemes 25,092

Interest-bearing bank borrowing IRITFFEER 1,421

26,513

RMYERERALH
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34. Financial instruments by category

OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 EABBEE M

(continued)

2021
Financial assets

2021
EREE

M. TR ITAERER (&)

Financial asset at
fair value through
other comprehensive

income
BAVEHESA
Hi2E WS
tREE
Equity Financial assets at
investment amortised cost Total
REHER AT
RERE BENeREE @t
US$°000 US$’000 US$’000
TEn TEn Txn
Equity investment at fair BOFEEA
value through other Hit2EREMN
comprehensive income RERE 1,065 - 1,065
Financial assets included in  FEF R E AW AR
trade and other receivables & REE - 37,656 37,656
Pledged bank deposits SHEANRTER - 17,000 17,000
Cash and cash equivalents HE&REEEEY - 24,757 24,757
1,065 79,413 80,478
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
RESH AT E
Hemas
US$’'000
Financial liabilities SRAE FEx
Financial liabilities included in trade FEAS 5k e EL At B A TR A
and other payables NeEmas 32,885
Interest-bearing bank borrowing RITFTEER 181

33,066




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS%;

35. Related parties transactions

(@) China Electronics Corporation (“CEC”), a state-
owned information technology conglomerate under the
administration of the central government of the PRC,
through one of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Huada
Semiconductor Co. Ltd., owns approximately 28.3% of the
issued shares of the Company and is thus a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Transactions between the
Group and the subsidiaries or associates of CEC are
regarded as transactions with related parties.

CEC is a state-owned entity which is subject to the control
of the State Council of the PRC Government. The Group
had the following individually significant or collectively
significant transactions with the PRC government-related
entity during the year:

(i) The Group enters into extensive sale transactions
with the state-controlled entity, which are controlled
by the State Council of the PRC Government through
its government authorities, in the normal course of
business on commercial terms. Approximately 37%
of the Group’s sales for the year were came from this
state-controlled entity.

The following transactions were carried out with related

e IR R R

3. BT X 5H

(@) HEEFEEEXEEERAF (F
HEF ) REERBNTEHRBG
EENEAEFEMRMEEER
BBEZENBAREAYERA
PR B R £928.3% N A R 2 BITHR
7 DEARBDZEERR - AEEHE
CECH{BARIHEBBANRZEK
BT S ©

TEEFRAERER  XRHEBRFR

B ES o £ AEEEBDEBA
HRAEREUTERNEAHKEREX

SETE

() AEBEREFBXEBBEPREHE
R R B L EZH
HWERS  ZFSEBIHATEK
F B # B i 18 H BR AT e A 2 ) o
REBFRNHI7%HHEEFAR
BRZERZHER

UTRER/BEBH 25 -

parties:
2022 2021
Notes US$’000 US$’000
I FEx FET
Sales: HER :
Subsidiary of CEC FEREFHORNBA (i) 71,151 60,166
Associate of CEC FEIEFRBE A (ii) 3,121 2,155
Rental service charges: HERBEE :
Subsidiary of CEC FREFHHNEAA (iil) 15 36
Software and IT services charges: #iff & {2 BRIMTIRGEE :
Subsidiaries of CEC FREFHREAA (iv) 286 329
Notes: iz

(i)  This represented the transaction amount for the supply of
IC and driver products (“IC Products”) from the Group to
CEACI during the year ended 31 December 2022, based on
the agreement dated 22 October 2020 (the “IC Products
Supply Agreement”), as subsequently amended on 23
March 2021 and 6 May 2022 entered into between the
Company and CEACI. The IC Products Supply Agreement
has a term of three years from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2023. The IC Products supply transactions
contemplated under the IC Products Supply Agreement
constituted non-exempt continuing connected transactions
for the Company under the Listing Rules and the Company
has complied with the relevant requirements under the
Listing Rules in respect of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions.

iy BERRBIEARLDBECEACIFTET
HE 520205108228 WtH: (T1C
ERHEHZE] RE%ZR2021F3
H238 K20226586 R 55T » A&
EIREZE 2022512831 B ILFER
CEACHEEICK: e EzsE M ([ICE
RN ELE - ICEREERS
WHEIR A =% » 202118182
20234124318 ° ICE @ LA 15 5

BT RIETHICE REES 58K
THRAETAADNEREISE
BMEXRS  MAAICHZZES
GEBERER S BT L HEEME
BT o

RFMEEAERAT o 202265% 169



»» NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R AR Y RE

35. Related parties transactions (continued) 35. #5353 (&)

(@) (continued) (@) (#&)
Notes: (continued) Wi (&)
(i) This represented the transaction amount for the supply of (i) EREXAEEECECH —FREKE
IC and driver products from the Group to an associated AARBICREHRERNRS
company of CEC which constituted a related party B OBEAXZBABEBEXSME
transaction and not a continuing connected party transaction ETRBETHFEBEALRS °

under the Listing Rules.

(i) This represented the rental service charges from a subsidiary (i) ERRCECH—RMEB AR @ALE
of CEC to the Group which constituted a fully exempt ERRNWEEREE  EEXZE
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules. gfg%ﬁ AETHWE2EARSER

by

(iv) This represented the software and IT services charges from (ivy BRRPESFNHBARBASE
subsidiaries of CEC to the Group which constituted a fully BRENERGREEETREE
exempt continuing connected transactions under the Listing ﬁ%ﬁ?&%%ﬁit?ﬁ RAIBTHNE2E
Rules. HREFERERS -

The following were balances arising from such sales/ HEHE SRBBRNWERS .

purchases:

2022 2021
Notes US$’000 us$’000
FYaE FEx EP
Trade receivables: FEUYRK : 23
Subsidiary of CEC FEE T B AT 4,267 1,689
Associate of CEC FEEFREBEA 267 561
Prepayments: FAMNK 23
Subsidiaries of CEC FEEFHHRELR 221 233
Contract liabilities: aREE: 28
Subsidiary of CEC HFEEFHRELR 4,224 -
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) *EEXTEEEASWHEMH :

Group:

2022 2021

US$’000 US$’000

FEn EP

Director fee EEWE - _
Salaries, allowance, bonuses and other e R AR

benefits HuER 1,960 1,732

Pension scheme contributions BIREFTEIMR 49 42

Share-based payment expense AR X 146 110

Total compensation paid to key ENEEEEAEZ

management personnel e EEEG 2,155 1,884

Details of compensation of the Company’s directors are ARATES 2 BN B TS IRFT M EE11

disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements. o

The transactions in respect of the above compensation of BRULAEBETEEEASHRML

key management personnel of the Group were exempted ﬁ%mtmiﬁ,ﬁ!ﬂlﬁ"l' E’JﬁﬁﬁZﬁi‘a_



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
CPN S B E:

36. Statement of financial position and 36. AN R B EARN TR G#ME
reserves of the Company
(a) Statement of financial position (a) B#EMRRFE
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
FEx ESpH
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBRINERE 55,209 55,209
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade and other receivables FE WS 3R e HL A FE LUK FX 50 63
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UK B A B 3K 2,647 2,196
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREeEED 171 181
Total current assets RBEEAG 2,868 2,440
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATH B A B3 6,357 3,007
Accrued expenses and other payables BERHEMENSRK 259 326
Total current liabilities neaEAST 6,616 3,333
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBAE (3,748) (893)
NET ASSETS EERE 51,461 54,316
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of the AATEREEFEA
Company iR
Issued capital B2 EITIRA 32,149 32,123
Reserves R 19,312 22,193
Total equity 485 3% 51,461 54,316

SPNHBERAR o 20225&E% 171



“» NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U I EwaR M EE

36. Statement of financial position and 36. XAARIMBMRRKEREE
reserves of the Company (continued) (&)
(b) Reserves (b) f##HE
Equity
Share compensation Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
A fE

R4 fE BB Rt ER st
US$’000 US$°000 US$'000  US$’000

TR FER FER FER

At 1 January 2021 R2021E1818 109,114 17,795 (103,862) 23,047

Profit for the year FREF - - 1,299 1,299

Total comprehensive income 2HERFEEG - - 1,299 1,299

2020 final dividend paid 2020 REIRE (2,570) - - (2,570)

Equity-settled share option arrangements % A< 25 S A - 204 - 204

Exercise of share options TREBRE 315 (102) - 213

At 31 December 2021 #2021F12A31H 106,859 17,897 (102,563) 22,193

At 1 January 2022 M2022%181H 106,859 17,897 (102,563) 22,193

Loss for the year FREE - - (184) (184)

Total comprehensive loss 2HEEEEG - - (184) (184)

2021 final dividend paid 2021 EREIRE (3,219) - - (3219

Equity-settled share option arrangements % < 2 3 A - 496 - 496

Exercise of share options THERE 36 (10) - 26

At 31 December 2022 2022124311 103,676 18,383 (102,747) 19,312

37. Approval of consolidated financial 3. FEMBHRKREH

statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the RS HERREN2023F3H23AKE

Board of Directors on 23 March 2023. =&




FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY =
IFENBRREE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
US$ million BBETR

Sales HE 190.8 168.1 121.3 108.3 98.1

Gross profit ER 65.5 67.3 35.8 21.3 28.2

Net profit/(loss) FRA (B8) 27.8 23.7 11.7 (27.8) (13.8)

Assets and liabilities EEREE

- Total assets -HBEE 158.3 139.9 94.2 76.9 107.0
- Total liabilities -HaE 49.1 53.2 30.8 25.6 28.0
- Shareholders’ funds -REER 109.2 86.7 63.4 51.3 79.0

US cents31l

Earnings/(loss) per share SREF/ (&#E)

- Basic (i) —E7K() 1.1 1.0 0.5 (1.1) (0.55)
- Diluted (ii) — 85 i) 1.1 1.0 0.5 (1.1) (0.55)
Dividends per share BREE - 0.1 0.1 - -
Net assets per share () BREEFMHE() 4.38 3.48 2.56 2.07 3.19

(i)

The basic earnings/(loss) and net assets per share are based on the weighted average of 2,480,028,242,
2,480,252,351, 2,480,302,624, 2,488,069,886 and 2,493,903,036 ordinary shares in issue during each of the
years ended 31 December 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022, respectively.

BREXAERN (BER)REREEZEEZDHEEERZ20185F + 20195 + 2020%F  2021F K2022F128310 Lt
FEL£FWNEHITEERINETFHEH2,480,028,242% ~ 2,480,252,3510% ~ 2,480,302,624% - 2,488,069,886[% &
2,493,903,036/ 5t & o

For 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022, the diluted earnings/(loss) per share information is based on
2,480,028,242, 2,480,252,351, 2,480,516,010, 2,490,824,465 and 2,495,276,295 ordinary shares, respectively,
which are the adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding assuming conversion of all
dilutive/potential share options outstanding during the year.

20185 ~ 20194 ~ 20204 ~ 2021FE 20225 SRBEBEEF (FiE) WE LR £ 5#2,480,028,242% »

2,480,252,351% ~ 2,480,516,0108% ~ 2,490,824,4650% }22,495,276,2905 R Z BRI E  MEREBEEN (HE)
DDREBREAMEBERITEERECFERNABRZCBITINETESEERTE -

SFMEEERAT o 202268% 173



DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY

BERAR

2013 Share Option
Scheme

201308 R =T &

Augmented Reality (AR)

Board
=g

Cayman lIslands
Companies Law

MEHS QAR

CEC
FEET

Code Provision(s)
SF R 3L

The share option scheme approved by
shareholders for adoption at the annual
general meeting held on 28 May 2013

Active Matrix Electrophoretic Display

Augmented reality is an enhanced
version of the real physical world
that is achieved through the use of
digital visual elements, sound, or
other sensory stimuli delivered via
technology.

Board of Directors

Companies Act (Revised), Cap. 22 of
the Cayman Islands, as amended or
re-enacted from time to time

CEAC International Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CECI, and a connected person of
the Company

China Electronics Corporation, a
state-owned information technology
conglomerate under the administration
of the central government of the
PRC, is a substantial shareholder of
the Company through its interests in
Huada

Y P EBBREERKRBERXA (CEC
Technology Co., Ltd.*), a company
established in the PRC and an indirect
subsidiary of the CEC, and a connected
person of the Company

Code provision(s) in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

Committee of Sponsoring Organization
of the Treadway Commission is a
private sector initiative that has issued
internationally recognized internal
control frameworks

Chinese Yuan, Renminbi

A2013FE5 28 HETZRRBFARE L
W RRAERM B ERTE

T EIEMEEKER

FERESEEEYIEY AR
BRYEFHEAZ BETRHMEBR
MEENRERMRER -

Bxg

TR ERREFHENREHE EHIZE
22F N 7] (BI& )

TEIEFRMBEEBRAE - REBEM
B Z2BRAT » BCECINZEKHB AT

TEEFEEEXEEEARAR  —XRE
ERBRTETRBAEENERESR
ERMEREE  BRESZEANESSD
RRABZEERR

FIPEHREENZBRAA  RH
HaAMAR Y 2EREEAAE RPEE
FREEz2BENBLR

EHRBIM 4P E 2 BEERT AR
B 57 B f5R X2

Committee of Sponsoring Organization
of the Treadway Commission;g — I8 FA
EitE BRREEBRRINANEE
ed

FET - ARH

E



Company
PN

Current ratio
BN =
Director(s)
BEx

Debt to equity ratio
fER =
ESL
ETERER
Gearing ratio
EEESBLR
Group

REHE

HES
EANRK

HK$/HKD
BT

Hong Kong/HK/HKSAR
B8

HKAS
ERETEL

HKFRS
BRMBEHEER

DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSAR

Solomon Systech (International)
Limited, a company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands with limited liability,
the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange

Total current assets divided by total
current liabilities

The director(s) of the Company

Interest-bearing bank borrowing
divided by total equity

Electronic Shelf Label

Interest-bearing bank borrowing
divided by total equity

The Company and its subsidiaries

ERERAXRKEERDA (Beijing
Huada Empyrean Technology Co.,
Ltd.**), a company established in the
PRC, and a connected person of the
Company

Hong Kong dollars

Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

Hong Kong Accounting Standards

Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, or collectively for HKAS
and Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

Huada Semiconductors Co. Ltd., a
PRC company with limited liability
to consolidate all IC businesses
under CEC group. It is a substantial
shareholder of the Company

Integrated Circuit

Intellectual Property

BERAR

RPIFERERLA  —KKMAIRAE
HENERAT  HRERBERXAER
Lt

RBEERBERUADEERE

KRFRZESE

RITEHEERRUBERS

N
Y

FTERER

7]

\

RITFF B E R AR RS

RATREME R F

ERERANRBEERLE  —HKRH
BRMHDNE BAQBNEEAL

BET

BBBRITHE

BBERTER

BB BMEER  AFBEFEAUR
BEMBREEINGERE

EARYERBRNT » —RCECHESIE
TICEEMAZRHPENERIF - A
RAZEERR

i
=
L]
5%
Bm
JF

R
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY

BERAR

JPY
HJT

KRW
BT

LCD
Listing Rules
EmRA

LTPS

LLC
BRAF

Mainland China
SN S

Model Code
@A

PMOLED

PRC
T El

R&D

S&D
HERDH

SFO

Japanese Yen

Korean Won

Liquid Crystal Display

The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

Low Temperature Polysilicon, a
technology for the manufacturing of
TFT-LCD

Limited liabilities company

Mainland China, for the purpose of
this report, excludes Hong Kong and
Macau Special Administrative Regions
of the PRC

Metaverse is a digital reality that
combines aspects of social media,
online gaming, augmented reality
(AR), virtual reality (VR), and
cryptocurrencies to allow users to
interact virtually.

Mobile Industry Processor Interface

Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules

New Taiwan dollars

Organic Light Emitting Diode

Passive Matrix Organic Light Emitting
Diode

The People’s Republic of China, for
the purpose of this report, excluded
Hong Kong and Macau Special
Administration Regions

Product design, development and
engineering

Selling and Distribution

Securities and Futures Ordinance

BATT
B
R B BN AR

B freE s LR Al

BEZRY —BREFEERERT
BN AR M B A
BRQF

PEARANE - BAREMS - TRE
TEEBRRMFENITHRE

TFHRE-EBEERRE EE&ETHX
Hee - ERES - RIEER(AR) - EHER
B(VR) MMZEWEMEAE AFFAF
ETERINM -

BEITERERAE
EHRBMEI0FE 2 EHBRTAES

EITESXZNEESTA
e

BHRBEX_RE
WEBEE AL e

REARLME  BARENS - TEE
TEREERRFBEITHRE

EmwRsT  BHBRIRE

HER D

& 5 R M E R



the Stock Exchange
B8 32 P

TDDI
TFT

UK
EE
USA
xH

US$/USD
ey

Virtual Reality (VR)

DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSAR

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Touch and Display Driver Integration

Thin Film Transistor

United Kingdom

United States of America

US dollars

Virtual Reality is the use of computer
technology to create a simulated
environment.

for identification purposes only

BERAR

ERBAERZMAERLE
BERBETRERREENK
BEERE
REHE T E
XANBERE

XE T

ERRERMNAERRMAZEIRRE
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Financial Calendar

Financial Year End
31 December

Announcement of Annual Results
23 March 2023

Share Listing

Listing Venue and Date
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
8 April 2004

HKSE Stock Code
2878

Board Lot
2,000 shares

Trading Currency
HKD

Issued Shares
2,494,352,351 (as at 31 December 2022)

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Agent
Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited

Third Floor, Century Yard, Cricket Square,

P.O. Box 902,

Grand Cayman, KY1-11083,

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar
Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185

Website: www.tricoris.com

Independent Auditor

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

Hong Kong Legal Advisor
Loeb & Loeb LLP

;ORPORATE AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Bt B &

MHRFEREHR
12A31H

AR FEE
2023493 H23H

R#H EHER

LR A
BBBERZMARDTER
2004%4H8H

BRR G RS
2878

BREENQ
2,000/

REEY
BT

BETRG
2,494,352,351 (jA2022%F12H318)

ROBFBLEE

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited
Third Floor, Century Yard, Cricket Square,
P.O. Box 902,

Grand Cayman, KY1-11083,

HEHS

EBRMBEELSE
HERFERAERAT
5

ERIE165%
ERERMAPOTE

E 5 ¢ (852) 2980 1333
fEH : (852) 2810 8185
#3t : www.tricoris.com

B HED
ZXEFEAEHA
XSS

S D R 55 B R A BT

BRZEER
LERMEEAEREEEETEHY
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Mr. Sheu Wei Fu

Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho

Authorized Representatives
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond
Mr. Yu Chon Man

Company Secretary & Qualified Accountant
Mr. Yu Chon Man
CPA, FCCA

Corporate Communications/Investor Relations
Email: ir@solomon-systech.com

Principal Office
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Tel: (852) 2207 1111
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AREREER

This 2022 Annual Report (bilingual version in English and Chinese) has
been posted on the Company’s website at www.solomon-systech.com.

Shareholders who have chosen to receive the Company’s corporate
communications (including but not limited to annual reports,
summary financial reports (where applicable), interim reports,
summary interim reports (where applicable), notices of meeting,
listing documents, circulars and proxy forms) via the Company’s
website and for any reason have difficulty in gaining access to the
Annual Report posted on the Company’s website will promptly upon
request be sent by post the Annual Report in printed form free of
charge.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of means of
receipt of the Company’s corporate communications.

Shareholders may request for printed copy of the Annual Report
or change their choice of means of receipt of the Corporate
Communications by sending reasonable notice in writing to the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
or by sending an email to solomon2878-ecom@hk.tricorglobal.com.

ORPORATE AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
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